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Change of financial year end date

The financial year end date of the Company has been changed from 30 June to 31 December commencing from the financial period 2020/21 (for details, please
refer to the Company’s announcement dated 25 February 2021). Accordingly, this set of results covered the period from 1 July 2020 to 31 December 2021
("Period”). The comparative figures, however, are for the year ended 30 June 2020, and hence are not directly comparable.

Financial and operational highlights B & &&=

HK$mn

BHEET

Period ended

31 December 2021

HK$mn
BEEET
Year ended

30 June 2020

BE-Z=-—-% HE-T-THF Change
+=A=t+—HiILHE ANA=THILLFE o
Revenue Yz 1,164 1,092 7%
Gross profit E£7I 596 534 M2%
Loss from operating activities @ £75E18 (322) (319) $1%
Loss for the period/year attributable to owners* #8 AE(EEAR, FREsIE (340) (368) 7%
Basic loss per share* (HK cents) &Rz E A 518" (L) (16.52) (21.83) +24%
Gross margin (%) EFI%E (%) 51% 49% 1 2%pts HED 2
Operating margin (%) “&&F%E (%) -28% -29% 1 1%ptlEE S8
Net margin® (%) JFEFI=* (%) -29% -34% 1 5%pts EED
EBITDA R&tFI8 - Bi1B - T8 K 8551 275 (141) (106) ¥ 33%
EBITDA margin (%) FK&tFIE - B8 - e R SR EFIR (%) -12% -10% ¥ 2%pts HES S
Capital expendituret & AR * 44 21 ~110%
Key financial indicators’ £ Z8f 154512 "
31 December 2021 30 June 2020
—BE--F —TTF Change
+=A=+—H NA=1A [t
Inventory turnover* (days) 775 EsER* (K) 180 123 157 days &
Inventory level (HK$mn) 7F&EKF BB ET) 187 210 VY11%
Return on equity (%) ARHEZEEIHRE (%) -126% -75% ¥ 51% pts{EAEHE
Current ratio (times) B3 (£%) 1.74 1.49 7%
Net casht (HK$mn) & Fm@T (BEET) 269 116 1132%
Total liabilities to equity ratio (%) 48 ELRELEERLLE (%) 187% 175%  112% ptsfEAEH 2

# Including continuing and discontinued operations BIEFELLE KD R IEES

* Inventory held at period/year end divided by annualised cost of sales times 365 days Hi4&% A /44 B 2 17 5B A E /L85 AR - 365K

 Time deposits, cash and bank balances less bank borrowings & £i75 5 F13H & & 8077 4 840RER 1T & 3k

Revenue by geographical market %@
For the period ended 31 December 2021 #HZE—-ZT—— $+_ﬂ7+ Elit/ﬁﬂfsﬁ

Hong Kong and Macau &7 &2 F

59% 66%) o
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Global distribution network 2Ek7 $5484%

31 December 30 June
2021 2020
—B-—F =% Change
+=HA=+—H NA=+A (1
Hong Kong and Macau & &®F9
Directly managed stores 26 38 V12
HEERER
Mainland China #El Xk
Directly managed stores 119 154 ¥ 35
HEERES
Singapore 7N
Directly managed stores 14 17 ¥3
BB
Other countries HExR
Export franchised stores 539 773 ¥ 234
HOASRTE R
Total &4
Directly managed stores 159 209 ¥ 50
BEEEEH
Export franchised stores 539 773 ¥ 234
ERRESET
698 982 Vv 284

Mainland China /1 B AR
31% @7%)

Singapore 713
10% 7%)

() Figures for the year ended 30 June 2020 are shown in brackets Z =-Z =%
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FIVE YEAR FINANCIAL S
g

A summary of the results, assets and liabilities of the Group for the years ended 30 June 2017, 30 June 2018, 30 June 2019, 30 June 2020 and period ended 31 December 2021, as extracted

from the published audited consolidated financial statements and restated as appropriate, is set out below.

AT BAKEEE t¢ + CCEBE-NEXNA=ZFTHE ZZE-AEANA=ZHE S ECEEARNA=SFTHLGFEREE T F+ - A=+—BItHBZESE  BER
BERE . A EFIJ ﬁ%%w AHBBREREE ﬁﬂé&ﬂl
Results ¥4&
Year ended 30 June
Period ended BEANA=THLEE
31 December 2021
BE_T_-—& 2020 2019 2018 2017
+ZA=+—HLHEHA ZEFF —E-NF —Z2—)\F —E—tF
HK$’'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BET T BT T BT T BT T BT T
CONTINUING OPERATIONS @K & %%
REVENUE U 2% 1,164,075 1,091,631 1,488,072 1,782,531 1,853,128
(LOSS)/PROFIT FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES & E £ (FiE) %7 (322,399) (319,131) (103,351) (9,504) 25,894
Finance costs g & X A (14,768) (16,182) (212) (40) -
(LOSS)/PROFIT BEFORE TAX FROM CONTINUING OPERATIONS
BELSEL BB (BR) &R (337,167) (335,313) (103,563) (9,544) 25,894
Income tax expense FT/5 i f = (2,892) (12,183) (4,371) (7,752) (5,988)
(LOSS)/PROFIT FOR THE PERIOD/YEAR FROM CONTINUING OPERATIONS
BELEEBE2HA FR (FE) &7 (340,059) (347,496) (107,934) (17,296) 19,906
LOSS FOR THE PERIOD/YEAR FROM A DISCONTINUED OPERATION
CRIEERZHR " ERNEE (378) (20,239) (31,171) (11,676) (15,020)
(LOSS)/PROFIT FOR THE PERIOD/YEAR ATTRIBUTABLE TO OWNERS
OF THE COMPANY
ARABEEAEGBR ER(EFER) EA (340,437) (367,735) (139,105) (28,972) 4,886
Assets and Liabilities EENEE
At 30 June
At RANA=+H
31 December 2021
R-B-—& 2020 2019 2018 2017
+=ZHA=+—H —TE_TF —E-NF —ET-N\F —T—+tF
HK$’'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT BT T BT T BT T BT T
TOTAL ASSETS B E#E 743,863 774,077 938,139 1,129,175 1,232,745
TOTAL LIABILITIES & &4 & (484,843) (492,617) (238,164) (253,350) (277,377)
259,020 281,460 699,975 875,825 955,368

BOSSINI INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED Z¥isEEI R EEABR A A



Global distribution network
2R SR 4K

Hong Kong and Macau

BB KRR 26 (38)
Mainland China B AR 119 (154)
Singapore 703 14 (17)
Bangladesh @ itz 1(1)
Brunei 03 1(1)
Czech Republic 2(2)
7 A TIE ®
Dominican Republic 0 (4) ‘
% B pn A1
India ENfE 227 (230) ‘

Indonesia ENfE 0(8) . .

Laos 18 1(1)

Middle East* B * 189 (405) . ..‘

Myanmar #i f) 15 (19)

Nepal &7 00 o ® C I J
Reunion Island & B & 2(1)

Romania 7 5 fE 28 34

Rwanda =BT = 1(1) . . ‘
Thailand Z=E 80 (80)

Venezuela & Wtshr 8 (8)

Vietnam #irg 9 (6)

* The Middle East includes Armenia, Bahrain, Jordan, Kuwait, Lebanon, Oman, Qatar, Saudi Arabia and UAE

1 5 9 5 3 9 6 98 PREFCEET  OH M8 B REH - FE - FEE  DRIIARALERAERE
(2 09) (773) (982) (') Figures at 30 June 2020 are shown in brackets
REZBZBFRAZTHZEFUERRT

directly managed stores in Hong Kong and Macau,

mainland China and Singapore export franchised stores stores in about 24 countries and regions
RIAEB RS « fhEIARE R E AR PO RE R JELIRE24ER R KkitE
HEEEEREM
Regional retail performance indicators & T & 4 E&ERIRIEZ
Same-store sales growth (%)* Sales per sq. ft. (HK$) Net retail floor area (sq.ft.)
BEHERER (%)* BEHRHEERE (BH) BEEREEE(FAR)
Period ended Period ended
31 December 2021 31 December 2021 31 December 2021
BE-Z-—F HE-T-—F -
+=—A=+—HLHH +=A=+—HLBH +=A=+-—8”
Hong Kong and Macau &% &R -17% -19% 4,800 5,500 ¥13% 69,800 109,500 V36%
Mainland China A BIARE -19% -8% 1,400 1,500 V7% 162,200 140,700 215%
Singapore F N -9% -11% 3,900 3,400 M5% 17,800 22,200 ¥20%
Taiwan 47" n/a FiE A 1% - 2,500 $100% - = n/a TNE A
Total &#% -17% -14% 2,900 3,100 V6% 249,800 272,400 ¥ 8%

* Same-store sales growth is the comparison of sales of the same stores having full month operations in comparable periods
B fEHERIERAERERN L BRI TR A0 2 SHERRLR

* From discontinued operation
RESRIEFER



Our vision is to be the most preferreo
EVERYDAY WEAR BRAND

RS — AR EIER

Bossini International Holdings Limited (the “Company”; stock code on
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (“stock code”): 592) and its
subsidiaries (the “Group” or “Bossini”) is a renowned apparel brand
owner, retailer and franchiser in the region.

Headquartered in Hong Kong, Bossini launched its first retail store in
1987. Over the past three decades, it rapidly established an extensive
international operating platform and distribution network that
extended to a total of 698 stores worldwide. Among these, the Group
operated 159 directly managed stores in Hong Kong and Macau,
mainland China and Singapore. As for other overseas markets, the
Group cooperated with its business partners to establish a total of 539
export franchised stores in 21 countries, spanning from Southeast Asia,
the Middle East, Europe to as far as Central America.

Renowned for its comfortable, easy to mix-and-match, colourful and
energetic style, Bossini offers casual wear apparel products including
men’s, ladies’ and kids’ wear, which are designed to fit a wide range of
customer needs.
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AN’S LETTER TO SHAREHOLDERS
SR

Dear Shareholders,

On behalf of the Board of Directors, | would like to present the results of Bossni International Holdings Limited
and its subsidiaries for the period ended 31 December 2021.

Year 2021/22 was yet another challenging period for the retail apparel industry in many countries where Bossini
has presence. Mainland China's retail sector recorded positive sales growth in 2021 but the slowdown towards
the end of year underlined risks and challenges ahead as the Omicron variant of the COVID-19 is threatening the
global recovery. For Hong Kong, a new wave of COVID-19 outbreak to date has led to a further tightening on
various social activities and controls on international travel would likely undermine the retail growth prospects in
2022. The recent developments were pushing back the start date for the planned quarantine-free travel corridor
between Hong Kong and mainland China, which would weaken the near-term retail consumption from cross-
boundary leisure travel and business and hence the recovery of Hong Kong's retail industry.

During the period under review, we have diligently devised strategies on Bossini's new brand positioning and
product direction, while allocated more resources on product development, team reconstruction and related
activities. The “bossini” brand is currently going through a repositioning process. Our newly opened shops in
mainland China, carrying the new brand “bossini.X", exhibit Bossini's new image and character. Operationally,
we continued to improve efficiency by adjusting the combination and roles and responsibilities of the senior
management, reducing excessively loss-making stores, and trimming and simplifying less productive work
processes and expenditures with an objective to lower operating losses as soon as possible.

Despite our efforts to mitigate the current retail quandary, we expect to continue facing strong headwinds. There
is currently still no solid foundation for us to form an optimistic opinion about the Group's performance for at least
an extended period of time. Moreover, since “bossini.X" is set to have a fresh brand positioning, we are targeting
at whole new distribution channels, and the products will be substantially different from the brand “bossini”. We
are anticipating the potential downside risks involved and expecting that this investment period would span over
the next few years.

On behalf of the Board, | would like to take this opportunity to thank our shareholders, business partners
and customers for their support, trust and encouragement. My appreciation also goes to all our staff for their
continued dedication and contribution to Bossini, especially during the challenging time we experienced over the
past financial year.

Victor HERRERO
Chairman

Hong Kong
18 March 2022
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OVERVIEW

The financial year end date of the Company has been changed from 30 June to 31 December since the financial
period 2020/21 (for details, please refer to the Company’s announcement dated 25 February 2021). Accordingly,
the results covered 18-month period from 1 July 2020 to 31 December 2021 (“period ended 31 December
2021"). It should be noted that the financial data presented herein are being compared with that for financial
year 2019/20, the year ended 30 June 2020. The difference in duration of the two financial periods should be
considered when making year-on-year comparisons.

Group revenue for the period ended 31 December 2021 was HK$ 1,164 million (for the year ended 30 June 2020:
HK$1,092 million) at a gross margin of 51% (for the year ended 30 June 2020: 49%). Table 1 provides details of
the Group’s results of continuing operations in core markets. Loss attributable to owners of the Company for the
period under review was HK$340 million (for the year ended 30 June 2020: HK$368 million). The Group’s same-
store sales and same-store gross profit were down by 17% (for the year ended 30 June 2020: 14% decline) and
16% (for the year ended 30 June 2020: 21% decline) respectively. Net cash balance was HK$269 million (as at
30 June 2020: HK$116 million) as at 31 December 2021.

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND
HEEEN

e

R-ZB-ZT /——FHRPMEE ARFANMBRFEELERACHNA
“t+EERAT-A=+— R (FHEHE #2H4ARBRHBA-Z
Z—FZAZTRBMAMHK) c At AEEREA T _TF LA —
BRE-_T-—F+-_A=Z+—HBLE+N\EAHH(HZ=Z=—%F
+ZA=+—HB1EHHAD - BB IEE - ARERMEH T IR H
BN/ CEFMREE(BRE_E_SE A= THIEEE)WE
BEIEET R - BETIRFL RN BEEMET BHBHNER -

HEZZZ—F+-A=Z+—HILLHM  AEEKRFZAEB11.64ET
(BEZZ-ZFANAZTHLFE  BB10.92871) ° EFILAE51%
(BHEZZFZTFA=Z1THILFE 49%) - x— AAEBERZ LT
B RBECEEBEEFS ROBPANERRREEARGEEA
BES 4B (BE_Z_ZFA=-+THLEFE  B¥3.68(ET) °
AEEBNREHSERREENDAITKI7% (BE_Z=_ZF XA
ZTHILFE  14%%KiE) R16% (BE_ZT-_TF~A=-1+HLLHF
E:21%%E) R-TZ—F+-_A=+—0 B FELEHRAAEK
269 L (R=_ZE-ZFFA=1+H : BE1.1687L) °

BOSSINI INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED Z¥isEEFRERABR DA
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MENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
SENSEE

RESULTS OF CONTINUING OPERATIONS FERERBRE
% Table 1: Group'’s results of continuing operations K AREECHEBEREEBER
L e
(O]
— For the period ended For the year ended
o 31 December 2021 30 June 2020
S BE-2=--f% HE-_T_ZTF
3 t-A=+—HILHH NA=ZTHILFE
BETET I EERES L
S o Hong Kong and Macau &% & 329 681 59% 716 66% (5%)
R%W Mainland China A B A B 363 31% 296 27% 23%
%Eﬂ Singapore ¥ A3 120 10% 80 7% 50%
S S
g'&ﬂ Group revenue £ [ i 35 1,164 100% 1,092 100% 7%
U —
Gross profit & 7| 596 51% 534 49% 12%
Total operating expenses #2 & & [ &% (975) (84%) (885) (81%) (10%)
£ Loss from operating activities & i& % 7% &5 18 (322) (28%) (319) (29%) (1%)
T Finance costs & A A8 (15) (1%) (16) (1%) 9%
ﬂ; EBITDA R&HFIE - B8 - 3 B K B 34 B & A (141) (12%) (106) (10%) (33%)
e Loss attributable to owners #E B A 1L & 18 (340) (29%) (368) (34%) 7%
(o]
+ fih
S el Group same-store sales growth” (B A j5 &S &1L K- (17%) (14%)
& Group same-store gross profit growth” & [ [F] J& £ 71 &~ (16%) (21%)
Net cash at 31 December/30 June”
s R+-—A=+—B/~A=+BRzHR&FE* 269 116 132%
B
§ Inventory level at 31 December/30 June”
=) R+ZRA=+—HB/ /~NA=+BZEEKFE 187 210 (11%)
.f_g Inventory turnover (days) at 31 December/30 June”
s R+—A=+—A/RNA=t+R2HEEAEH(X)" 180 123 57
=
* Including continuing and discontinued operations * BIEREREROKIER

4 ANNUAL REPORT 2020/21 %%



Revenue and gross profit

The development of COVID-19 pandemic combined with the threat of the more infectious variants, especially the
lately known Omicron variant, continued to inflict severe negative impacts on the retail sectors and post downside
risks to the global economic outlook. During the period under review, the Group recorded revenue of HK$1,164
million (for the year ended 30 June 2020: HK$1,092 million). Gross profit was HK$596 million (for the year ended
30 June 2020: HK$534 million), with gross margin increased by 2% points to 51% (for the year ended 30 June
2020: 49%).

Total operating expenses and loss from operating activities

The total operating expenses to sales ratio increased to 84% (for the year ended 30 June 2020: 81%). The
pandemic had a negative impact on the assessment of the Group's assets and impact on the results for the period
under review. Consequently, the Group recognised non-cash impairment on assets of HK$119 million (for the
year ended 30 June 2020: HK$115 million) during the period under review.

Finance costs

Finance costs were HK$15 million (for the year ended 30 June 2020: HK$16 million), which comprised of interest
on loan from immediate holding company, interest on bank loans and interest on lease liabilities. The interest on
lease liabilities of HK$13 million (for the year ended 30 June 2020: HK$15 million) was due to the imputed interest
expense accrued on the outstanding balance of the lease liabilities.

Loss attributable to owners of the Company

Loss attributable to owners of the Company was HK$340 million (for the year ended 30 June 2020: HK$368
million), as shown in Table 1. Net margin was negative 29% (for the year ended 30 June 2020: negative 34%).
The preceding commentaries cite the reasons.

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND
HEEEN

Wy 55 K E F

FERERRSEENERNEXFAELENERBRSAE  LAZ
BEMMOmicronEfBRsE  #EVWTEXENREAEMTE I
HEREHEASERTITRAR - BIEER - REBGRSKEEE11.64
BL(BE_Z-_ZFSA=1THLFE : B%1092Ex) - T A
BES BRI (BE_S_TF X NA=-1THILFE  BEs34ET) -
FERERAPEINEE D EES 1% (BE_S_EF A SA=THIEFE:
49%) °

REBHXREEXRBER
MEBRIEHERL R LA EA% (ME-E - BF A=+ AL
FE:81%)  BREHARBEAENTEELARYE TYERNES
REEE - Bt AREREESNEEERRIERSAEAEE1.19
FL(BE-T-TEAASTALEE  BEIISET) -

A& R AN

MEXRKRBEISTET(BE_ZS_SF A=ZTHILEFE  B%
1.6T&T) EPERAERERARAERZHNE - RITERZHME R
MERBEZNE -HEARBRZMNEABBI13TEL(BE-_Z_FF
NAZTHALEFE - BE15TERL)  DThXBERAVEAEREES
BREFNEERNSMX -

AR ERAEBEER

BIKR—FTR  ARABHEAREBEASEEIABT(BE_ZT-F
FARA=ZTHIFE : B¥3.68ET) - FENER/A29% (BE_T
TEFRA=ZTHIEFE  834%) - EXEHNRRA -

BOSSINI INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED Z¥isEEFRERABR DA
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DISTRIBUTION NETWORK

As at 31 December 2021, the Group had a presence in 24 countries and regions around the world, and had 698
(as at 30 June 2020: 982) stores comprised of 159 (as at 30 June 2020: 209) directly managed stores and 539 (as

at 30 June 2020: 773) franchised stores.

MENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Table 2: Store composition by type and geographical location

RZEZ—F+-A=+—8 AEBEEKEM2HR4EBR K Mit
@ JEHE B B6ISH (MZEZTF/NA=+1H :982fH) r B1&159
MR- -ZFEXA=1T0H :2090) BEEEEEH N539E (R -F
ZEEXNASTB 7730 B REES -

R CREBEARMEE S ZEWD M

Hong Kong and Macau & & K& 2T
Mainland China /Bl K [
Singapore T N3k

Other countries £ b B 5%

Total #& 5t

R-ZB--%+-A=t—H

At 31 December 2021

At 30 June 2020
R-_E-_FEFA=1+H

Directly Franchised
managed stores stores Total
EREEER AT E R gt
26 — 26 38 - 38
119 - 119 154 - 154
14 - 14 17 - 17
- 539 539 - 773 773
159 539 698 209 773 982
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ANALYSIS BY MARKET
Hong Kong and Macau

During the period under review, the pandemic of COVID-19 continued to wreak havoc worldwide and brought
unprecedented challenges to the retail industry. Although the retail sector has shown signs of recovery since
the first quarter of 2021, retail sales volume remained far below the pre-pandemic level as inbound tourism
remained frozen, posing a constraint on the pace of recovery in the retail industry. For the period from July 2020
to December 2021, tourist arrivals plunged by 99.4% on a period-on-period basis according to the statistics from
the Hong Kong Tourism Board.

The pandemic of COVID-19 has severely affected the retail consumption in Hong Kong and Macau. Travel
restrictions and border control were in force, while a series of social-distancing measures were imposed, which
consequentially impaired the consumer sentiment and stifled customer traffic. During the period under review,
the third to the fifth waves of local COVID-19 infections at alarming levels induced stricter social distancing
measures, which sharply reduced shopping activities and foot traffic as a result.

During the period under review, revenue in Hong Kong and Macau including the retail and export franchising
business was HK$681 million (for the year ended 30 June 2020: HK$716 million). Same-store sales for directly
managed stores fell 17% (for the year ended 30 June 2020: 19% decline) while same-store gross profit declined
17% (for the year ended 2020: 27% decline). Total net retail floor area decreased to 69,800 sq. ft. (as at 30 June
2020: 109,500 sq. ft.), and sales per sq. ft. was HK$4,800 (for the year ended 30 June 2020: HK$5,500). The
number of directly managed stores was 26 (as at 30 June 2020: 38). Segment result was HK$169 million loss (for
the year ended 30 June 2020: HK$199 million loss).

The export franchising business operated a total number of stores to 539 (as at 30 June 2020: 773) with a
footprint across 21 countries in the period under review. The Group maintained its cautious yet strategic
international expansion programme to tap opportunities in the emerging markets.
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Mainland China

During the period under review, in and out of lockdown ahead of many other countries, the economy in mainland
China powered ahead while much of the world was still struggling. However, given the volatility of the pandemic
and the emergence of infectious variants, recovery in mainland China market has once again dampened.

Revenue in mainland China was HK$363 million (for the year ended 30 June 2020: HK$296 million). Same-store
sales dropped 19% (for the year ended 30 June 2020: 8% decline) and same-store gross profit registered a 17 %
decline (for the year ended 30 June 2020: 14% decline). Sales per sq. ft. was HK$1,400 (for the year ended 30
June 2020: HK$1,500) while total net retail floor area increased by 15% to 162,200 sq. ft. (as at 30 June 2020:
140,700 sq. ft.). There was a total of 119 (as at 30 June 2020: 154) directly managed stores in mainland China.
Segment result was HK$180 million loss (for the year ended 30 June 2020: HK$102 million loss).

Singapore

The revenue of Singapore operation was HK$120 million (for the year ended 30 June 2020: HK$80 million)
during the period under review. Same-store sales registered a 9% decline (for the year ended 30 June 2020: 11%
decline). Same-store gross profit recorded a 4% decline (for the year ended 30 June 2020: 13% decline). Total
net retail floor area decreased by 20% to 17,800 sq. ft. (as at 30 June 2020: 22,200 sq. ft.). Sales per sq. ft. was
HK$3,900 (for the year ended 30 June 2020: HK$3,400). The number of directly managed stores was 14 (as at
30 June 2020: 17). The segment result was HK$11 million profit (for the year ended 30 June 2020: HK$36 million
loss).
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Discontinued operation
Taiwan

The Group had ceased its retail operation in Taiwan by end of June 2020. Taiwan commenced operation in 1992
and had a significant role in promoting the brand name of the Group in the Southeast Asia region, thus spearing
ahead the Group's presence in the Greater China region. However, due to the continuing sluggish consumer
market in Taiwan over the last two decades, the Taiwan segment has been loss making since the financial year
of 2005/06. In the face of the challenging market conditions prevailing in Hong Kong and mainland China, the
two main retailing divisions of the Group, the Group believes that it is in the best interests of the Company and
its shareholders to cease the Taiwan operation so that the Group can better utilise its resources in its other core
markets.

CHANGE OF FINANCIAL YEAR END DATE

The financial year end date of the Company has been changed from 30 June to 31 December commencing from
the financial period 2020/21 (for details, please refer to the Company’s announcement dated 25 February 2021).
Accordingly, this set of results covered the period from 1 July 2020 to 31 December 2021. The comparative
figures, however, are for the year ended 30 June 2020, and hence are not directly comparable. The annual report
for the period ended 31 December 2021 will be distributed on or before 30 April 2022.
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FINANCIAL POSITION
Liquidity and Financial Resources

As at 31 December 2021, the Group had cash and bank balances of HK$269 million (as at 30 June 2020: HK$176
million) and net cash balance at HK$269 million (as at 30 June 2020: HK$116 million). The current ratio was at
1.74 times (as at 30 June 2020: 1.49 times) with a total liabilities to equity ratio at 187% (as at 30 June 2020:
175%). No bank borrowings was recorded as at 31 December 2021. As at 30 June 2020, bank borrowings of
HK$60 million were recorded and the gearing ratio determined by bank borrowings divided by total equity was
21%.

The Group had investments and operations in countries that use currencies other than United States dollar and
Hong Kong dollar, and therefore mitigated its foreign currency risk by entering into forward currency contracts
to reduce exposure to exchange rate fluctuations in material transactions denominated in those currencies.

As at 31 December 2021, the Group's inventory turnover days* was 180 days, compared to 123 days as at 30
June 2020. The return on equity ratio for the period under review was negative 126% (for the year ended 30 June

2020: negative 75%).

# Inventory held at period/year end divided by annualised cost of sales times 365 days
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Contingent Liabilities

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND
HEEEN

KERERMERE ZRITER

Bank guarantee given in lieu of utility and A=
property rental deposits

RREE
At 31 December 2021 At 30 June 2020
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HK$"000
BT

Human Capital

As at 31 December 2021, the Group employed 1,000 (as at 30 June 2020: 1,500) full-time equivalent employees
in Hong Kong and Macau, mainland China and Singapore.

The Group adhere to a policy of acquiring, nurturing and retaining talented employees. We treasure and promote
the team spirit, and strive to cultivate a proactive and ever-improving culture. Workshops in effective management
and certified programmes were offered for office and shop staff at all levels.

We believe a vibrant and competent workforce is indispensable in driving business growth. We treasure
knowledge sharing and life-long learning. We encourage employees to progress and excel every day through the
"bossini e-academy”, our e-platform which is devised to offer practical and experience-based knowledge and
skills in customer service, retailing, products, and other latest marketing information.

We also continued to remunerate employees based on performance, including discretionary bonuses, share
options and wide-ranging employee benefits such as insurance and retirement schemes.
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MENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
SENSEE

USE OF PROCEEDS FROM RIGHTS ISSUE

On 12 April 2021, the Company issued 821,916,697 rights shares, on the basis of one (1) rights share for every
two (2) then existing shares, at a price of HK$0.360 per rights share (the “Rights Issue”). Upon completion of the
Rights Issue, the Company received net cash proceeds of approximately HK$294 million (the “Net Proceeds”).

AR FT 18 3R &

R-T-—FWA+—A  AARRSMQREBRERHEE—()
BRALIRARAD 2 ZE A AR AR ARAD Y 45 0.3607T 2 (B4 5477821,916,607
BRELRRAEAD ([$2AR)) - FER BRI - A A RIEWRES B G B T4

Business review
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The Company intended to apply the Net Proceeds as to: (i) approximately HK$100 million for the repayment of

shareholder’s loan; and (ii) approximately HK$194 million for general working capital.
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TAZ : ()4Ek1.008T
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The following table sets forth the information in relation to the use of the Net Proceeds raised from the Rights TREYEBERAEBRAESHRBEENELR -
- Issue:
3.8
QE I Actual use of Net Proceeds
3%@1 Intended use of Net Proceeds as disclosed up to 31 December 2021 Unutilised Net Proceeds Intended use and
g gi—' in the prospectus dated 17 March 2021 as originally intended as at 31 December 2021 expected timeline
o 2k REBREARER BE-2--—F
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BREMABRRBEMEBE

- HK$100 million for repayment of shareholder’s loan HK$100 million - -

glllll BE1.00ETTAREERRER B #1.00187T

S

Eﬁ HK$60 million for the Group’s capital expenditure for HK$33 million HK$27 million From May 2021 to April 2022 according

%’m its expansion in the mainland China BEI3ITETT BE2TTETT to the Group's network expansion

T BECOTETARASEEPEKERKNEARFHE timeline

Sl R A E W R IEOR R

= - —FRAE-T__FNA
HK$10 million to upgrade the Group’s information HK$7 million HK$3 million During the second half of 2021 and

kS technology systems BETAET BEIEET throughout 2022
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o

H_ég HK$124 million for the Group's additional expenses in light of the ~ HK$104 million HK$20 million From May 2021 to April 2022
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§ B 24ETTAR N A EBEF B RREITERE R

ic TROR A8 4% T &= R BN X

12

ANNUAL REPORT 2020/21 %%



OUTLOOK

During the period under review, we have started establishing strategies on Bossini’s new brand positioning and
product direction, while allocated more resources on product development, team reconstruction and related
activities. The “bossini” brand is currently going through a repositioning process. Meanwhile, the Group
continued to improve its operating efficiency by adjusting the combination and roles and responsibilities of the
senior management, reducing excessively loss-making stores, and trimming and simplifying less productive work
processes and expenditures with an objective to lower operating losses as soon as possible.

The operating environment throughout the period under review continued to be challenging. The COVID-19
pandemic has disrupted global economic and retail activities. Although mainland China’s retail sector recorded
positive sales growth in 2021, the slowdown towards the end of year underlined risks and challenges ahead as
the Omicron variant COVID-19 infections has brought new and unknown risks going forward. For Hong Kong, the
fifth and most severe wave of COVID-19 outbreak to date has led to further tightening on various social activities
and controls on international travel would likely undermine the retail growth prospects in 2022. The recent
developments were pushing back the start date for the planned quarantine-free travel corridor between Hong
Kong and mainland China, which would weaken the near-term retail consumption from cross-boundary leisure
travel and business and hence the recovery of Hong Kong’s retail industry. Despite this challenging operating
environment, we are still encountering several landlords unwilling to provide reasonable rent concessions for our
stores.

In spite of the unfavourable external factors, the Group has started establishing new distribution channels in
mainland China with shops carrying the new brand “bossini.X” and exhibiting Bossini’s new image and character.
Going forward, the execution of our network expansion strategy in mainland China would mainly through
opening directly managed and franchised stores in appropriate shopping malls and distribution channels in
various provinces and cities.

Since “bossini.X" is set to have a fresh brand positioning, we are targeting at whole new distribution channels,
and the products will be substantially different from the brand “bossini”. We expect that this investment period
would span over the next few years with focus in particular on product development and channel expansion, while
we also anticipate the potential downside risks involved. Taking these internal and external factors into account,
we are in the view that the Group could possibly continue to incur losses during the investment period.
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The Board is committed to maintain a solid and transparent framework of corporate governance for the Company
and its subsidiaries and will continue to review its effectiveness.

The Company has adopted the Code Provisions (“Code Provisions”) as stated in the Corporate Governance Code
and Corporate Governance Report (“CG Code") contained in Appendix 14 to the Rules governing the Listing of
Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (“Listing Rules”) as the Corporate Governance Code
("Code”) of the Company. The Board is committed to complying with the Code Provisions as stated in the CG
Code to the extent that the directors of the Company (“Directors”) consider it is applicable and practical to the
Company.

During the period under review, the Company has complied with the Code Provisions in the CG Code.

Board of Directors
Responsibilities

The overall management of the Company’s business is vested in the Board, which assumes the responsibility for
the leadership and control of the Group and is collectively responsible for promoting the business of the Group
by directing and supervising the Group's affairs. All the Directors should make decisions objectively in the best
interests of the Company.

The functions of the Board are carried out either directly or through the Board committees. To ensure the Board
is in a position to exercise its powers in an informed manner, management provides monthly management
accounts and updates to the Directors who also have full and timely access to all relevant information and may
take independent professional advice if necessary.

The authorities reserved to the Audit Committee, Remuneration Committee and Nomination Committee are more
particularly discussed below.
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Board composition

The composition of the Board reflects the necessary balance of skills and experience desirable for effective
leadership of the Company and independence in decision making.

The Board currently comprises 8 Directors in total, with 3 Executive Directors, 2 Non-executive Directors and 3
Independent Non-executive Directors (“INED"”) whose biographical details are set out in “Directors’ profiles”
section on pages 34 to 37 and are posted on the Company’s website at www.bossini.com. The Directors during
the period under review and up to the date of this report were as follows:

Executive Directors

Mr. CHEUNG Chi (Co-Chief Executive Officer) (appointed on 24 July 2020)

Mr. ZHAO lJianguo (appointed on 24 July 2020)

Mr. CHAN Cheuk Him Paul

Mr. MAK Tak Cheong Edmund (Co-Chief Executive Officer) (retired on 17 November 2020)

Non-executive Directors

Mr. Victor HERRERO (Chairman) (appointed on 24 July 2020)
Mr. LAW Ching Kit Bosco (appointed on 24 July 2020)

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. LEE Kwok Ming (appointed on 24 July 2020)
Prof. SIN Yat Ming

Mr. CHEONG Shin Keong

Ms. LEUNG Mei Han (resigned on 14 August 2020)
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For the period ended 31 December 2021, the Company had 3 Board committees. The table below provides
membership information of these committees on which each Director serves.

BE_T_—F+_A=1T—HLLHH ARARE=-FEEZEE
TERRHBESEeNBHEELZTEEPMEENRL -

Audit Committee Remuneration Committee Nomination Committee
Name of Directors EEH & EREESY FMEES REZEY
Mr. CHEUNG Chi 5R%5 5t A& - M M
Mr. ZHAO Jianguo jf# 2 Bl 5t 4 - - -
Mr. CHAN Cheuk Him Paul & £ 3t 7t 4 - - -
Mr. Victor HERRERO %t 4 - - C
Mr. LAW Ching Kit Bosco Z& IE /8 56 4 = = =
Mr. LEE Kwok Ming ZX[EI R %t 4 C M M
Prof. SIN Yat Ming )% H BB 3% M C M
Mr. CHEONG Shin Keong Zf & 38 5t 4 M M M
Notes: B 5T
C  Chairman of the relevant Board committees C EHEFZESHNER
M Member of the relevant Board committees M EFHEZZEEHKE

The Directors had no financial, business, family or other material or relevant relationship with each other as at 31
December 2021.

Independent Non-executive Directors

During the period under review, the Board at all times met the requirements of the Listing Rules relating to
the appointment of at least 3 INEDs with at least 1 INED possessing appropriate professional qualifications, or
accounting or related financial management expertise.

The Company has received written annual confirmation from each INED of his independence pursuant to
Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. All INEDs are also members of the Company’s Audit Committee, Remuneration
Committee and Nomination Committee. These INEDs are high calibre executives who bring a diversified range
of expertise and serve the crucial function of providing checks and balances for safeguarding the interests of
shareholders of the Company (the “Shareholders”) and the Group as a whole.
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All INEDs of the Company are appointed for specific terms, their length of service with the Company is either (i)
1 year from the dates of their appointments which will be automatically renewed or (ii) for a period of 3 years
from the dates of their appointments, unless early termination by either party serving not less than 3 months prior
written notice or upon mutual consent on short notice. They are subject to retirement by rotation and re-election
at annual general meetings of the Company (“AGM") in accordance with the Bye-Laws of the Company.

Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

The roles of Chairman and Chief Executive Officer are separated. Currently, Mr. Victor HERRERO is the Chairman
and Mr. CHEUNG Chi and Mr. CHANG Min Huei are the Co-Chief Executive Officers. The positions of Chairman
and the Chief Executive Officer are held by separate individuals in order to preserve independence and a balance
of views and judgement.

The responsibilities of the Chairman and the Chief Executive Officer are clearly defined and set out in writing. The
Chairman is responsible for the overall direction of the Group. Supported by the other Executive Directors and
senior management, the Chief Executive Officer is responsible for the overall management and strategic planning
of the Group.

Appointment and Re-election of Directors

The Company has established the Nomination Committee with specific written terms of reference. For
appointment of a new Director, the background, experience, professional skills, availability to commit to the
affairs of the Company and, in case of INED, the independence requirements set out in the Listing Rules, of the
potential appointee will be taken into consideration.
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Pursuant to the Bye-Laws of the Company, all newly appointed Directors shall hold office until the next AGM
and shall then be eligible for re-election. At each AGM, one-third of the Directors for the time being, or if their
number is not three or a multiple of three, then the number nearest to but not exceeding one-third, shall retire
from office by rotation provided that every Director, save any Director holding office as Chairman or Managing
Director, including those appointed for a specific term shall be subject to retirement by rotation at least once every
three years. The Directors to retire in every year shall be those who have been longest in office since their last
election but as between persons who became Directors on the same day shall be determined by lot, unless they
otherwise agree between themselves. The retiring Directors shall be eligible for re-election.

The Chairman of the Company is not subject to retirement by rotation. The Board considers that the continuity
of the Chairman of the Company and the leadership is crucial in maintaining the stability of the Group’s business
operations.

The Company’s circular to be dispatched to Shareholders on or about 19 April 2022 will contain detailed
information of the Directors standing for re-election.

Training for Directors

Each newly appointed Director receives comprehensive, formal and tailored induction on his appointment, so as
to ensure that he has appropriate understanding of the business and operations of the Group and that he is fully
aware of his responsibilities and obligations under the Listing Rules and relevant regulatory requirements. There
are also arrangements in place for providing continuing briefing and professional development to Directors at the
Company’s expense whenever necessary.

The Company provides regular updates and presentations on changes and developments relating to the Group’s
business and the legislative and regulatory environments to the Directors at regular Board meetings.

The Directors are committed to complying with Code Provision A.6.5 of the CG Code on Directors’ training. All

Directors have participated in continuous professional development to develop and refresh their knowledge and
skills and provided a record of training they received for the period ended 31 December 2021 to the Company.
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The individual training record of each Director received for the period ended 31 December 2021 is summarised EEERNEE T - Ft+-_A=1t—HILHEmEXEI 2@
below: BT

Attending seminars/forums/
workshops/conferences relevant

Attending internal briefing sessions to the business or directors’ duties
Reading regulatory updates (including delivery of speeches) HEAHAEBIESHEN
Name of Directors E=# & RMEEERENERER HEADBNEHRS (BERMER) MNE Wi TS 'S

Mr. CHEUNG Chi sk & &£ v/ v v
Mr. ZHAO Jianguo 8 Bl 5t & v v v/ _ 4
Mr. CHAN Cheuk Him Paul [ = 5 % 4 v v v Ff?gg
Mr. Victor HERRERO 4t 4 a 4 v/ *_L:g g
Mr. LAW Ching Kit Bosco 7 IE 7R 5t 4 v v v Bo s
Mr. LEE Kwok Ming ZE [ BF % 4 v v/ v W= S
Prof. SIN Yat Ming & A BAZU#% v v v  EES
Mr. CHEONG Shin Keong 5% & % 4 v v v
Directors’ Attendance and Time Commitments BE 2 HE R KT &R

For the period ended 31 December 2021, the Board met 13 times including for considering and approving the HEZT - F+ZA=+—HLHB EFESERTT2XEE -

financial results for the period ended 31 December 2021, financial results for the 6 months ended 31 December FEZERIABE T - —F+-_A=1+—B I HENMBEE -

2020, financial results for the 12 months ended 30 June 2021 and continuing connected transactions. At these B2 2 ZF+ - A=+—HINEAANYKESE HE_T ——

board meetings, the Board also reviewed and discussed the Group’s business updates and strategies. FRAZTHLETZERNMBKEERFEBERS - NZZFEFS
CEL EEFNRITETRAEENESER KR -
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The individual attendance record of each Director at the meetings of the Board, Audit Committee, Remuneration

Committee, Nomination Committee and Annual General Meeting for the period ended 31 December 2021 is set

out below:

R%%E’%ﬁﬁfgi—ﬁ-%_ A=t—RIHHENESFS
CFMEEE -

EZELE
REZBEERRBRRBFEANG ZHFERHIIMT

Number of meetings attended/held

Audit
Committee Meeting

BERZEEERE

Board Meeting
Name of Directors EE# & EEEER

Remuneration
Committee Meeting

FHZEEER

HER /SERE

2021 Annual
General Meeting
—B=-F

BRRBFAE

2020 Annual
Nomination General Meeting
Committee Meeting

REZEEER

Executive Directors 11T &%

Mr. CHEUNG Chi 58 %t 4 13/13 N/A
Mr. ZHAO Jianguo i 2B 5%t 4 13/13 N/A
Mr. CHAN Cheuk Him Paul ff £ 5 5L 4 13/13 N/A
Non-executive Directors ¥ TEE

Mr. Victor HERRERO % 4 13/13 N/A
Mr. LAW Ching Kit Bosco % IE /N5 4 13/13 N/A
Independent Non-executive Directors B #HTEE

Mr. LEE Kwok Ming FBIRA 5% 4 13/13 6/6
Prof. SIN Yat Ming & B BB # % 13/13 6/6
Mr. CHEONG Shin Keong #5325 % 4 11/13 6/6

6/6 3/3 171 11
N/A N/A 171 11
N/A N/A 171 11
N/A 3/3 171 11
N/A N/A 171 11
6/6 3/3 171 11
6/6 3/3 171 11
5/6 3/3 171 11

The Chairman of the Board, Chairman of the Audit Committee, Chairman of the Remuneration Committee,
Chairman of the Nomination Committee and the Company’s external auditor attended the 2020 and 2021
annual general meeting and were available to answer questions.

Practices and conduct of meetings
Notices of regular Board meetings are served to all Directors at least 14 days before the meetings. For other Board

and committee meetings, reasonable notice is generally given.

Board papers together with all appropriate, complete and reliable information are generally sent to all Directors
at least 3 days before each Board meeting or committee meeting to keep the Directors apprised of the latest
developments and financial position of the Company and to enable them to make informed decisions.
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The Board meets regularly at least 4 times every year. The Directors participated in person or through electronic
means of communication. Regular Board meetings are scheduled in the prior year to provide sufficient notice
to the Directors and facilitate the maximum attendance of the Directors. The Board members are given an
opportunity to include additional matters for discussion and are supplied with relevant information by the senior
management and reports relating to the Group’s operational and financial performance before the scheduled
Board meetings in a timely manner.

Draft and final versions of minutes of Board and Committee meetings will be sent to all Directors or Committee
members for their comments and records respectively. The Board members can seek independent professional
advice in performing their duties at the Group’s expense, if necessary.

If a Director has a conflict of interest in a transaction to be considered by the Board and the Board has determined
this interest to be material, the individual is required to declare his interest and to abstain from voting. At least
1 INED who has no material interest in the transaction shall be present at the full Board meeting approving such
transaction.

Board Committees

For the period ended 31 December 2021, the Company had 3 committees, namely, the Audit Committee,
Remuneration Committee and Nomination Committee, for overseeing particular aspects of the Company’s affairs.
Terms of reference of the Audit Committee, Remuneration Committee and Nomination Committee are available
on the Stock Exchange’s website and the Company’s website at www.bossini.com. The Board committees are
provided with sufficient resources to discharge their duties and, upon reasonable request, are able to seek
independent professional advice in appropriate circumstances, at the Company’s expense. The attendance of
individual committee members is set out hereinabove.

Audit Committee

The Audit Committee plays a vital role in corporate governance of the Group. For the period ended 31 December
2021, it comprised 3 INEDs, namely Mr. LEE Kwok Ming, Prof. SIN Yat Ming and Mr. CHEONG Shin Keong. Mr.
Lee, who has professional qualifications in accounting and financial management expertise, is the Chairman of
the Audit Committee. No member of the Audit Committee is a former partner of the Company’s existing external
auditors. The Audit Committee is provided with sufficient resources, including the advice of external auditors and
Internal Audit Department to discharge its duties. The Audit Committee has reviewed the consolidated financial
results for the period ended 31 December 2021.
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The major roles and functions of the Audit Committee are set out clearly in the terms of reference which are of
no less exacting terms than those set out in the CG Code and are available on the Company’s website. The terms
of reference for the Audit Committee are also aligned with the guidelines issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants (the “HKICPA").

The Audit Committee met 6 times during the period to review the accounting policies and practices adopted
by the Group with an Executive Director, the Company’s external auditors and risk management and internal
control review advisor. It also discuss matters related to financial reporting, internal controls, risk management,
appointment of external auditors and corporate governance. The Audit Committee is also responsible for
reviewing the interim and annual results of the Group. The attendance of individual committee members is set
out hereinabove.

The major works of the Audit Committee during the period were as follows:

(@) reviewed the interim financial results for the 6 months ended 31 December 2020, second interim financial
results for the 12 months ended 30 June 2021 and the financial results for the period ended 31 December
2021;

(b) reviewed the report on internal audit results and internal controls for the 6 months ended 31 December

2020, for the 12 months ended 30 June 2021 and for the period ended 31 December 2021 prepared by risk
management and internal control review advisor; and

(c) approved and confirmed the annual audit plan for the year ending 31 December 2022 of risk management
and internal control review advisor.

The Audit Committee received written confirmation from the external auditor on its independence and objectivity
as required by the HKICPA.
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Remuneration Committee

The Company has established the Remuneration Committee with specific written terms of reference. For the
period ended 31 December 2021, the Remuneration Committee consisted of 1 Executive Director and 3 INEDs,
namely Mr. CHEUNG Chi, Mr. LEE Kwok Ming, Prof. SIN Yat Ming and Mr. CHEONG Shin Keong. Prof, Sin is the
Chairman for the Remuneration Committee. The Remuneration Committee is provided with sufficient resources
to discharge its duties. The major roles and functions of the Remuneration Committee are set out clearly in the
terms of reference which included the duties specified in the CG Code and are available on the Company’s
website. The attendance of individual committee members is set out hereinabove.

No Director is involved in any decisions as to his own remuneration. The Group’s remuneration policy seeks to
provide a fair market remuneration so as to attract, retain and motivate high quality staff. The Company adopted
Code Provision B.1.2(c)(ii) of the CG Code.

During the period under review, the Remuneration Committee held 6 meetings. The major works of the
Remuneration Committee during the period were as follows:

(@) recommended the proposed adjustments to the remuneration of Executive Directors and their proposed
performance bonus; and

(b) recommended the proposed changes to the remuneration packages of INEDs.

Remuneration of Senior Management

The remuneration of the members of the senior management by band for the period ended 31 December 2021
is set out below:
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Further particulars regarding Directors’ remuneration and the five highest paid employees as required to be
disclosed pursuant to Appendix 16 to the Listing Rules are set out in notes 9 and 10 to the consolidated financial
statements, respectively.

Nomination Committee

For the period ended 31 December 2021, the Nomination Committee comprised 5 members, the majority of
which were INEDs, namely Mr. Victor HERRERO (Chairman of the committee), Mr. CHEUNG Chi, Mr. LEE Kwok
Ming, Prof. SIN Yat Ming and Mr. CHEONG Shin Keong. The attendance of individual committee members is set
out hereinabove.

The main duties of the Nomination Committee include the following:

(@) review the structure, size and diversity (including without limitation, gender, age, cultural and educational
background or professional experience) of the Board at least annually and make recommendations on any
proposed changes to the Board to complement the Company’s corporate strategy;

identify individuals suitably qualified to become Board members and select or make recommendations to
the Board on the selection of individuals nominated for directorships. In identifying suitable candidates, the
Committee shall consider candidates on merit and against the objective criteria, with due regard for the
benefits of diversity on the Board;

review the Board Diversity Policy, as appropriate; and review the objectives that the Board has set for
implementing the Board Diversity Policy, and the progress on achieving the objectives; and make disclosure
of its review results in the Corporate Governance Report annually;

assess the independence of INEDs; and
make recommendations to the Board on the appointment or re-appointment of Directors and succession
planning for Directors, in particular the Chairman and the Chief Executive Officer, taking into account the

Company’s corporate strategy and the mix of skills, knowledge, experience and diversity needed in the
future, together with the Board, as appropriate.
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During the period under review, the Nomination Committee held 3 meetings to review the structure, size and
composition of the Board, to assess the independence of the Independent Non-executive Directors and to review
the re-appointment of Directors.

Board Diversity Policy

The Company recognises and embraces the benefits of having a diverse Board to enhance the quality of its
performance. Selection of candidates will be based on a range of diversity perspectives, including but not limited
to gender, age, cultural and educational background, ethnicity, professional experience, skills, knowledge and
length of service. The ultimate decision will be based on merit and contribution that the selected candidates will
bring to the Board.

Directors’ and Officers’ Liabilities Insurance

Appropriate insurance cover for Directors’ and officers’ liabilities in respect of legal actions against the Directors
and officers of the Company and its subsidiaries arising out of corporate activities of the Group has been arranged
by the Company.
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Corporate Governance Functions

The Board is also responsible for performing the corporate governance duties with its written terms of reference
as set out below:

(@) to develop and review the Company’s policies and practices on corporate governance;

(b) to review and monitor the training and continuous professional development of Directors and senior
management;

(c) to review and monitor the Company’s policies and practices on compliance with legal and regulatory
requirements;

(d) to develop, review and monitor the code of conduct and compliance manual (if any) applicable to employees
and Directors; and

(e) to review the Company’s compliance with the corporate governance code and disclosure in the Corporate
Governance Report.

During the period under review, the Board has reviewed the Company’s corporate governance practices and the
compliance with the CG Code and disclosure in the Corporate Governance Report in the board meeting held in
March 2022.

Company Secretary

Ms. WONG Suk May joined the Group in 2004 and has been the Company Secretary of the Company since 2007.
She is an employee of a subsidiary of the Company and has day-to-day knowledge of the Company’s affairs. As
the Company Secretary, Ms. Wong supports the Board by ensuring board procedures and all applicable law, rules
and regulations are followed. She is responsible for advising the Board on governance matters and facilitates
induction and professional development of the Directors. The appointment and dismissal of the company
secretary are subject to the Board approval in accordance with the Bye-Laws. Whilst the Company Secretary
reports to the Chief Executive Officer on the Group’s company secretarial and corporate governance matters, all
Directors have access to the advice and services of the Company Secretary. Pursuant to Rule 3.29 of the Listing
Rules, the Company Secretary has taken no less than 15 hours of relevant professional training in the period under
review.
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Risk Management and Internal Control

The management has the responsibility to maintain appropriate and effective risk management and internal
control systems, and the Board has the responsibility to review and monitor the effectiveness of the Group's
risk management and internal control systems at least annually covering financial, operational and compliance
controls, to ensure that the systems in place are adequate and effective.

The Group’s risk management and internal control systems are, however, designed to manage rather than
eliminate the risk of failure to achieve business objectives, and can only provide reasonable and not absolute
assurance against material misstatement or loss.

During the period, the Group has engaged RSM Consulting (Hong Kong) Limited (“RSM"), as its risk management
and internal control review advisor for the period ended 31 December 2021, to review the Group's risk
management system.

The procedures used to identify, evaluate and manage major risks by the Group are summarised as follows:

Risk Identification

o Identifies risks that may potentially affect the Group’s business and operations.

Risk Assessment

e Assesses the risks identified by using the assessment criteria developed by the management; and
o Considers the impact on the business and the likelihood of their occurrence.

Risk Response

o Prioritises the risks by comparing the results of the risk assessment; and
o Determines the risk management strategies and internal control procedures to prevent, avoid or mitigate the
risks.
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Risk Monitoring and Reporting

o Performs ongoing and periodic monitoring of the risks and ensures that appropriate internal control
procedures are in place;

o Revises the risk management strategies and internal control procedures in case of any significant change of
situation; and

o Reports the results of risk monitoring to the management and the Board regularly.

The Board considered that major risks of the Group were managed within the acceptable level and the
management will continue to monitor the residual risks and report to the Board on an ongoing basis.

The management and various departments conduct periodic self-assessment of the effectiveness of the
internal control policies and procedures. RSM was engaged and assisted the Group to perform a review of the
effectiveness of the Group’s internal control systems that covers financial, operational and compliance controls.

The Board, supported by the Audit Committee, is directly responsible for risk management and internal control
systems of the Group and for reviewing its effectiveness. Based on the reviews performed by the management,
comments from the Audit Committee and recommendations for areas of improvement from external auditor and
risk management and internal control review advisor, the Board is of the view that the Group’s risk management
and internal control systems are effective and adequate for the period ended 31 December 2021.

The Company maintains a framework for the handling and dissemination of inside information and the disclosure
policy of the framework sets out the procedures and internal controls to ensure inside information remains
confidential until such information is appropriately disclosed and the announcement of such information is made
in a timely manner in compliance with the SFO and the Listing Rules.
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Dividend Policy

Pursuant to Code Provision E.1.5 of the CG Code, the Company has adopted a policy with regard to the
declaration of dividends. Such policy aims to allow shareholders to participate in the Company’s profits and for
the Company to retain adequate reserves for future growth.

The dividend policy also allows the Company to declare and pay special dividends and/or other distribution in
addition to the interim and final dividends. The declaration and payment of dividends are determined at the sole
discretion of the Board, subject to the approval of the shareholders of the Company, where appropriate. The
payment of dividend is also subject to any restrictions under the Bermuda law and Bye-Laws. The Board shall
review from time to time the dividend policy and shall amend as necessary.

Dividends paid to shareholders may be in cash, or scrip dividend, or distribution in specie, or a combination of
the aforesaid. In proposing any dividend payout and/or determining the form, frequency and/or the amount
of such dividend payout, the Board shall take into account, inter alia: the operating fund required to provide
sufficient cash to meet the Group’s day-to-day financial obligations in a timely manner; the expected capital
expenditure, future expansion, other investment plan and other funding requirements; actual and expected
financial performance, financial conditions and cash flow; retained profits and distributable reserves, and other
factors that the Directors deem appropriate etc.
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Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors

The Bossini Group Policy laid down a code of conduct regarding the director’s securities transactions in terms
as stringent as those set out in the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the
“"Model Code"”) contained in Appendix 10 of the Listing Rules. Based on the specific enquiry made, all Directors
have confirmed that they have complied with the Bossini Group Policy throughout the year. Employees are
not encouraged to deal in the securities of the Company within 30 days and 60 days before the interim and
the annual results announcements respectively and prohibited to make use of inside information to deal in the
securities of the Company.

Directors’ interest as at 31 December 2021 in the shares and underlying shares of the Company and its associated
corporation (within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (the “SFO") are set out on
pages 44 to 46.

Financial Reporting and External Auditors’ Remuneration

The Directors acknowledge the responsibility for preparing the financial statements which give a true and fair view
of the financial position and of the financial performance and cash flows of the Group on a going concern basis
with the support from the Finance Department. The responsibilities of the Group's external auditor with respect
to the financial statements are set out in the Independent Auditor’s Report on pages 68 to 76.

For the period ended 31 December 2021, the auditors’ remuneration in relation to statutory audit work of the
Group amounted to HK$2.84 million, of which a sum of HK$2.29 million was paid to the Group’s principal
external auditor, PricewaterhouseCoopers (“PwC"). The remuneration for PwC in respect of audit services and
non-audit services amounted to approximately HK$2.29 million and HK$2.53 million respectively.
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Responsibilities in respect of the Financial Statements

The Board is responsible for presenting a balanced, clear and understandable assessment in annual and interim
reports and other financial disclosures required under the Listing Rules and other regulatory requirements.
The Directors acknowledge their responsibilities for preparing the financial statements of the Company for the
period ended 31 December 2021. The statement of the external auditor of the Company about their reporting
responsibilities on the financial statements is set out in the “Independent Auditor’s Report” contained in this
annual report.

Shareholders’ Rights

The Company has only one class of shares. All shares have the same voting rights and are entitled to the dividend
declared. The rights of the Shareholders are set out in, among other things, the Bye-Laws and the Companies Act
1981 of Bermuda (“Company Act”).

Convening special general meeting on requisition

Shareholders holding at the date of deposit of the requisition not less than one-tenth of the paid up capital of
the Company carrying the right of voting at general meetings of the Company shall have the right, by written
requisition to the Board or the secretary of the Company or at the registered office of the Company, to require a
special general meeting to be called by the Board for the transaction of any business specified in such requisition
pursuant to Section 74 of the Companies Act. If within 21 days of such deposit the Board fails to proceed to
convene such meeting, the requisitionists themselves may do so in accordance with the provision of Section 74(3)
of the Companies Act.

The written requisition requiring a special general meeting to be called can be sent to the principal place of
business of the Company as set out in the “Company Information” section of this annual report for the attention
of the Company Secretary.
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Proposing resolution at general meeting

Shareholders may by written requisition request for including a resolution relating to matters in a general meeting
by following the requirements and procedures as set out in Sections 79 and 80 of the Companies Act.

Subject to the provisions of the above-mentioned sections of the Companies Act, on the written requisition of
members representing not less than one-twentieth of the total voting rights or 100 members, at the expense of
the requisitionists unless the Company otherwise resolves, the Company shall give Shareholders notice of any
resolution which may properly be moved and is intended to be moved at that meeting and a relevant statement.

Procedures for nomination of Directors for election

Under Bye-Law 102(A) of the Bye-Laws, Shareholders are entitled to elect any person to be a Director at the
annual general meeting or at any special general meeting by following the requirement set out in Bye-Law 103 of
the Bye-Laws. Details of the procedures for nomination of Directors for election are available on the Company’s
website at www.bossini.com.

Notice of general meetings and “bundling” resolutions

Pursuant to Code Provision E.1.3, the Company will arrange for the notice to Shareholders to be sent for annual
general meetings at least 20 clear business days before the meeting and to be sent at least 10 clear business days
for all other general meetings. Separate resolutions are proposed at general meetings on each substantial issue,
including the election of individual Directors. Where bundling the resolutions cannot be avoided, the Company
shall explain the reasons and material implications in the notice of the meeting.

Voting by poll

The rights of Shareholders and the procedures for demanding a poll on resolutions at general meetings are
contained in the Bye-Laws. In accordance with Rule 13.39(4) of the Listing Rules, all resolutions put to vote at
general meetings of the Company are taken by way of poll except where the chairman of the meeting, in good
faith, decides to allow a resolution which relates purely to a procedural or administrative matter to be voted
on by a show of hands. Details of the poll voting procedures will be set out in the circular sent to Shareholders
prior to each meeting. The chairman of a meeting shall ensure that an explanation is provided of the detailed
procedures for conducting a poll and answer any questions from Shareholders on voting by poll. After each
general meeting, the poll results will be published on the websites of the Stock Exchange and the Company in the
manner prescribed under Rule 13.39(5) of the Listing Rules.
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Shareholders’ Communication Policy

The Board is committed to providing clear and full information on the Group to Shareholders through the
publication of notices, announcements, circulars, interim and annual reports. Moreover, additional information
is also available to Shareholders through the Investor Relations section on the Company’s website. The Board
also welcomes the views of Shareholders on matters affecting the Group and encourages them to attend
Shareholder’s meetings to communicate any concerns they might have with the Board or management directly.
Shareholders could also send email directly at IR@bossini.com for any enquiries.

Corporate Transparency and Investor Relations

The Group disseminates information on business development on a timely basis through various channels to
maintain transparency of its operation. The Company meets individually with analysts and institutional investors
from time to time to facilitate their analysis on the Group. The Company also holds group meetings with them in
which the Company’s management directly distributes relevant information and addresses to their queries.

There was no significant change in the Company’s constitutional documents for the period ended 31 December
2021.
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Executive Directors

Mr. CHEUNG Chi, aged 55, was appointed as the Co-Chief Executive Officer in July 2020 and is also a member
of the Remuneration Committee and Nomination Committee of the Company. He is currently the chief financial
officer and company secretary of Viva China Holdings Limited (”Viva China”) (stock code: 8032). Mr. Cheung
is also a director of Dragon Leap Developments Limited (“Dragon Leap”), being the substantial shareholder of
the Company (within the meaning of the Securities and Futures Ordinance). He has over 27 years’ experience
in financial management, corporate finance and administrative management. Mr. Cheung also possesses
extensive experience in apparel business. He was an executive director and the chief financial officer of Win
Hanverky Holdings Limited (stock code: 3322), an integrated sportswear manufacturer, distributor and retailer for
international sports and fashion brands, the shares of which are listed on the Main Board of The Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”). He was the executive vice president and chief financial officer of
Aspire Holdings Limited, which is a member of China Mobile Limited. Mr. Cheung was also the chief financial
officer of eBIS Company Ltd. and NIT Education Group, the financial controller of Liuzhou ZF Machinery Co. Ltd.
and a senior consultant of Arthur Andersen (Shanghai) Business Consulting Co. Ltd.

Mr. Cheung holds a Degree of Bachelor of Arts (Hons) in Accountancy from the City University of Hong Kong
and a Degree of Master of Business Administration from The Chinese University of Hong Kong. He is a fellow
member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the Association of Chartered Certified
Accountants.

Mr. ZHAO Jianguo, aged 57, was appointed in July 2020. He has extensive experience in business operation and
marketing and distribution of consumer products in mainland China and is the head of the consumables business
of Viva China (stock code: 8032). He is the founder and a director of It REEEE EIEHR AR (Beijing Henggu
Investment Management Co., Ltd.) which is principally engaged in investment and asset management since May
2008. Mr. Zhao was also a director of It REEHREE S ELERR AT (Beijing Eagles Fund Management Co.,
Ltd) from November 2015 to January 2019. This fund management company focuses on diversified technology
investment, including mobile internet and technology, media, and telecom sectors. Mr. Zhao is the brother-in-law
of Mr. LI Chun and Mr. LI Ning, both being substantial shareholders of the Company (within the meaning of the
Securities and Futures Ordinance).

Mr. Zhao graduated from Tianjin University of Sport in 1987 with professional physical qualification. In 1985, he
won the National Gymnastics Championship in mainland China.

ANNUAL REPORT 2020/21 %%

WITES

REXE BFESSH RS _ZTF L AEZTABETRER I
Y=FiN/NE] Mzﬁa&k%§AEZWaoﬁﬁE#n¢l?hﬁﬁ
@ﬂﬁ#ﬂ¢ﬁb%ﬂﬂﬁismﬂ2éﬁ%%a& AIMAE o RS
ENABARAZEERFE (REHFRAEGRIZEE) ERERBERA
A([ERDZ2EZ - HRUKERE tERERTREENERZS
ZTEFER - RAENTRBRETERBLELS -BHE T kEEE
ZRBERA Tmﬂﬂﬁ‘3%ﬂ2ﬁﬁ§$&§rﬁﬁﬁ’wAﬂﬁ
LEBEERREAECZGAESREE  HHELTEER  HBRHG
REBBARGIERAE ([BRAT]) EREM - FIHALETHEE
HERARB T 2EEERERAAZHITELERERIBE - K
SN AeBIS Company Lid. REMAE LB 2 HFEYBE ~ MM
RERBMERAR M GBERREE (LT PEXRNEBERARZE
WEERS o

RAEERBREAPTABRGH EREXBELBUREATXABIR

BRBELTEN YABREEHMAERFFLREFMAGZERE
HEBLE RETR R_E_EFLABZRME - FRPERED

HEMEBLERTSEHEOETMER YL RREFEALP

B (Bt 5E: 8032) 2 HEMEBMAE -B—_TT/N\FRLAE  ®A
EREEAREERERABZAMARES  ZRATERERER
EEERE - BAEENERN _Z-—HAF+-AZ-Z2-NF—AEFEL
REBREECERRRARZESR  ZESEEBERATAFINE L
ZRRKRE BREHEBRRELIEE KENBEEE - HELLEAR
RATEMR(REFLRHEROIME T 2RE) TELEENTELEL
ZIRK e

HEER-NNEFEERKXERE SR NEEHRIEMER -1
—ANEF BERPEAERSGE2EBRRBEEZLEEE -



Mr. CHAN Cheuk Him Paul, aged 51, was appointed as an Executive Director and the Chief Financial Officer
of the Group in August 2010. Mr. Chan graduated from the University of Toronto, Canada with a degree of
Bachelor of Commerce and the Hong Kong University of Science and Technology with a Master’'s Degree in
Business Administration. He is also a member of the American Institute of Certified Public Accountants and a
member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. He has over 28 years’ experience in auditing
and financial management with audit firm and various listed companies in Hong Kong.

Non-executive Directors

Mr. Victor HERRERO, aged 53, was appointed in July 2020 and is also the Chairman of the Nomination
Committee. He has extensive experience in corporate management and business operations in the consumables
industry. From 2015 to 2019, Mr. Herrero served as the chief executive officer and director of Guess Inc. (listed
on the New York Stock Exchange), which is principally engaged in designing, marketing, distributing and licensing
a lifestyle collection of contemporary apparel, denim, handbags, watches, footwear and other related consumer
products around the world. Prior to joining Guess Inc., Mr. Herrero served as the head of Asia Pacific and
managing director of Greater China of Industria de Disefio Textil, S.A. (Inditex Group), an international fashion
retailer with brands including Zara, Massimo Dutti, Pull & Bear, Bershka and Stradivarius.

Mr. Herrero is a board member of Global Fashion Group S.A., (e-commerce fashion site operator and owner of
Zalora and The Iconic, the shares of which are listed on the Frankfurt Stock Exchange), G-lll Apparel Group, Ltd (US
manufacturer and distributor operating through a portfolio of brands, the shares of which are listed on NASDAQ),
Gruppo Coppel (Mexican consumer finance and retail conglomerate). Mr. Herrero is a non-executive director of
Viva China (stock code: 8032). Prior to this appointment, Mr. Herrero was a senior advisor of Viva China.

Mr. Herrero graduated with a Master’s Degree in Business Administration from the J.L. Kellogg School of
Management at Northwestern University and the School of Business and Management at the Hong Kong
University of Science and Technology in 2003. He obtained a Bachelor’s Degree in Business Administration from
ESCP Europe in Paris, France in 1992 and a Bachelor’s Degree in Law from the University of Zaragoza in Spain
in 1993. He was also awarded “Best CEO in the Sustainable Apparel Industry” in 2018 by the European CEO
Magazine.
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Mr. LAW Ching Kit Bosco, age 43, was appointed in July 2020. He is currently the deputy chairman and
chief executive officer of Laws Fashion Group Limited (the "LAWSGROUP”), one of the global industry leader
in garment manufacturing and fashion retailers. LAWSGROUP is also engaged in property development and
investment in Hong Kong. Mr. Law is responsible for overseeing the LAWSGROUP’s manufacturing operations,
fashion retailing, property development and series of industrial building revitalization projects.

Mr. Law graduated from University of Toronto, Canada with major in Architecture and minor in Fine Art History
and obtained Honours Bachelor of Arts in 2002. He is also the member of University of Toronto (Hong Kong)
Foundation Board.

Mr. Law is a member of Textiles and Garment Subsector of the Election Committee of The Government of the
Hong Kong Special Administrative Region (2021 to 2026). He is now the chairman of Hong Kong Woollen &
Synthetic Knitting Manufacturers’ Association Limited (2019 to 2022) and has been the vice chairman of Textile
Council of Hong Kong Limited since 2020.

Mr. Law is a director and sole shareholder of Keystar Limited, a 20% shareholder of Dragon Leap, being the
substantial shareholder of the Company (within the meaning of the Securities and Futures Ordinance). He is also
a director of Dragon Leap Developments Limited.

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. LEE Kwok Ming, aged 64, was appointed in July 2020 and is also the Chairman of the Audit Committee
and a member of the Remuneration Committee and the Nomination Committee of the Company. He holds a
Higher Diploma in Accountancy from the Hong Kong Polytechnic and a Master of Science degree in Business
Administration from the University of Bath, United Kingdom. Mr. Lee is currently an independent non-executive
director of Want Want China Holdings Limited (stock code: 151), Lianhua Supermarket Holdings Co., Ltd.
(stock code: 980) and Tam Jai International Co. Limited (stock code: 2217), the shares of which are listed on
the Main Board of the Stock Exchange. From June 2007 to March 2020, he was the chief financial officer of
Stella International Holdings Limited (stock code: 1836), the shares of which are listed on the Main Board of the
Stock Exchange. Mr. Lee has more than 30 years’ financial management experience and extensive experience in
corporate finance such as mergers and acquisitions. He assumed the position of chief financial officer in a number
of listed companies in Hong Kong. Mr. Lee is a fellow member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants and an associate member of the Chartered Institute of Management Accountants.
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Prof. SIN Yat Ming, aged 66, was appointed in October 2005 and is also the Chairman of the Remuneration
Committee and a member of the Audit Committee and the Nomination Committee of the Company. Prof. Sin
holds a Doctor of Philosophy in Business Administration from the University of British Columbia, Canada, a Master
of Business Administration from the University of Texas at Arlington and a Bachelor of Business Administration
from the Chinese University of Hong Kong (“CUHK"). Prof. Sin had been a member of the Faculty of Business
Administration of CUHK for over 35 years. He had also been a professor of Department of Marketing of CUHK
and an associate director of CUHK’s Center for Hospitality and Real Estate Research until July 2016 on his
retirement. He is now the Honorary Institute Fellow of the Asia-Pacific Institute of Business and Adjunct Professor,
CUHK Business School. He is serving as the advisor for the Hong Kong Institute of Marketing. He is an independent
non-executive director of Hung Fook Tong Group Holdings Limited (stock code: 1446) listed on the Stock
Exchange.

Mr. CHEONG Shin Keong, aged 65, was appointed in September 2017 and is also a member of the Audit
Committee, the Remuneration Committee and the Nomination Committee of the Company. Mr. Cheong is
currently the vice chairman of HK Television Entertainment Company Limited (ViuTV). He joined Purapharm
Corporation Limited, a company listed on the Stock Exchange (stock code: 1498) as a non-executive director from
March 2020 to September 2020, was appointed as an executive director from September 2020 to June 2021 and
re-designated as a non-executive director from June 2021 to March 2022. He was the general manager and an
executive director of Television Broadcasts Limited, a company listed on the Stock Exchange (stock code: 511)
from January 2015 to December 2019. Mr. Cheong has extensive experience in the advertising and marketing
industry and contributes actively to the professional development of marketing in Hong Kong through leading
marketing industry bodies. He is a Fellow and a deputy chairman of the Hong Kong Management Association as
well as the former chairman of the Hong Kong Regional Board of the Chartered Institute of Marketing.
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The directors present their report and the audited consolidated financial statements for the 18-month period from
1 July 2020 to 31 December 2021 (“period ended 31 December 2021").

Change of Auditor

After completion of the acquisition of the controlling stake in the Company by Viva China Holdings Limited (“Viva
China”) on 21 July 2020, in order to align with the audit arrangement of Viva China, Ernst & Young retired as
the auditor of the Company with effect from the close of the annual general meeting of the Company held
on 17 November 2020 (the “AGM") and was not re-appointed. PricewaterhouseCoopers was approved by the
shareholders of the Company at the AGM as the new auditor of the Company following the above-mentioned
retirement of Ernst & Young.

Change of financial year end date

The financial year end date of the Company has been changed from 30 June to 31 December commencing from
the financial period 2020/21 (for details, please refer to the Company’s announcement dated 25 February 2021).
Accordingly, this set of results covered the period from 1 July 2020 to 31 December 2021. The comparative
figures, however, are for the year ended 30 June 2020, and hence are not directly comparable.

Principal activities

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding. Details of the principal activities of the principal
subsidiaries are set out in note 31 to the consolidated financial statements. There were no significant changes in
the nature of the Group’s principal activities during the period.

Business review

A fair review of the business of the Group for the period ended 31 December 2021, including the discussion of
the principal risks and uncertainties facing by the Group, material events that have occurred and an indication
of likely future developments in the Group’s business is provided in the Chairman’s Letter to Shareholders, the
Management Discussion and Analysis and the Corporate Governance Report on page 2, pages 3 to 13 and
pages 14 to 33 of this annual report respectively. An analysis of the Group's performance for the period ended
31 December 2021 by key financial indicators is set out under the section headed “Financial and operational
highlights” on the inside front cover. These discussions form part of this Report of the Directors.
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Business review (continued)

In addition, the financial risk management of the Group are shown in note 3 to the consolidated financial
statements.

Details of the Group’s environmental protection, compliance with laws and regulations and relationships with key
stakeholders are discussed below:

Environmental protection

The Group is committed to long term environmental sustainability. We strive to encourage higher environmental
protection awareness at our headquarters, retail stores and warehouses by saving electricity and encouraging
recycling of materials. Energy saving lighting systems have been installed in our stores and headquarters to
conserve energy. We shall review our environmental practices from time to time and consider implementing
further eco-friendly measures, sustainability targets and practices in the business operation of the Group to
embrace the principle of reduce, recycle and reuse. Relevant details of the Group’s environmental policies
and performance will be reported in the Environmental, Social and Governance Report of the Company to
be published on the websites of the Company and The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”).

Compliance with laws and regulations

The Group has complied in material respects with the relevant laws and regulations that have a significant impact
on the operations of the Group for the period ended 31 December 2021.

Relationships with key stakeholders
(@) Employees

The Group believes that employees are essential to the success of its business. The Group is passionately
committed to developing and training the staff and provides the employees with rewarding career paths and
people-friendly working environments. The Group has continued to offer regular and substantial training
programmes which exemplify the Group’s investment in the talent, but also motivate the Group’s employees
as well.
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Relationships with key stakeholders (continued)

(b)

(©

(d)

Customers

We strive to achieve corporate sustainability in providing quality products and services to our customers. To
ensure continuous improvement of the quality of products and services, the Group regularly conducts internal
and external market surveys to gain market insights and feedback.

Suppliers

We understand the importance to work closely with our suppliers to ensure the sustainability of our business.
The Group has established long standing relationships with a number of suppliers and to ensure they share
our commitment to quality and ethics. The Group has established an internal anti-bribery policy of which our
suppliers are also aware.

Shareholders and investors

We believe that effective communication and accurate and timely information disclosure facilitate the flow of
constructive feedback and ideas that are beneficial to investor relations and future corporate development.

Results and dividends

The Group's loss for the period ended 31 December 2021 and the Group’s financial position as at 31 December
2021 are set out in the consolidated financial statements on pages 77 to 201.

The directors do not recommend the payment of a final dividend for the period ended 31 December 2021.

Summary of financial information

A summary of the published results and assets and liabilities of the Group for the years ended 30 June 2017, 30
June 2018, 30 June 2019, 30 June 2020 and for the period ended 31 December 2021, as extracted from the
published audited consolidated financial statements, is set out in the “Five Year Financial Summary” contained in
this annual report. This summary does not form part of the audited consolidated financial statements.
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Major customers and suppliers

In the period under review, sales to the Group’s largest customer and 5 largest customers accounted for 5% and
13% of the total sales for the period, respectively.

Purchases from the Group's largest supplier and 5 largest suppliers accounted for 7% and 26% of the total
purchases for the period, respectively.

Save as disclosed in note 36(a) to the consolidated financial statements, none of the directors of the Company or
any of their associates or any shareholders (which, to the best knowledge of the directors, own more than 5% of
the Company’s issued share capital) had any beneficial interest in the Group’s 5 largest suppliers.

Directors

The directors of the Company during the period were:

Executive directors:

Mr. CHEUNG Chi (appointed on 24 July 2020)

Mr. ZHAO Jianguo (appointed on 24 July 2020)

Mr. CHAN Cheuk Him Paul

Ms. TSIN Man Kuen Bess (resigned on 14 August 2020)

Mr. MAK Tak Cheong Edmund (retired on 17 November 2020)

Non-executive directors:
Mr. Victor HERRERO (appointed on 24 July 2020)
Mr. LAW Ching Kit Bosco (appointed on 24 July 2020)

Independent non-executive directors:

Mr. LEE Kwok Ming (appointed on 24 July 2020)
Prof. SIN Yat Ming

Mr. CHEONG Shin Keong

Ms. LEUNG Mei Han (resigned on 14 August 2020)

In accordance with the Company’s Bye-Laws, Prof. SIN Yat Ming and Mr. CHEONG Shin Keong, will retire by
rotation at the forthcoming annual general meeting. Prof. SIN Yat Ming and Mr. CHEONG Shin Keong, being

eligible, will offer themselves for re-election at the forthcoming annual general meeting.
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Directors (continued)

The Company has received annual confirmations of independence from Mr. LEE Kwok Ming, Prof. SIN Yat Ming,
Mr. CHEONG Shin Keong and considers them to be independent.

Directors’ biographies

Biographical details of the directors of the Company are set out on pages 34 to 37 of the annual report.

Directors’ service contracts

No director proposed for re-election at the forthcoming annual general meeting has a service contract with the
Company which is not determinable by the Company within one year without payment of compensation, other
than statutory compensation.

Directors’ remuneration

The emolument policy of the employees of the Group has been set up by the board of directors or executive
directors on the basis of their merits, qualifications and competences.

The emoluments payable to the directors of the Company will be decided by the board of directors on the
recommendation of the Remuneration Committee, having regard to the directors’ duties, responsibilities and
performance and the results of the Group.

Interests and Short Positions of Directors and the Chief Executive in the Shares and
Underlying Shares and Debentures of the Company and its Associated Corporations

As at 31 December 2021, the interests and short positions of the Directors and chief executive of the Company
in the shares, underlying shares and debentures of the Company and its associated corporations (within the
meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (the “SFO")) which were required to be notified to
the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests and
short positions which the Directors and chief executive of the Company were deemed or taken to have under such
provisions of the SFO), or which were required to be and are recorded in the register required to be kept by the
Company pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO, or as otherwise required to be notified to the Company and the
Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model
Code") are set out below:
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Directors’ Interests in Shares and Underlying Shares

Long positions in the shares and the underlying shares in associated corporations of the

(@) Interests in Viva China Holdings Limited (“Viva China”), the issued shares of which are listed
on GEM of the Stock Exchange (stock code: 8032)

EERRORABERSG 2E5
R BIRFEZ B2 IR0 R GBI (0 2 4F B

(@) MIEAFBIZERERAT ([FEALFE]) 2z B8
TR D B A FrGEM _E 77 (R 1D A 5% - 8032)
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EmEEA

Number of Number of percentage of
ordinary shares share options Viva China’s
of Viva China of Viva China issued share
Name of Directors Capacity and nature of interest held held capital
BEFENLFTEH BEFRLTE EFEATBEERT
= SORERNE ZERHE BREHE REMABDL
(note 3)
(P EE3)
Mr. CHEUNG Chi Beneficial owner 12,680,000 90,000,000 1.07%
R4S ST A BEmERA
Mr. ZHAO Jianguo Beneficial owner 288,000,000 5,000,000 3.05%
2 B o A ExnBEAA
Interest of controlled corporation (note 1) 12,963,200 - 0.13%
REGEE S (1)
Interest of spouse (note 2) - 700,000,000 7.28%
Fl B 2= (Pl E2)
Mr. CHAN Cheuk Him Paul Beneficial owner 400,000 - 0.0042%
PR &2 5k 5 A& ExnBEAA
Mr. Victor HERRERO Beneficial owner 3,168,000 60,000,000 0.66%




Directors’ Interests in Shares and Underlying Shares (continued)

Long positions in the shares and the underlying shares in associated corporations of the
Company (continued)

(@) Interests in Viva China Holdings Limited (“Viva China”), the issued shares of which are listed
on GEM of the Stock Exchange (stock code: 8032) (continued)

Notes:

(1) As at 31 December 2021, these 12,963,200 shares in Viva China were directly held by Double Essence Limited,
which was in turn directly owned as to 50% by Mr. ZHAO Jianguo. Therefore, Mr. ZHAQO Jianguo was deemed
to be interested in the same number of shares in Viva China held by Double Essence Limited under Part XV of
the SFO.

(2) Asat 31 December 2021, Ms. LI Ying, the spouse of Mr. ZHAO Jianguo, was interested in 700,000,000 share
options of Viva China. Therefore, Mr. ZHAO Jianguo was deemed to be interested in the same number of share
options in Viva China held by his spouse, Ms. LI Ying, under Part XV of the SFO.

(3) Asat 31 December 2021, the total number of shares in issue of Viva China was 9,621,242,726 shares.

REPORT OF THE DI
=S

EERRORMEBERSG 2 & (&)
RAR FIEBEEZ R D RIGFR 172 4 B (&)

(a) RIEAFBEIEBRERAT ([FEAPE]) 2D B
TR B R FTGEM 1 (B 4K 5% - 8032) (48)

(N

)

3

RZZBZ—F+ZA=+—H " #%%12,963,2000% 3 LA B & {5 B
Double Essence LimitedE# £ 5 * ifDouble Essence Limited g it 3 Bl
SHEBEERAS0%ER - At - RIBFHFRHAEKAEXVE - BER
5 H %48 A7 Double Essence LimitedFris A B2 B 2 35 A4 B I& 5
RHEEER ©

RZZEZ—F+-A=+—H0 BERLEZEBTOLLER
700,000,000 FE N AR BSR4 o E Lt - RIBFEHF R B EOIEXVED -
HERELEEEAREREBZ UL LAMEE 2R E IEAFEER
R ERER -

RZFZ—FF+A=Z+—R FAFEZDETENAHR
9,621,242,726 i -
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Directors’ Interests in Shares and Underlying Shares (continued)

Long positions in the shares and the underlying shares in associated corporations of the
Company (continued)

(b) Interests in Dragon Leap

EBERE

Business review

EERRORMEERS 2EmE (&)
RAR FIEBEEZ R D RIGFR 17 2 4 B (&)

(b) MEERM &

Y

Number of
ordinary shares
of Dragon Leap

Approximate
percentage of
Dragon Leap’s

issued share

-
=]

(1) As at 31 December 2021, Dragon Leap was directly owned as to 20% by Keystar Limited, which was in turn
directly wholly-owned by Mr. LAW Ching Kit Bosco. Therefore, Mr. LAW Ching Kit Bosco was deemed to be
interested in the same number of shares in Dragon leap held by Keystar Limited under Part XV of the SFO.

EEER

Report of the directors

(2) As at 31 December 2021, the total number of shares in issue of Dragon Leap was 100 shares.
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M

)

:!;gﬂj Name of Director Capacity and nature of interest held capital
QE BEER HERE BT
&l EBRE 519 R M 34 1 EERBE  RABNESL
‘g_g.#m% (noEe 2)
5 S (Pt aE2)
o
Mr. LAW Ching Kit Bosco Interest of controlled corporation (note 1) 20 20%
BIEREE REGEEE S (FEE1)
i Notes: Wi

RZTZZ—F+=ZA=+—H " 2B HKeystar LimitedEE1FH20%

MKeystar Limited AR IEAEEEEZEHS - Atk - BIEES

NEREGPIEXVED - 2 EARNEEBAR AR Keystar Limited T #5 5 18R

B ZREBROPHEER -

RZEBZ—F+A=+—"R BBZEBTHRMNAZRI00A
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Substantial Shareholders’ Interests in Shares and Underlying Shares of the Company FERRREATAROREBRGO 2=
As at 31 December 2021 so far as is known to the Directors and chief executive of the Company, the following RZE-_—F+_BA=+—H BEFEARAESTHAERNMN E
persons (other than the Directors or chief executive of the Company) had interests or short positions in the shares THAT(BESEHARATZSITHABRIN) RARQ G A7 A8 R D gg
or the underlying shares of the Company which would have to be disclosed to the Company and the Stock PR RIEE S R ERPIEXVERE2 K35 MR AR AR A B KA Ef
Exchange under the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests or short positions I ENESSAR (BEESEREZEFEN 2 ZFBEERRIR Ng.
which were taken or deemed to have under such provisions), or which were recorded in the register of interests BHEAEZERIAR) NI R A RRIREFGIIE3I36GEETZ g
required to be kept by the Company under Section 336 of the SFO are as follows: B EmsoRE 2 RRNAT -
Long positions in the shares and underlying shares of the Company RARE]Z R RIBEK G FE
Approximate F—>§§
percentage of e}
the Company'’s Eg’;%
Number of issued share = S
Name Capacity and nature of interest shares held capital Fﬁé.;i'
EARDE BT
= SORERME BEERGHE BREMABDL
(note 3)
(HM3E3)
Dragon Leap Development Limited Beneficial owner (note 1) 1,741,977,652 70.65%
RERERARAA EnER A (M)
Viva China Holdings Limited Interest of controlled corporation (note 1) 1,741,977,652 70.65%
FENFEFEREBR A A ZEsEE s (1)
Mr. LI Ning Interest of controlled corporation (note 2) 1,741,977,652 70.65%
FELL ZEHEE R (RE2)
Mr. LI Chun Interest of controlled corporation (note 2) 1,741,977,652 70.65%
FERE EEGEEEE (MEE2)
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Substantial Shareholders’ Interests in Shares and Underlying Shares of the Company
(continued)

Long positions in the shares and underlying shares of the Company (continued)

Notes:

(1) As at 31 December 2021, Dragon Leap was owned as to 80% by Viva China. Therefore, Viva China was deemed to
be interested in the shares of the Company held by Dragon Leap under Part XV of the SFO.

(2) As at 31 December 2021, Mr. LI Ning and Mr. LI Chun were deemed to be interested in the shares of Viva China
through their interests in Lead Ahead Limited, Victory Mind Assets Limited and Dragon City Management (PTC)
Limited, which held 2,132,420,382 shares, 1,680,022,769 shares and 2,000,000,000 shares in Viva China,
respectively, representing approximately 22.16%, 17.46% and 20.79% and in aggregate 60.41% of the total
issued share capital of Viva China as at 31 December 2021. Therefore, Mr. LI Ning and Mr. LI Chun were deemed
to be interested in the shares of the Company held by Dragon Leap under Part XV of the SFO.

(3) Asat 31 December 2021, the total number of shares of the Company in issue was 2,465,750,091 shares.

Save as disclosed above and so far as is known to the Directors and chief executive of the Company, as at 31
December 2021, no person (other than the Directors or chief executive of the Company) had any interests or short
positions in the shares or underlying shares of the Company which would have to be disclosed to the Company
and the Stock Exchange under the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests or
short positions which were taken or deemed to have under such provisions), or which were recorded in the
register of interests required to be kept by the Company under Section 336 of the SFO.

Directors’ rights to acquire shares or debentures

Save as disclosed in the section “Directors’ interests in shares and underlying shares” above and in the section
“Share option scheme” below, at no time during the period were rights to acquire benefits by means of the
acquisition of shares in or debentures of the Company granted to any director or their respective spouses or minor
children, or were any such rights exercised by them; or was the Company or any of its subsidiaries a party to any
arrangement to enable the directors to acquire such rights in any other body corporate.

ANNUAL REPORT 2020/21 %%

FERRRADARG REBRD 2 EE (&)

RAE RG]z RIDRIBEER 2 E (&)
MieE -

RY

() RoB-——F+=F=+—0  ERHIEARERE0%MES - Bl - 1
3 S D I BV XVER - 3 AL B AR PR TS A 2 A A R 9
A 2% o

) RZZEZ—F+ZA=+—H TBLERFTHEILEFBEER Lead Ahead
Limited » Victory Mind Assets Limited2Dragon City Management (PTC)
Limited Z # m 1R AR FE N R BIRR (5 ¥ B # % - Lead Ahead Limited
Victory Mind Assets Limited &2Dragon City Management (PTC) Limited % )
FAIENLREZ2,132,420,382/& * 1,680,022,769/% % 2,000,000,000% ik
B DAL PBER = —F+ A=+ —HZEBETRAEHLY
22.16% ~ 17.46%%20.79% - & #1560.41% - HUt - RIEEFHF KRB E
EPIEXVER - FEXERFTELEEHRERRERAFEZARARG FH
B o

B) RIZZEZ—F+ZA=+—8 ARAIEETRMDEEA2,465,750,0915% -

BREXPBEEENBEERARARRSTRAERM R-F - —
FHoA=1t—8 BEAL (BEFHIARARSTHRARRIN R
RE R AR P A IRIERE 5 R B R DI EXVER 2 %37 & 16
NARMARRRBZARENERNEEIAR (BRREREEFKE
Pl 2 ZEHXRBRRER/BAEZEDIAR)  RLER AR AR
EHFIGRPIE336FAEF 2 B MAMERIOXR

EEREROIESZ 2ER

B EX BN RARBER D 2 s — SR T XX BREE ] —6
FIEEES  ARRRHAEAREARER TENESFIRESEAZ
FEBRARRFEFREBBARR ZBDHES MG H @ 2 &R - m
BEMBETEERNZEEN  ARAREECAMBRARARAARES
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Share option scheme iR T &
The Company operates a share option scheme (the “Scheme”) for the purpose of motivating and providing RARIRBAREE ([Zt8) B ER RN REBYARNEREEELY
incentives and rewards to eligible participants who contribute to the success of the Group’s operations. Further BRI VABRREE - LB 2 H BN EA M B RRMTI0HE -

details of the Scheme are disclosed in note 30 to the consolidated financial statements.

B o # 3%

MBOIABJ ssaulsng

The following table discloses movements in the Company’s share options outstanding during the period: TRBEBHARQR MAITEBRE 2 &F -

Number of share options

BREHE
Adjusted
Exercise exercise | &)
Cancelled/ price of price of ]
Granted Exercised Lapsed Adjusted At Date of grant of share share 2 e <
Name or category of At during during during during 31 December share options options options =
participants 1 July 2020 the period the period the period the period 2021 (note a) Exercise period of share options (note b) (note f) Wzg
WoB=-f% egEy [
St et 1 ) L +=8 BHBRARS . MBRETEE MBETEE | 05
SEALHERER tA-H HRRi BrTE  H¥/ &N Hrag =t-H (Mizta) BRETES (M3tb) (M3Ef) -
HK$ per share  HKS per share
BREBT  BRE%R
Directors
Bz
Mr. CHEUNG Chi - 5,332,000 - - 43,000 5,380,000 5 January 2021 1 January 2022 to 31 December 2026 0.460 0.456
RELE ZZZ-5-R%H “E-E-f-HE-E-FT-AZt-H
- 5,334,000 - - 46,000 5,380,000 5 January 2021 1 January 2023 to 31 December 2026 0.460 0.456
—Z_-%-A1R “E-CZE-fF-RAE-Z-~E+ZA=1-H
- 5,334,000 - - 51,440 5,385,440 5 January 2021 1 January 2024 to 31 December 2026 0.460 0.456
“Z--%-A%H “E-ME-F-BE-Z-AE+-FZ+-H
- 16,000,000 - - 145,440 16,145,440
m
>
Mr. ZHAO Jianguo - 2,000,000 - - 18,000 2,018,000 5 January 2021 1 January 2022 to 31 December 2026 0.460 0.456 =
HRELE “Z--%-REAH ZZ-Zf-B-BEZZZREtZA=+-H g2
-~ —
- 2,000,000 - - 18,000 2,018,000 5 January 2021 1 January 2023 to 31 December 2026 0.460 0.456 I gh
“E--%-A%H “E-CF-f-BE-T-AE+-FZ+-H e S
®3
- 2,000,000 - - 18,540 2,018,540 5 January 2021 1 January 2024 to 31 December 2026 0.460 0.456 §'
—E--F-A%H —E-NE-A-HE-E-AF+-AZt-H
- 6,000,000 - - 54,540 6,054,540

BOSSINI INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED Z¥isEEFRERABR DA
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F THE DIRECTORS

Share option scheme (continued)

The following table discloses movements in the Company’s share options outstanding during the period:

(continued)

Number of share options

BRESTE R

TREEHAARRHATEEREZES : (B)

BREZA
Adjusted
Exercise exercise
Cancelled/ price of price of
Granted Exercised Lapsed Adjusted At Date of grant of share share
Name or category of At during during during during 31 December share options options options
participants 1 July 2020 the period the period the period the period 2021 (note a) Exercise period of share options (note b) (note 1)
R=B=-% gHEy
R-2-%% ) s +28 BUBRERE  BERGEE WBRAREE
SEATHAGER tA-H BR&L BrfE  H2#/%% HrRg =t+-H (Mizta) BRETEH (Mi5tb) ikl
HKS$ per share  HKS per share
BHEYT  BRE%R
Directors
Bz
Mr. CHAN Cheuk Him Paul 210,000 - - (210,000 - - 5 July 2010 (note c(i)) 0.503 N/A
BREHEE ZZ-ZELATH (B £ c(i)) TEm
560,000 - - (560,000) - - 12 October 2010 12 October 2011 to 11 October 2020 0.780 N/A
ZE-ZETATCA ZE—5+AtZHEZZ-TETAT-A ek
840,000 - - (840,000) - - 12 October 2010 12 October 2013 to 11 October 2020 0.780 L\I/A
ZE-ZETATCH —Z2-=%+R+=-AZ=F=Z4Ft+At+-H T
1,400,000 - - (1,400,000 - - 12 October 2010 12 October 2015 to 11 October 2020 0.780 N/A
“T-TFTATCA “E-AFTATCAEZFT-TETAT-A TaA
1,750,000 - - (1,750,000) - - 2 December 2013 (note d(i)) 0.570 N/A
“T-Zf+-AZH (PEEd(i) TER
3,000,000 - - (3,000,000) - - 4 October 2016 4 October 2019 to 3 October 2026 0.495 N/A
ZZ-"ETANA “E-NETANAZE-E-AFTAZH TR
- 2,666,000 - - 24,000 2,690,000 5 January 2021 1 January 2022 to 31 December 2026 0.460 0.456
—Z--5-A%H - -A-REZTZ E+ZA=T-H
- 2,666,000 - - 24,000 2,690,000 5 January 2021 1 January 2023 to 31 December 2026 0.460 0.456
—Z--£-A1H CECCE-f-RE-E-AET-AZT-H
- 2,668,000 - - 24,720 2,692,720 5 January 2021 1 January 2024 to 31 December 2026 0.460 0.456
—Z--5-A1H —E-NE-f-RAE-Z-~E+-A=1-H
7,760,000 8,000,000 - (7,760,000) 72,720 8,072,720
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Share option scheme (continued) B IR RE = &l (&)
w
The following table discloses movements in the Company’s share options outstanding during the period: TRBEHARDR MAITEERE EF : (8) S
(continued) L g'
]
Number of share options E =
BRI e,
Adjusted g
Exercise exercise
Cancelled/ price of price of
Granted Exercised Lapsed Adjusted At Date of grant of share share
Name or category of At during during during during 31 December share options options options
participants 1 July 2020 the period the period the period the period 2021 (note a) Exercise period of share options (note b) (note f) A
R-8--% i ERZz  aoie)
R-g-24 ) B +28 BUBRERS  BBEGER BRETER 3
SEATHERER tA-H HRRE B EH/%% Hrag =t-H (Mizta) BRETES (M3th) (M3Ef) ¢S S
HKS per share  HKS per share m»%&’
BikE%T  BREET =
S = S
Egc ors me 5
Mr. Victor HERRERO - 1,666,000 - - 14,000 1,680,000 5 January 2021 1 January 2022 to 31 December 2026 0.460 0.456
Victor HERRERO & —Z--%-A1A ZECF-A-BEZZAFTZRZT-H
- 1,666,000 - - 16,000 1,682,000 5 January 2021 1 January 2023 to 31 December 2026 0.460 0.456
—Z--£-A1H “E--E-f-AE-E-AE+-A=1-B
- 1,668,000 - - 15,450 1,683,450 5 January 2021 1 January 2024 to 31 December 2026 0.460 0.456
—E--F-fFH —E-NE-R-HE-E-AFT-AZt-H
- 5,000,000 - - 45,450 5,045,450
Mr. LAW Ching Kit Bosco - 1,000,000 - - 8,000 1,008,000 5 January 2021 1 January 2022 to 31 December 2026 0.460 0.456
BIERESE —Z--£-A1H “E-F-f-BE-ZT-AE+-FZ+-H
- 1,000,000 - - 8,000 1,008,000 5 January 2021 1 January 2023 to 31 December 2026 0.460 0.456 -
“Z--%-A1A -5 -f-RAEZTZ S E+ZA=T-H =1
>
- 1,000,000 - - 11,270 1,011,270 5 January 2021 1 January 2024 to 31 December 2026 0.460 0.456 g E_,
—F--%-AAA —F-RE-f-AE-ToASTCAZT-A B
- 3,000,000 - - 27,270 3,027,270 g
»3
=
5
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Share option scheme (continued) BRESE (&)

The following table discloses movements in the Company’s share options outstanding during the period: TERBEBHARQDGHMAITERRE ZES : (8)
(continued)

Number of share options

BREZA
Adjusted
Exercise exercise
Cancelled/ price of price of
Granted Exercised Lapsed Adjusted At Date of grant of share share
Name or category of At during during during during 31 December share options options options
participants 1 July 2020 the period the period the period the period 2021 (note a) Exercise period of share options (note b) (note 1)
R=B=-% gHEy
R-2-%% ) s +28 BUBRERE  BERGEE WBRAREE
SEATHAGER tA-H BR&L BrfE  H2#/%% HrRg =t+-H (Mizta) BRETEH (Mi5tb) ikl
HKS$ per share  HKS per share
BHEYT  BRE%R
Directors
Bz
Mr. LEE Kwok Ming - 266,000 - - 2,000 268,000 5 January 2021 1 January 2022 to 31 December 2026 0.460 0.456
FEBRE —5--%¥-A%A - -E-f-RAE-F-~E+-A=1-H
- 266,000 - - 2,000 268,000 5 January 2021 1 January 2023 to 31 December 2026 0.460 0.456
—Z--5-A1H “E-CZE-f-AE-Z-NE+ZA=1-H
- 268,000 - - 3,272 271,272 5 January 2021 1 January 2024 to 31 December 2026 0.460 0.456
—Z--5-A1H —E-NE-F-RAEZZ-NE+ZAZT-H
- 800,000 - - 71,272 807,272
Prof. SIN Yat Ming - 132,000 - - 2,000 134,000 5 January 2021 1 January 2022 to 31 December 2026 0.460 0.456
rERAE —Z--5-A1H “E--E£-f-RAE-Z-E+-A=1-H
- 134,000 - - - 134,000 5 January 2021 1 January 2023 to 31 December 2026 0.460 0.456
—Z--5-A1H CECCE-f-RE-E-AE+-AZ-H
- 134,000 - - 1,636 135,636 5 January 2021 1 January 2024 to 31 December 2026 0.460 0.456
“Z--%-A1A CRCME-A-RECRIAETZAZT-H
- 400,000 - - 3,636 403,636
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Share option scheme (continued) B IR RE = &l (&)
w
The following table discloses movements in the Company’s share options outstanding during the period: TRBEHARDR MAITEERE EF : (8) S
(continued) L g'
]
Number of share options gé
BREHE 5
Adjusted 2
Exercise exercise
Cancelled/ price of price of
Granted Exercised Lapsed Adjusted At Date of grant of share share
Name or category of At during during during during 31 December share options options options
participants 1 July 2020 the period the period the period the period 2021 (note a) Exercise period of share options (note h) (note f) o e
gt S CEEDS 23
et et ) B +25 BEBREAY . BREGEE BRAGRE SR
SEALRERER tA-H BR&RL BRTE  EE/ &N HRRE =t-H (Mizta) BRETEH (M3tb) (MiEH) 29
HKS per share  HK$ per share m»gg
BlE%T  BRE%R )IllllE..:g
Directors Eak ey
Bz
Mr. CHEONG Shin Keong - 132,000 - - 2,000 134,000 5 January 2021 1 January 2022 to 31 December 2026 0.460 0.456
PERiE —$--%-A%A CECCE-A-RE-Z-AETCZAZT-H
- 134,000 - - - 134,000 5 January 2021 1 January 2023 to 31 December 2026 0.460 0.456
—Z--%-ATH “Z-C#-f-BE-T-AE+-AZ+-H
- 134,000 - - 1,636 135,636 5 January 2021 1 January 2024 to 31 December 2026 0.460 0.456
“Z--%-RIA CECME-A-BEZERETZAZT-H
- 400,000 - - 3,636 403,636
Co-Chief Executive Officer
BETHAR
Mr. CHANG Min Huei - 5,000,000 - - - 5,000,000 16 November 2021 16 November 2022 to 15 November 2027 1.060 N/A
B “2-—Ft-BtAR  CR-sET-ATARE-Ro{Et-AtEA @ =
QU
- 5,000,000 - - - 5,000,000 16 November 2021 16 November 2023 to 15 November 2027 1.060 N/A g é-
ZEZ-E1-AtRE —E-=f+-A+ABE-E-+F+-AtRA TER g
- 5,000,000 - - - 5,000,000 16 November 2021 16 November 2024 to 15 November 2027 1.060 N/A gg
“E--%+-A+RH CECME+-AtARE-E-+E+-A+EA Tam o
- 15,000,000 - - - 15,000,000 S

BOSSINI INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED Z¥isEEFRERABR DA
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Share option scheme (continued) B AESH & (&)
% The following table discloses movements in the Company’s share options outstanding during the period: TERBEBHARQDGHMAITERRE ZES : (8)
§§ (continued)
v .
9 Number of share options
S BEENA
3 Adjusted
— Exercise exercise
Cancelled/ price of price of
Granted Exercised Lapsed Adjusted At Date of grant of share share
Name or category of At during during during during 31 December share options options options
— participants 1 July 2020 the period the period the period the period 2021 (note a) Exercise period of share options (note b) (note 1)
S.od R=B=-% EREZ
2 R-2-2% ) B +28 BUBERAS | BREGEE BRETEE
el BRALRENER tA-H BR&L BRTE  H¥/ &N BRRE =t+-H (Mizta) BRETES (Mi5tb) ikl
o2y HKS per share  HKS per share
XS] BHEYT  BRE%R
o ok
o V¢ Directors
v Bz
Ms. TSIN Man Kuen Bess 800,000 - - (800,000) - - 12 October 2010 12 October 2011 to 11 October 2020 0.780 N/A
BERLL “2-ZF+ATZH R+ ATZHEZZ-ZETAT-H TER
v 1,200,000 - - (1,200,000) - - 12 October 2010 12 October 2013 to 11 October 2020 0.780 N/A
£ i —2-F4t+B+zH “B-ZE+AtZAE-E-EETAT+-A TR
(]
=il
S B 2,000,000 - - (2,000,000) - - 12 October 2010 12 October 2015 to 11 October 2020 0.780 N/A
Sa ZZ-ZF+ATZH ZZ-A5t+A+ZAEZZ=S4t+A1+-H TEA
kS
g e 1,750,000 - - (1,750,000) - - 2 December 2013 (note d(i) 0.570 N/A
o fil “T-ZHTZAZA (i EEd() TER
oc
3,000,000 - - (3,000,000 - - 4 October 2016 4 October 2019 to 3 October 2026 0.495 N/A
ZE-RETAER —E-NETARAE-E-AFTAZA TER
8,750,000 - - (8,750,000 - -
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Share option scheme (continued) B IR RE = &l (&)
w
The following table discloses movements in the Company’s share options outstanding during the period: TRBEHARDR MAITEERE EF : (8) S
(continued) L g'
]
Number of share options gé
[YITE =
Adjusted 2
Exercise exercise
Cancelled/ price of price of
Granted Exercised Lapsed Adjusted At Date of grant of share share
Name or category of At during during during during 31 December share options options options
participants 1 July 2020 the period the period the period the period 2021 (note a) Exercise period of share options (note h) (note f) o e
gt S CEEDS 23
R-B=%% # T=A RAMRERS BERTHER MEETER S o
SEATHRAER tA-H BR&RL BrfE  E#/%% HRRE =t-H (Mizta) BRETEH (M3tb) (MiEH) 29
HKS per share  HK$ per share m»gg
BRERT  BRERT M=o
Directors Eak ey
Bz
Mr. MAK Tak Cheong 678,000 - - (678,000) - - 5 July 2010 (note (i) 0.503 N/A
Edmund ZZ-TE+ATA (R £ (i) THER
FEERE
2,800,000 - - (2,800,000) - - 12 October 2010 12 October 2011 to 11 October 2020 0.780 N/A
ZE-TETATCH —Z——%+A+-AZ=F=ZF+At+-H ek
4,200,000 - - (4,200,000) - - 12 October 2010 12 October 2013 to 11 October 2020 0.780 N/A
ZE-ZETATCH ZE-=E+AtZREZZ-TETET-A TR
7,000,000 - - (7,000,000) - - 12 October 2010 12 October 2015 to 11 October 2020 0.780 N/A
ZE-ZETATCR “E-RETATCHECZZ-ZETAT-R TER
3,500,000 - - (3,500,000 - - 2 December 2013 (note d(i)) 0.570 N/A
ZE-ZE+ZAZH (GESO) TER
5,000,000 - - (5,000,000) - - 4 October 2016 4 October 2019 to 3 October 2026 0.495 N/A
ZE-RFTAMEA “E-NETANAZE-E-AFTAZA TER
23,178,000 - - (23,178,000) - -
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Share option scheme (continued) BRESE (&)
% The following table discloses movements in the Company’s share options outstanding during the period: TERBEBHARQDGHMAITERRE ZES : (8)
§§ (continued)
a ber of share options
&R Number of share op
S BEENA
v .
S Adjusted
— Exercise exercise
Cancelled/ price of price of
Granted Exercised Lapsed Adjusted At Date of grant of share share
Name or category of At during during during during 31 December share options options options
— participants 1 July 2020 the period the period the period the period 2021 (note a) Exercise period of share options (note b) (note 1)
S.od R=B=-% EREZ
2 R-2-2% ) B +28 BUBERAS | BREGEE BRETEE
el BEATEESER tA-H BR&L BRTE  H¥/ &N HrRg =t+-H (Mizta) BRETES (Mi5tb) (W3EF)
© 2y HKS per share  HK$ per share
S S BHEYT  BRE%R
o2
ooy Other employees
i HitfER
In aggregate 1,294,000 - - (1,294,000 - - 5 July 2010 (note (i) 0.503 N/A
aft —Z-ZE+ IR iEd0) TER
4 432,000 - - (432,000) - - 12 October 2010 12 October 2011 to 11 October 2020 0.780 N/A
£ i —2-F4t+B+zH B #tAtZAE-E-ZE+AT+ A TR
L
o 648,000 - - (648,000) - - 12 October 2010 12 October 2012 to 11 October 2020 0.780 \N/A
Sa “F-ZF+ATCA CE-ZETATZAEBRCTETAT-H TER
kS
g e 1,080,000 - - (1,080,000) - - 12 October 2010 12 October 2013 to 11 October 2020 0.780 N/A
o fil ZE-ZE+A+ZH “E-ZFE+A+-BE-Z-ZETA+-H TER
oc
82,000 - - (82,000) - - 3 January 2011 (note cfii)) 0.922 N/A
—Z-——%-A=H (hFgEc(ii)) TER
S 54,000 - - (54,000) - - 4 July 2011 (note c(iii)) 0.880 N/A
= —E-——%LAMA (K zkcli) TER
Ex
O & 9,624,000 - - (9,624,000) - - 2 December 2013 (note d(i)) 0.570 N/A
S ZE2-Z£tZRZH (BR3Ed() TEA
S
§§ 124,000 - - (124,000) - - 2 January 2014 (note d(ii)) 0.570 N/A
< “Z-ME-AZH GRS TER
[N,
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Share option scheme (continued) B IR RE = &l (&)
w
The following table discloses movements in the Company’s share options outstanding during the period: TRBEHARDR MAITEERE EF : (8) S
(continued) L g'
]
Number of share options gé
BREHE 5
Adjusted 2
Exercise exercise
Cancelled/ price of price of
Granted Exercised Lapsed Adjusted At Date of grant of share share
Name or category of At during during during during 31 December share options options options
participants 1 July 2020 the period the period the period the period 2021 (note a) Exercise period of share options (note h) (note f) o e
gt S CEEDS 23
R-B=%% # T=A RAMRERS BERTHER MEETER S o
SEATHRAER tA-H BR&RL BrfE  E#/%% HRRE =t+-H (Mizta) BRETEH (M3tb) (MiEH) 29
HKS per share  HK$ per share m»gg
BRERT  BRERT M=o
Other employees Eak ey
AfblES
In aggregate 398,000 - - (398,000) - - 2 July 2015 (note d(iii)) 0.740 N/A
af “T-L%¥+AZH (M i) TER
19,860,000 - - (19,860,000) - - 4 Qctober 2016 4 October 2019 to 3 October 2026 0.495 N/A
ZE-RETAMA ZE-NETANAE-ZZAFTAZH TER
620,000 - - (620,000) - - 1 June 2017 28 November 2019 to 31 May 2027 0.460 N/A
ZEHERA-B ZE-NET-A-TN\BEZECLERA=T-H ek
816,000 - - (816,000) - - 3 October 2017 4 October 2019 to 2 October 2027 0.455 N/A
“Z-t5+AZH ZE-NE+AEARE-Z-tF+AZA TER
620,000 - - (620,000) - - 3 July 2018 26 December 2020 to 2 July 2028 0.352 N/A
ZZ-\EtA=H “E-EF+-A-15HE TER
“E-N\FLACH o
2
2,500,000 - (2,500,000) - - - 2 January 2019 19 June 2021 to 1 January 2029(note e) 0.275 N/A a.
“E-NE-RAZA ZEC-ERATABREZZCAS- AR (Wie) TER e
>
2,500,000 - - (2,500,000) - - 2 January 2019 9 July 2021 to 1 January 2029 0.275 N/A S
“T-N\FE-A=R “E--ELBAREZZ-n4E-A-A TER 3
=
5
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Share option scheme (continued) BRESE (&)
% The following table discloses movements in the Company’s share options outstanding during the period: TERBEBHARQDGHMAITERRE ZES : (8)
& i (continued)
=[O
v .
P Number of share options
S BEERA
5 Adjusted
- Exercise exercise
Cancelled/ price of price of
Granted Exercised Lapsed Adjusted At Date of grant of share share
Name or category of At during during during during 31 December share options options options
= participants 1 July 2020 the period the period the period the period 2021 (note a) Exercise period of share options (note b) (note f)
2o R-B--% 5%l
QE R-g-gE ) B +=8 BLBRERN  BREGEE BRETER
SEeln | BRATHEAER tA-A HRRi BrrE  H¥/&N i@z =t-H (Mizta) BRETES (M3tb) (MizH)
© 2.y HKS per share  HKS per share
S S BhEBT  SRE%R
S §<_.__| Other employees
v HitfEE
In aggregate 620,000 - - (620,000) - - 1 March 2019 1 March 2022 to 28 February 2029 0.285 N/A
aft —E-NEZA-H CECCE-A-BAEZECNE-AZTNA T
% 880,000 - - (880,000) - - 2 July 2019 10 December 2021 to 1 July 2029 0.231 N/A
£ ZE-NFtAZH “E--Ff+-A+tHEZE-NEtA-H TER
()
=
_S?’ﬁ - 16,790,000 - (4,638,000) 146,000 12,298,000 5 January 2021 1 January 2022 to 31 December 2026 0.460 0.456
S “E--%-AEA CECCE-A-BEZZ-ATZAIT-A
kS
E o - 16,794,000 - (4,640,000) 148,000 12,302,000 5 January 2021 1 January 2023 to 31 December 2026 0.460 0.456
g “2--%5-JRF  -B-Zf-A-RE-ET-AGT-A=t-8
- 16,816,000 - (4,647,442) 164,137 12,332,695 5 January 2021 1 January 2024 to 31 December 2026 0.460 0.456
—Z--£-A1R ZZ-mE-A-AEZT S E+ZA=T-H
<
-S - 1,332,000 - (666,000 - 666,000 14 May 2021 1 January 2022 to 31 December 2026 0.510 N/A
S ZZ--%¥RATMmA “E--E£-f-RAE-Z-E+-A=1-H TiER
S
£ ® - 1,332,000 - (666,000) - 666,000 14 May 2021 1 January 2023 to 31 December 2026 0.510 N/A
S ZE--ERATHA “E-c-E-f-AE-F-~E+-A=1-H TER
<
@©
L.E_ - 1,336,000 - (668,000) - 668,000 14 May 2021 1 January 2024 to 31 December 2026 0.510 N/A
ZZ--%nATMA “E-NE-fA-RAE-E-AE+-A=1-B TEA
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Share option scheme (continued) iR AEH &l (&)
w
The following table discloses movements in the Company’s share options outstanding during the period: TREBEHARRAEAITEEREZEE : (B) S
(continued) L g'
]
Number of share options 5] 5
BREHA W<
Adjusted g
Exercise exercise
Cancelled/ price of price of
Granted Exercised Lapsed Adjusted At Date of grant of share share
Name or category of At during during during during 31 December share options options options
participants 1 July 2020 the period the period the period the period 2021 (note a) Exercise period of share options (note b) (note f) -0
R-%--% BHEZz |l
R-2-%%F B +28 BHBRERS BREGEE BREGEE 53
SEATHRRER tA-H LAk B EH/%% Hrag =t-H (Mizra) BRETRES (iztb) (M3Hf) =]
HKS$ per share  HK$ per share m»%g
BREET  BREET W=3
=
Other employees oS
£ibES o e
In aggregate - 3,332,000 - - - 3,332,000 23 August 2021 8 August 2022 to 7 August 2027 0.620 N/A
A ZZZ-%/\A=t=H ZEZZENANBEZEZtENALR TEA
- 3,334,000 - - - 3,334,000 23 August 2021 8 August 2023 to 7 August 2027 0.620 N/A
“EC-EJAZT=ZR ZEZZENANBEZTZLENALR TER
- 3,334,000 - - - 3,334,000 23 August 2021 8 August 2024 to 7 August 2027 0.620 N/A
“EC-EN\AZT=H ZEoMENANBEZEZ+ENACH TER
- 1,660,000 - - - 1,660,000 16 November 2021 16 November 2022 to 15 November 2027 1.060 N/A
I AWAY: ZEZZF+-A+AREZEZ+E+-ATEE THER
- 1,670,000 - - - 1,670,000 16 November 2021 16 November 2023 to 15 November 2027 1.060 N/A
“E--F+-F+KH “E-ZFt-A+/ABEZE-tE+-ATAH TER -
I
QU
- 1,670,000 - - - 1,670,000 16 November 2021 16 November 2024 to 15 November 2027 1.060 N/A = 3
—E--%+-F+KH “E-NE+-A+AREZZ-+4F+-A+EA TER $%
42,152,000 69,400,000 (2,500,000)  (55,577,442) 458,137 53,932,695 \I§ g...
81,840,000 124,000,000 (2,500,000)  (95,265,442) 818,101 108,892,659 ¥ g_
=
5
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Share option scheme (continued)

Notes:
(a) The vesting period of the share options is from the date of the grant until the commencement of the exercise period.

(b) The exercise price of the share options is subject to adjustment in the case of rights or bonus issues, or other similar
changes in the Company's share capital.

Vesting of the share options is conditional, subject to the individual performance of respective grantees and the
achievement of 3-year corporate goals for the 3-year performance period ended 30 June 2013.

The exercise periods of share options are as follows:

(i) From the next business day of publication of the announcement of the audited consolidated results of the
Group for the year ended 30 June 2013 to 4 July 2020.

(i) From the next business day of publication of the announcement of the audited consolidated results of the
Group for the year ended 30 June 2013 to 2 January 2021.

(iii) From the next business day of publication of the announcement of the audited consolidated results of the
Group for the year ended 30 June 2013 to 3 July 2021.

Vesting of the share options is conditional, subject to the individual performance of respective grantees and the
achievement of 3-year corporate goals for the 3-year performance period ended 30 June 2016.

The exercise periods of share options are as follows:
(i) From 1 November 2016 to 1 December 2023.
(i) From 1 November 2016 to 1 January 2024.

(iii) From 1 November 2016 to 1 July 2025.
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(i)

(iii)
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>
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BEETEBMOT
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Share option scheme (continued)

Notes: (continued)

(e) Pursuant to the terms of the Scheme, in the event a general offer is made to the shareholders of the Company, the
share option holders may exercise the share options (to the extent not already exercised) to its full extent or to the
extent specified in the notice to the Company in exercise of his or her share options at any time before the close of
such offer (or any revised offer).

(f)  The exercise price was adjusted after completion of rights issue of the Company on 12 April 2021.

Subsequent to the end of reporting period, on 5 January 2022, 2,000,000 share options granted to a director
on 5 January 2021 were exercised with an exercise price of HK$0.456 per share and an exercise period from 1
January 2022 to 31 December 2026. The price of the Company’s shares at the date of exercise was HK$0.82 per
share, which was the Stock Exchange closing price on the trading day immediately prior to the date of exercise
of the options.

On 9 February 2022, 8,072,720 and 2,000,000 share options granted to an employee on 5 January 2021
(adjusted after rights issue on 12 April 2021) and 14 May 2021, respectively, were lapsed with exercise prices
of HK$0.456 per share and HK$0.510 per share, respectively, and exercise periods from 1 January 2022 to 31
December 2026.

The directors have estimated the values of the share options granted during the period, calculated using the
binomial option pricing model as at the date of grant of the options:
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(e) REEFEZEH  HWAARBARRREL2EED  MEBBEN (HER
BIERTMER) BE 2 AT IR R B A R BE R B BT (R R A A (LA E R 7T
FEERB)XATEEBRERTALLRZEHOBATAEEERR -

() THRER-_F-_-—FOA+T-BRRAHBEREELTE -

RBFEHRE R_E_—_F—HAFAB R_ZE_—F—HFABET
—%EE22,000,00017 EREDEITE - 1TEERERBB0.4567T
TEHA - T - - —RAEE-_TE-_ANE+-_A=+—HiL- K&
RNERGRITER B EBRAESRER0.82  BIEEERETER
RS AEBRZAZWmE -

RZEBEZ—F_AhA PR E——F—ARA(R=ZE=—F
MA+-—AEBREEABR) RS- —FRATHAET—ZES Y
8,072,72017 & B 4 %.2,000,00017 BE R E K&K - 1TEE DR AERK
0456 R BB 0510 THEHBH T F—A—BRE
ZEZRFF+ZA=+—HL-

EERA-AANREEEAGHBACREOBERERREAHZE
(=

Number of share Theoretical
options granted value of
during the period share options
HRERE BREZ
BREHAE BEiwmEE
HK$000
Grantee BT EEA
Other employee 124,818,101 22,300 Hffg 8
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Share option scheme (continued)

The binomial model is a generally accepted method of valuing options, taking into account the terms and
conditions upon which the options were granted. The significant assumptions used in the calculation of the
values of the share options were the risk-free interest rate, expected life of options, expected volatility and
expected dividend. The expected life of the options is based on the historical data over the past 10 years and is
not necessarily indicative of the exercise patterns that may occur. The expected volatility reflects the assumption
that the historical volatility is indicative of future trends, which may also not necessarily be the actual outcome.
The measurement dates used in the valuation calculations were the dates on which the options were granted.

The values of share options calculated using the binomial model are subject to certain fundamental limitations,
due to the subjective nature of and uncertainty relating to a number of assumptions of the expected future
performance input to the model, and certain inherent limitations of the model itself.

The value of an option varies with different variables of certain subjective assumptions. Any change to the
variables used may materially affect the estimation of the fair value of an option.

Directors’ interests in transactions, arrangements or contracts

No director nor a connected entity of a director had a material interest, either directly or indirectly, in any
transactions, arrangements or contracts of significance to the business of the Group to which the Company, the
holding company of the Company, or any of the Company’s subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries was a party during
the period.

Purchase, sale or redemption of listed securities of the Company

Neither the Company, nor any of its subsidiaries purchased, sold or redeemed any of the Company’s listed
securities during the period.
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Permitted indemnity provision

The Bye-laws provide that each Director or other officer of the Company shall be entitled to be indemnified out
of the assets of the Company against all losses or liabilities which he or she may sustain or incur in or about
the execution of the duties of his or her office or otherwise in relation thereto. In addition, the Company has
maintained appropriate directors’ and officers’ liability insurance in respect of relevant legal actions against the
Directors.

Sufficiency of public float

Based on information that is publicly available to the Company and within the knowledge of the directors, at least
25% of the Company's total number of issued shares were held by the public as at the date of this report.

Connected transaction and continuing connected transactions

During the period, the Group had the following continuing connected transactions, certain details of which are
disclosed in compliance with the requirements of Chapter 14A of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities
on the Stock Exchange (the “Listing Rules”). Further details of the transactions are included in note 36 to the
consolidated financial statements.

The Company and Dragon Leap Developments Limited, a substantial shareholder of the Company entered into
a Shareholder Loan Agreement on 4 September 2020, whereby Dragon Leap Developments Limited offered an
irrevocable revolving loan facility of HK$100 million. It was fully repaid during the period.

Pursuant to the Purchase Agreement made between Bossini Enterprises Limited (“Bossini Enterprises”), a wholly
owned subsidiary of the Company and Laws International Group Limited (“Laws International”) dated 15 May
2018, certain wholly-owned subsidiaries of the Company purchased garments from certain wholly-owned
subsidiaries of Laws International. Laws International is wholly owned by the trustee of a discretionary trust set
up by a relative of Mr. LAW Ka Sing (“Mr. Law"”) and Mr. LAW Ching Kit Bosco (“Mr. Bosco Law”), the latter
of whom is an eligible discretionary object. Ms. TSIN Man Kuen Bess, the spouse of Mr. Law, was an executive
director and the chairman of the Company and Mr. Bosco Law is a non-executive Director of the Company. On
11 November 2020, the Board approved to revise the existing 2021 annual cap to the revised 2021 annual cap.
Please refer to the announcement of the Company dated 11 November 2020. The Purchase Agreement expired
on 30 June 2021.
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Connected transaction and continuing connected transactions (continued)

On 30 March 2021, Bossini Enterprises and Viva China Sports Holding Limited (“Viva China Sports”), a wholly-
owned subsidiary of Viva China entered into a Sub-Tenancy Agreement. Pursuant to the Sub-Tenancy Agreement,
the annual caps receivable by the Group for the financial year ended 31 December 2021 and for the financial
year ending 31 December 2022 are HK$4.2 million and HK$6.0 million respectively. Subsequent to the end of
the reporting period, on 18 March 2022, Bossini Enterprises and Viva China Sports entered into a Supplemental
Agreement to Sub-Tenancy Agreement (“Supplemental Agreement”). Pursuant to the terms of the Supplemental
Agreement, the major changes were the expiry date of the Sub-Tenancy Agreement was extended from 31
December 2022 to 31 December 2023 and the rental and other charges payable by Viva China Sports to Bossini
Enterprises were reduced. The revised annual cap receivable by the Group for the financial year ending 31
December 2022 and the new annual cap for the financial year ending 31 December 2023 are both HK$5.5
million.

On 28 April 2021, BINTTERBEEE X AR 2 7], a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company and JE Z &4 RHE (£
8)BRAF], a wholly-owned subsidiary of Viva China entered into an E-Commerce Cooperation Agreement.
Subsequent to the end of the reporting period, on 18 March 2022, certain wholly-owned subsidiaries of the
Group and FERFERIF(LE)BFR QA entered into a Live Streaming Cooperation Agreement for a term
commencing from 18 March 2022 and ending on 31 December 2023. As the Live Streaming Cooperation
Agreement and the E-Commerce Cooperation Agreement are entered into between the Group and FERE#4E
B E8)BRAE] in respect of services relating to e-commerce, the transactions contemplated under the
Live Streaming Cooperation Agreement and the E-Commerce Cooperation Agreement are aggregated under
the Listing Rules. Pursuant to the E-Commerce Cooperation Agreement and the Live Streaming Cooperation
Agreement, the annual caps payable by the Group for the financial year ended 31 December 2021 and for the
financial years ending 31 December 2022 and 2023 are RMB12 million, RMB26 million and RMB29.5 million
respectively.

On 7 September 2021, FE=Z S0#IINERAF], a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company and JEL4E
MEE A EEALR)BRAE], a wholly-owned subsidiary of Viva China entered into a Sportswear Sponsorship
Cooperation Agreement. Pursuant to the Sportswear Sponsorship Cooperation Agreement, the annual caps
payable by the Group are RMB20 million for each of the financial year ended 31 December 2021 and for the
financial years ending 31 December 2022 and 2023.
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Connected transaction and continuing connected transactions (continued)

As at 31 December 2021, Viva China indirectly holds approximately 70.65% shares in the Company, which is a
substantial shareholder of the Company and thus is a connected person of the Company.

The Company has complied with the relevant disclosure requirements in respect of the above continuing
connected transactions, and confirmed that these transactions were entered into:

(1)

(2)

in the ordinary and usual course of business of the Group;

in accordance with the Group’s pricing policies for transactions involving the provision of services to the
Group;

on normal commercial terms; and

in accordance with the relevant agreements governing them and on terms that are fair and reasonable
and in the interests of the shareholders as a whole.

PricewaterhouseCoopers, the auditor of the Company, was engaged to report on the above continuing connected

transactions in accordance with Hong Kong Standard on Assurance Engagements 3000 Assurance Engagements
Other Than Audits or Reviews of Historical Financial Information and with reference to Practice Note 740 Auditor’s
Letter on Continuing Connected Transactions under the Listing Rules issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants and reported their conclusions to the Board that the transactions:

(1

()

have been approved by the Board;

have been in accordance with the pricing policies of the Group (for transactions involving the provision of
services to the Group),

have been entered into in accordance with the relevant agreements governing the transactions; and

have not exceeded the annual cap as set out by the Company.
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ENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
ki #5 5

pwc B 5 Bk

To the Shareholders of Bossini International Holdings Limited BEMEBEBREBERARRR
(incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability) (REREIMRINERRQR)

EBERE

Business review

Opinion =8
What we have audited HIPIE & IAE

ibilities

HEEME

The consolidated financial statements of Bossini International Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its BRMERFEEERAFT (U THEBIERR REWB AR A THE
subsidiaries (the “Group”), which are set out on pages 77 to 201, comprise: [E£E)IENETTE201BENGA M ERE - B

&

Corporate social
respons
*©
[ )

the consolidated statement of financial position as at 31 December 2021; e RIZTE_—F+_A=+—HHEEHBHRIE:

e the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income for the eighteen months e HET-—F+_A=F+—AIEtTNEANGEERRAEMNEE

B ended 31 December 2021; Wik

S

%ﬂﬂ e the consolidated statement of changes in equity for the eighteen months ended 31 December 2021, o HE—Z-—F+-_A=+—HULE+T\EANGEEZEEHRE
o

tm ¢ the consolidated statement of cash flows for the eighteen months ended 31 December 2021; and . BRI —FT AT AT EANGERERER S &
i

Re%o

e the notes to the consolidated financial statements, which include a summary of significant accounting
policies and explanatory information.

FAERBHRRHE ERIESHBRRNAERAMEEESR -
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Our opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view of the consolidated financial
position of the Group as at 31 December 2021, and of its consolidated financial performance and its
consolidated cash flows for the eighteen months ended 31 December 2021 in accordance with Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs") issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
("HKICPA") and have been properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure requirements of the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on Auditing (“HKSAs"”) issued by the
HKICPA. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the “Auditor’s Responsibilities for
the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements” section of our report.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
opinion.

Independence
We are independent of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA's Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants
("the Code”), and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our audit
of the consolidated financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the context of
our audit of the consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do
not provide a separate opinion on these matters.

Key audit matters identified in our audit are summarised as follows:

e Impairment assessment of property, plant and equipment and right-of-use assets
e Inventory provision
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ENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
kil 4

Key Audit Matters (continued)
Key Audit Matter

Impairment assessment of property, plant and
equipment and right-of-use assets

Refer to notes 4, 15 and 17 to the consolidated financial
statements.

As at 31 December 2021, the carrying value of the
Group’s property, plant and equipment amounted to -
HK$27.2 million (after impairment provision of HK$21.5
million), and right-of-use assets amounted to HK$112.3
million (after impairment provision of HK$94.5 million).
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How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter

Our audit procedures relating to impairment
assessment of property, plant and equipment and
right-of-use assets included:

Understood and evaluated the internal
controls over the Group's process in the
identification of relevant retail stores having
impairment indicators and preparation of the
cash flow forecasts;

Assessed the inherent risk of material
misstatement by considering the degree of
estimation uncertainty and level of other
inherent risk factors such as complexity,
subjectivity, changes and susceptibility to
management bias or fraud;

Tested the reasonableness of the data
used and challenged management’s key
assumptions adopted in the future cash flow
forecasts, mainly in relation to:

the budgeted sales and gross margin, by
comparing them with historical financial
data of the stores and questioning
business plans with senior management;
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Key Audit Matters (continued)
Key Audit Matter

Impairment assessment of property, plant and
equipment and right-of-use assets (continued)

The operation of the Group’s retail stores was adversely
affected by the outbreak of COVID-19 pandemic and
certain of the Group’s retail stores were loss making
during the period. Management regards each individual
retail store as a separate Group's cash generating
units (“CGU") and carried out impairment assessment
by determining the recoverable amounts of the retail
store assets which have impairment indicators. The
recoverable amount is the higher of an asset's fair value
less cost of disposal and its value-in-use. Management
considers that the recoverable amount of the assets
of the relevant retail stores is determined by value-
in-use (“VIU") calculations using discounted cash
flow projections based on sales forecast prepared
by management with major assumptions including
budgeted sales and gross margin, revenue growth rates
and discount rates.

We focused on this area due to the magnitude of the
carrying amount of property, plant and equipment
and right-of-use assets balances, and the significant
judgement and estimation involved in determining the
recoverable amounts of the relevant assets subject to
impairment assessment.

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter

ii. the revenue growth rates, by comparing
them with the historical financial data
and considering the available industry and
market information; and

iii. the discount rates, by comparing them
with costs of capital of comparable
companies;

— Tested the mathematical accuracy of the
calculations of the recoverable amounts of
those stores subject to impairment test; and

— Evaluated the management’s sensitivity
analysis to ascertain the extent of the change
in the key assumptions that would result in
the retail store assets being impaired and
discussed with management the likelihood of
such a change in the key assumptions arising.

Based on the procedures described above, we
found that the impairment assessment of property,
plant and equipment and right-of-use assets made
by management to be supported by available
evidence.
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ENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

Key Audit Matters (continued)
Key Audit Matter

Inventory provision

Refer to notes 4 and 20 to the consolidated financial
statements.

As at 31 December 2021, the Group had net inventories
of HK$186.6 million, carried at the lower of cost and net
realisable value in the consolidated financial statements.

The apparel industry is highly correlated to seasonal
factors, economic environments, customers’
preferences and competitor actions which affect the
amount of inventory provision to be provided. The
Group has an inventory provision policy and such
provision is made for inventory items whose costs may
not be fully recoverable. The inventory provision is
estimated by reference to data such as inventory ageing,
historical sales experience, expected subsequent period-
end sales.

We focus on this area due to the magnitude of
inventories balances, and the judgment involved in
estimating the net realisable value in management’s
impairment assessment.

ANNUAL REPORT 2020/21 4

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter

Our audit procedures relating to inventory
provision included:

— Understood, evaluated and validated relevant

internal controls over the Group’s process in
(a) the estimation of net realisable value and
(b) periodic reviews of inventory obsolescence,
on sample basis;

— Assessed the inherent risk of material

misstatement by considering the degree of
estimation uncertainty and level of other
inherent risk factors such as complexity,
subjectivity, changes and susceptibility to
management bias or fraud,;

— Tested the ageing of inventory items categorised

into different seasons by checking to relevant
supporting documents such as goods receipt
notes on a sample basis, and recalculated the
mathematical accuracy of the provision made
for the selected items; and
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Key Audit Matters (continued)
Key Audit Matter How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
Inventory provision (continued)

—  Assessed the reasonableness of the provisions
by challenging management'’s projections on
current trends and demands for the remaining
inventories, with reference to historical sales
experience and comparing the carrying values
of inventories items, on a sample basis, to
actual prices for subsequent period-end sales.

Based on the procedures described above, we
found that management’s judgments in estimating
the inventory provision to be supported by
available evidence.

Other Information

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other information. The other information comprises all
of the information included in the annual report other than the consolidated financial statements and our
auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not
express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the
consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially
misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other
information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.
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ENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

Responsibilities of Directors and the Audit Committee for the Consolidated Financial
Statements

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of the consolidated financial statements that
give a true and fair view in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure requirements of
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control as the directors determine is necessary to
enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether
due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are responsible for assessing the Group'’s ability
to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going
concern basis of accounting unless the directors either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or
have no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Audit Committee is responsible for overseeing the Group's financial reporting process.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements as a
whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report
that includes our opinion. We report our opinion solely to you, as a body, in accordance with Section 90 of
the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards
or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this report. Reasonable assurance is a high level of
assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will always detect a
material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material
if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of
users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.
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Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements
(continued)

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional
scepticism throughout the audit. We also:

e |dentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit
evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a
material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

e Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness
of the Group’s internal control.

e  Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates
and related disclosures made by the directors.

e (Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the going concern basis of accounting and,
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions
that may cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude
that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related
disclosures in the consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our
opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report.
However, future events or conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

e Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated financial statements, including
the disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial statements represent the underlying transactions
and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.
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ENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements

(continued)

e Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities or
business activities within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We
are responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the group audit. We remain solely
responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of
the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify
during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical
requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that
may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, actions taken to eliminate
threats or safeguards applied.

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we determine those matters that were of most
significance in the audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current period and are therefore the
key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public
disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not
be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected
to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent auditor’s report is Wong Wai Bong, Benson.

PricewaterhouseCoopers
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong, 18 March 2022
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COI\/IPREHENSIVE

Period ended 31 December 2021 %Z

Period ended Year ended
Notes 31 December 2021 30 June 2020
BE-E-—-F Ek;.:_—\,_—{i
) +=A=1+- ~ . B
HK$'000 st Jli] iiﬁ BETT
CONTINUING OPERATIONS RBECEER
REVENUE 6 1,164,075 1,091,631 s
Cost of sales 8 (567,816) (557,514) HERAK
GROSS PROFIT 596,259 534,117 EA
Other income 6 56,517 32033 H iyl A
Selling, distribution and other operating expenses (702,486) (680,373) HE DEHRHEMEERS
Administrative expenses (272,689) (204,908) THRX
LOSS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES (322,399) (319,131) EEERESR
Finance costs 7 (14,768) (16,182) BB A
LOSS BEFORE TAX FROM CONTINUING OPERATIONS 8 (337,167) (335,313) ﬁﬁ%ﬁ#ﬁz%ﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁ
Income tax expense 11 (2,892) (12,183) FEHAY
LOSS FOR THE PERIOD/YEAR FROM CONTINUING OPERATIONS (340,059) (347,496) BESEER HR/EREE
DISCONTINUED OPERATION BARIEER
Loss for the period/year from a discontinued operation 12 (378) (20,239) BERIEEBZHN/ FREBE
LOSS FOR THE PERIOD/YEAR ATTRIBUTABLE TO OWNERS OF ARRAEEARERR,
THE COMPANY (340,437) (367,735) EREE
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME/(LOSS) Hi2ERE (5
Iterns that may be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss: %?E%@Eﬁﬁ@ Emzﬁﬁi
Change in fair value of a financial asset - 1,367 SREEZAFEED
Reclassification adjustment for a foreign operation deregistered %W[iﬁ@ﬁﬁ%@%%ﬁz
during the period/year (625) 932 BHOBRAE
Exchange differences on translation of foreign operations 15,299 (13,151) BREGINEB 2 IR ERE
NET OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME/(LOSS) 14,674 (10,852) Hip2EF WS (EH8)
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE LOSS FOR THE PERIOD/YEAR AT EEANEERR,
ATTRIBUTABLE TO OWNERS OF THE COMPANY (325,763) (378,587) FRAEZEEBBREE
LOSS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE TO ORDINARY EQUITY (restated) KRBEBEEREAELEBRER
HOLDERS OF THE COMPANY 14 (&85
Basic
~ For loss for the period/year (HK16.52 cents B4l)  (HK21.83 cents #1ll) WA FRER
~ For loss from continuing operations (HK16.50 cents #1l)  (HK20.63 cents 7&1ll) —REREEB I ER
Diluted . e .
— For loss for the period/year (HK16.52 cents Bl)  (HK21.83 cents j&fll) -BR/EREE
— For loss from continuing operations (HK16.50 cents &{l)  (HK20.63 cents /%1l —REKEEB BE

The above consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income should be read in

conjunction with the accompanying notes.

¢+:ﬁz+—
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DATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

At 31 December At 30 June
Notes 2021 2020
R-IBZ-F RZZB_ZEF
HK$'000 MizE +=A=+-H RA=TH BETT
NON-CURRENT ASSETS FRBEE
Property, plant and equipment 15 27,206 25,520 ER G
Investment properties 16 4,687 16,776 REME
Right-of-use assets 17 112,261 164,732 EREEE
Trademark 18 - 1,164 [EEEs \
Deferred tax assets 28 311 386 EERIEEE
Deposits 22 33,811 35,766 e
Total non-current assets 178,276 244,344 ERBEELE
CURRENT ASSETS RBEE
Inventories 20 186,592 209,679 7E
Debtors 21 25,393 48,441 B L B 5
Tax recoverable = 4,484 AU EF I8
Prepayments, deposits and other receivables 22 75,551 90,141 BNRE e MEMEKRE
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss 19 = 593 REZRRATEIE . eRERE
Pledged bank deposits 23 1,959 56 BEARITHERK
Cash and cash equivalents 23 266,655 176,339 RekReFEHER
556,150 529,733 )
Assets classified as held for sale 24 9,437 - DHEARBEHECZEE
Total current assets 565,587 529,733 MEEEAER
CURRENT LIABILITIES RBAE \
Trade creditors, other payables and accruals 25 210,324 118,686 FERTEEZR « Hfb FE ZUE & FEETER 1B
Contract liabilities 26 3,464 3,584 aHaE
Bills payable 11,693 12,277 eSS
Tax payable 2,635 7,739 BT IE
Due to fellow subsidiaries 36 5,377 - FEAT R R T A R IE
Due to related companies 36 = 71 e B A RIFIE
Lease liabilities 17 91,844 154,068 HERE -
Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss 19 = 7 RERERREATFESE22MAE
Interest-bearing bank borrowings 27 = 59,721 FTERITER
Total current liabilities 325,337 356,153 MBI BEEE
NET CURRENT ASSETS 240,250 173,580 RBEERE
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT LIABILITIES 418,526 417,924 BRABREREEAE
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL

AN
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31 December 2021 ZZE = —F+= F =+~

At 31 December At 30 June
Notes 2021 2020
RZB=-—-F RZE-ZTF
HK$'000 Mz +=ZA=+—-8 ~NA=1A BET T
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES ¥RBEE
Deferred tax liabilities 28 1,254 773 BEHEAR
Lease liabilities 17 155,783 133,016 HEBRE
Other payables 25 2,469 2,675 HoAth e 15 3R
Total non-current liabilities 159,506 136,464 EnRBEELE
NET ASSETS 259,020 281,460 EEFE
EQUITY R
Issued capital 29 246,575 164,134 BEITRA
Reserves 32 12,445 117,326 1
TOTAL EQUITY 259,020 281,460 ERAE

The financial statements on pages 77 to 201 were approved by the Board of Directors on 18 March 2022 and

were signed on its behalf.

CHEUNG Chi R &
Director %

The above consolidated statement of financial position should be read in conjunction with the accompanying

notes.

CHAN Cheuk Him Paul B £ 5

Director %
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DATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
TIEE

nded 31 December 2021 HE—ZT=-—F+=-F=+—HILHH

Share Share Capital  Contributed Asset Exchange Reserve
2 Issued premium option reserve surplus  revaluation  fluctuation funds Accumulated Total
.g & Notes capital account reserve ) (note a) (note b) reserve reserve (note ¢) losses equity
Fe k000 ' BAHE  MARE uhge
B BETT M BRARE  ROBER BRERE GET) (b)) BEERRE SERBEE (P Ec) RiER ERHAE
=1 At1luly2020
a RZZ-_FTF+H—H 164,134 29,020 29,547 (3,292) 90,258 9,395 (14,408) 1,810 (25,004) 281,460
Loss for the period
HRER - - - - - - - - (340,437) (340,437)
- Other comprehensive income/(loss) for the period:
SR mRE w2 ERE S (BB)
S Reclassification adjustment for a foreign operation
%%ﬂ deregistered during the period
S Siy B LSEITFES FE LS - - - - - - (625) - - (625)
é §<‘H Exchangg differences on translation of foreign
operations
BEBNEB RIRER - - - - - - 15,299 - - 15,299
élllll Total comprehensive loss for the period
% e BAEEBRER - - - - - - 14,674 - (340,437) (325,763)
215 Exerdise of share options
= ERE 249 603 (164) - - - - - - 688
g*"'“‘ Equity-settled share option arrangements
N i ERRER 30 : ; 8,604 . - . - . . 8,604
Cancellation of share options
EHER AR 30 - - (30,687) - - - - - 30,687 -
s Shares issued under rights issue
B BEHRBRETZ RN 82,192 213,698 - - - - - - - 295,890
% # Transaction costs incurred in respect of rights issue
£y e - s - - - : - - - )
NCpo
E At 31 December 2021
p RZZ=—F+=A=+—H 246,575 241,462* 7,300*% (3.292)* 90,258* 9,395*% 266* 1,810% (334,754)* 259,020
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES |
mERERS
Period ended 31 December 2021 HZE T -_—F+_HA=+—

Share Share Capital Contributed Asset Exchange Reserve Retained profits/
Issued premium option reserve surplus Fair value revaluation fluctuation funds  (Accumulated Total g
Notes capital account reserve (note a) (note b) reserve reserve reserve (note ¢) losses) equity e %

HK$'000 ERERE N FEEE  RBEA/ %o

BETT W BEARA 17 B8R FERR T 1 GED) (Fit7Eb) ATERFE BEERHEE HNERDEE (Kt z¥c) (B5tER) EnE B2

At 1 luly 2019 W

RZE-NF+A—-AH 164,134 29,020 28,904 (3,292) 90,258 (1,367) 9,395 (2,189) 1,810 362,755 679,428 2

Loss for the year

KEEER - - - - - - - - - (367,735) (367,735)

Other comprehensive income/(loss) for the year:

REERMEERS (BB) b3 0
Change in fair value of a financial asset s
ERAE L N FEE - - - - = 1367 - - - - 1367 RS
Reclassification adjustment for a foreign m»%g

operation deregistered during the year w= g
FREEZMBNEL  EMDERAE - - - - - - - 932 - = 932 mee
Exchange differences on translation of foreign -

operations
BEBINER R ER - - - - - - - (13,151) - - (13,151)
=
@D

Total comprehensive loss for the year .,,;"E

FRZEERER - - - - - 1,367 - (12,219) - (367,735)  (378587) |

Final 2019 dividend declared #3

ESE-T-NERERS - - - - - - - - - (0024 Qo024) RS

Equity-settled share option arrangements T

EREERRERS 30 - - 643 - S = = = = = 643 4

At 30 June 2020

RZE-ZFA=+H 164,134 29,020* 29,547* (3,292)* 90,258* —* 9,395* (14,408)* 1,810* (25,004)* 281,460 QS_':

=3

*  These reserve accounts comprise the consolidated reserves of HK$12,445,000 (as at 30 June 2020: HK$117,326,000) * ERBRAEIINGEEUBARRNRAZEA FiRBEK12,4450007T (7 =

in the consolidated statement of financial position. —E-TFA=1+H: %%117,326,0007T) ° b3 g’“
§.
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DATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

nded 31 December 2021 HE—ZT=-—F+=-F=+—HILHH

Notes:

(@) The capital reserve of the Group represents goodwill arising on the acquisition of subsidiaries in prior years.

(b) The contributed surplus of the Group represents the difference between the nominal value of the share capital issued
by the Company and the aggregate of the share capital and the share premium account of the subsidiaries acquired

pursuant to the Group reorganisation prior to the listing of the Company’s shares in 1993.

(¢) In accordance with the financial regulations applicable in mainland China, a portion of the profit of a subsidiary in
mainland China has been transferred to the reserve funds which are restricted as to use.

The above consolidated statement of changes in equity should be read in conjunction with the accompanying
notes.

ANNUAL REPORT 2020/21 4

GEE

() AEEZASGERAEFERENBEARREELZHE -

b) AEEZHARBAEATNERTRAZEBRARARGR—ANZEF
T AT AR o B A O Y ) 2 B BB B R

(@ REBEERANTBEREZHBER  FERE—MHEARZHNENCEE
EERMBGRHEES -

AR A M 2 B B R e B BER P AT — GBI RE o



CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CAS

Period ended 31 December 2021 #{Z =T —

Period ended Year ended
Notes 31 December 2021 30 June 2020
BE-E_—F HE-T-ZF
+=ZA=+—H ANA=+H )
HK$'000 B -] EFE BT
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES %E%gziﬁ.ﬁ;ﬁi
Loss before tax PRE EJ iﬁZE .
From continuing operations (337,167; (335,3133 REEBEEEK
From a discontinued operation (378 (20,239 REBRIEER
Adgustments for: K
| inance costs ‘I(lzl 97)22 1(%,4618‘23) Dj§}5§$
nterest income . 2
(Write-back of provision)/provision for inventories (11,548 3,501 %E}g\ B) / GE®#E
Loss on dlsposaFIJ/wrlte oﬁ‘pmc property, plant and HE #ﬂ@ﬁ%% BENEEFEE
equipment, net 369 1,762 - . B
Gains on early termination of leases (4,538) (215) ?Ei%’é{ Z‘EEZ%ﬂlﬁ
Loss on disposal of a financial asset 8 - 2,473 HETREE B
Impairment of property, plant and equipment 21,548 12,969 ’{WJ% N &.&%Zﬂﬁ
Impairment of right-of-Use assets 8 94,472 102, 306 ;‘-ﬁ)ﬂ%;’;g\ B
Impairment of debtors 8 248 JEU %%/a
Impairment of deposits and other receivables 8 1,350 - Be N AfE EEIEZ/WE
Impairment of trademark 8 1,164 - = f%/@ﬂ N
Fair value losses/(gains), net on financial assets/liabilities at SEaREATEY %mﬁ‘lﬁ?/@
fair value through profit or loss ’Aq:jﬁx/? }EL
e transacUor}s n%t qt:caln‘ymg a§[ hedges 8 157 55;2732 190(;%) F_H?j{ém E%ﬂﬁlﬁ ﬁé
epreciation of right-of-use assets , , ELE
DeBreoatlon of property, plant and equipment and ’«%% 7 & LX&&QW%Zﬁ&
investment properties 26,119 29,355 N
v\(}wty settled share option expense 8 8,604 643 iﬁ/_\%%ﬁﬁﬂﬁﬁﬁﬁ%
rite-off of deposits and other receivables 8 132 6,419 kﬁ&?gﬁ BRIA 2 i 3H
Write-off of debtors 8 335 - FEURBR IR 2 Hiss
(29,030) 7,626 L
Decrease in inventories 39,123 40,086 K)é‘;;)azdh\ )
Decrease in debtors 24,113 6,776 ,mﬂg%mﬁy
Becrease e recelvabled its and oth bl 16,334 18%83 % ’*T_@I%ﬁwé&ﬁ{ JE Y AR T8
ecrease in prepayments, deposits and other receivables , . EFSER H i FE W BR T Al D
Increaselgdecprea%egm trade creditors, other payables and FEHEETK /Jrlﬂﬁ'é%ﬁﬁ%\l,\&ﬁgEJrEEIE'i‘jJD/(ﬂQ
accruals 85,924 (48,548 .
Decrease in bills payable (584 (9,467 FEf ?}%;ﬁ’“% "
Decrease in amounts due to related companies (71 (36 B %%’AE /TAIEQQ\
Increase in amounts due to fellow subsidiaries 5,377 - &I /i\\ﬁg%’ﬁﬂmlﬁibﬂ
Decrease in contract liabilities (120) (178) SX 8B
Cash generated from operations 141,066 9,596 CEEB ERE
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nded 31 December 2021 HE—ZT=-—F+=-F=+—HILHH

DATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

Period ended Year ended
Notes 31 December 2021 30 June 2020
BE-ZT--F BE_Z_ZTF
+=A=+—H ANA=+H
HK$'000 B 1HHRS HFE BETT
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES EEXRCASRE
Cash generated from operations 141,066 9,596 %E%ﬁ%ﬁﬁfﬁ%fﬁﬁ
Interest portion of lease payments (12,887 (15,564 fﬂ‘zﬁﬁé MEZ
Interest paid . 1,881 (841 2 %ﬂ )
Hong Kong profits tax paid 2,352 21,967 A ?\U S
Overseas taxes paid (604 1,108 EABIMIEIE
NET CASH FLOWS GENERATED FROM/(USED IN) EEXBCRE/ () REREFH
OPERATING ACTIVITIES 123,342 (9,884)
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES R %Eb ZRERE
Interest received . 2,966 2,602 2 A 8 .
Purchases of property, plant and equipment (43,804) (19,952) EE ER @}%%ﬁ{%
Eroceegs irom éedempltlofn of a ﬂpancllaltasseJ . . 330 - 230,%% ﬁl:ujé’g 3 21‘%%??&%%/ s
roceeds from disposal of property, plant and equipmen . N G4 SO _ . .
(Increase)/decreasg in pled_gedpbar%/k Fc)ieposits wit griginal HX%M?E%E = %@ET%Zﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁ%ﬁ\ (sgm),/md
maturity of more than three months when acquire (1,903) 809
NET CASH FLOWS (USED IN)/GENERATED FROM RETEH 2 (Fifk) FBREREFE
INVESTING ACTIVITIES (41,344) 214,200
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES BEEH 2 HERE
Addition of bank loans - 184,960 ?g)j SIRTTE K
Repayment of bank loans _ (59,721) (155,239) ERBREK
Addition of loan from immediate holding company 100,000 - %Tﬁ&ﬁi’éﬂﬁr@*ﬁ
B_epgymdent ijloan from immediate holding company (100,000) 20 022 E‘f %?ﬁﬁﬁ@% 3 T
ividends pai - . IS N
Principal pgrtion of lease payments (234,761) (196,4123 e i%’&z_$§umﬁ/ )
Proceeds from issue of shares upon rights issue 295,890 - = gﬁﬁgﬁ X "%Fﬁ EEg)
Transaction costs incurred in respect of rights issue (1,859) - ARBREL RPN
Proceeds from issue of shares upon exercise of share options 688 - TEBRERETRG < EHRIEA
NET CASH FLOWS GENERATED FROM/(USED IN) REZBZHME/ (FR)AEREFRH
FINANCING ACTIVITIES 237 (186,715)
NET INCREASE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 82,235 17,601 Be CEEER ZFIEN
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of period/year 176,339 160,975 B4, %%ﬂZIﬁfE&Iﬁgé{ﬁlﬁ B
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes I (2,237) HNE SRR BB &
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT END OF B/ FRZESRELEEENR
PERIOD/YEAR 266,655 176,339
ANALYSIS OF BALANCES OF CASH AND CASH iﬁﬁéﬁﬁ%ﬁlﬁ =]
EQUIVALENTS EeR AT
Cash and bank balances , 23 240,236 161,339 By &ﬁﬁﬂéigéﬁ . P
Non-pledged bank deposits vvlth.oraglnal maturity of less REEETAHEOR=EA Y BERBTER
than three months when acquire 23 26,419 15,000
Cash and cash equivalents as stated in the consolidated FEReNBRMACRERAEEHEER
statement of cash flows 23 266,655 176,339

The above consolidated statement of cash flows should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.
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GENERAL INFORMATION

Bossini International Holdings Limited is a limited liability company incorporated in Bermuda. The registered
office of the Company is located at Victoria Place, 5th Floor, 31 Victoria Street, Hamilton HM 10, Bermuda.
Its shares are listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”).

During the period, the Company and its subsidiaries (the “Group”) was principally engaged in investment
holding and the retailing, distribution and wholesaling of garments.

These consolidated financial statements are presented in Hong Kong dollar (“HK$"), unless otherwise
stated and have been approved for issue by board of Directors on 18 March 2022.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

This note provides a list of the significant accounting policies adopted in the preparation of these
consolidated financial statements. These policies have been consistently applied to all the periods
presented, unless otherwise stated. The financial statements are for the Group consisting of the Company
and its subsidiaries.

2.1 BASIS OF PREPARATION

(a) Compliance with HKFRS and HKCO
The consolidated financial statements of the Group have been prepared in accordance with Hong
Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) and disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance Cap. 622 (“HKCQO"). The consolidated financial statements have been
prepared on a historical cost convention, except for financial assets/liabilities at fair value through
profit or loss which have been measured at fair value.

The preparation of the consolidated financial statements in conformity with HKFRS requires the use
of certain critical accounting estimates. It also requires management to exercise its judgement in the
process of applying the Group’s accounting policies. The areas involving a higher degree of judgement
or complexity, or areas where assumptions and estimates are significant to the consolidated financial
statements are disclosed in note 4.

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STA

wa %

31 December 2021 —ZE = —F+ = A=+

—RER
EBEEREBERAR N EREFMAIZERAR - AAEZ
S 3% = B (7 K Victoria Place, 5th Floor, 31 Victoria Street, Hamilton
HM 10, Bermuda ° XA GIRGERBHE R SMAR A A ([H#R
Frl) Emre

ARmREMBAR (AEE ) RHANEENRFREEBRIMKKE
B DHERIBEER-

BIEREURA  DARSEKAMBERTIAEE (EK]) 27/ KB
RZB-—F=A+\BHESSHERM -

TESTHRRBE

AW ERREEZEFAMBREATARAZEIESTRRBE
BRAEHRPIN ZEBRRRAAESRBMEM—BUEM - MBHREK
DRAEE(RARRREKERBHEK) HE -

2.1 fmBREE

(a) BFEBUBERERREEQBRH
AEESAPBRRCREFTBVHEREL ([ FEM B ER
R REBREED (86225) ([FERBGAL) WIRER
TR GEVMBRRERBELKAERE - RN BERRE
NFEINRZEREE ABEUAATFENE -

REN BB BERENNGEMBEREIFTEEAETEKR
BEHEF - BB IRAR B R A S B & 5T B F B HE - 5
RESEEHERERY  IRRREFHGREPBEHRRME
BEKX 2 EIEOP A EE
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31 December 2021 —T=—F+=-A=+—8H

2.1 BASIS OF PREPARATION (continued)
(b) Change of financial year end date

(9]

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

On 25 February 2021, the Board announced that the financial year end date of the Company has
been changed from 30 June to 31 December commencing from the financial period ended 31
December 2021 in order to align its financial year end date with the controlling shareholder of the
Company. Accordingly, the accompanying consolidated financial statements for the current financial
period covers an eighteen months period from 1 July 2020 to 31 December 2021. The comparative
figures, however, are for twelve months from 1 July 2019 to 30 June 2020, and hence are not directly

comparable.

New and amended standards adopted by the Group
The Group has applied the following standards and amendments for the first time for their annual

reporting period commencing 1 July 2020:

HKAS 1 and HKAS 8 (Amendments)

HKAS 39, HKFRS 4,
HKFRS 7, HKFRS 9 and HKFRS 16
(Amendments)

HKAS 39, HKFRS 4,
HKFRS 7, HKFRS 9 and HKFRS 16
(Amendments)

HKFRS 3 (Amendments)

Conceptual Framework for
Financial Reporting 2018

Amendments to HKAS 1 and HKAS 8 — Definition of
Material

Amendments to HKAS 39, HKFRS 4, HKFRS 7, HKFRS
9 and HKFRS 16 — Interest Rate Benchmark Reform

Amendments to HKAS 39, HKFRS 4, HKFRS 7, HKFRS
9 and HKFRS 16 — Interest Rate Benchmark Reform
— Phase 2

Amendments to HKFRS 3 — Definition of a Business

Revised Conceptual Framework for Financial Reporting

The amendments listed above did not have any impact on the amounts recognised in prior periods and
are not expected to significantly affect the current or future periods.
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2.1 BASIS OF PREPARATION (continued)
(c) New and amended standards adopted by the Group (continued)

The Group also elected to early adopt the following amendment:

HKFRS 16 (2021 Amendments) 2021 Amendments to HKFRS 16 -
Covid-19-related Rent Concessions beyond
30 June 2021

The amendment provides an optional exemption from assessing whether a rent concession related to
COVID-19 is a lease modification. Lessees can elect to account for rent concessions in the same way
as they would if they were not lease modifications.

The practical expedient only applies to rent concessions occurring as a direct consequence of the
COVID-19 pandemic and only if all of the following conditions are met:

e the change in lease payments results in revised consideration for the lease that is substantially the
same as, or less than, the consideration for the lease immediately preceding the change;

e any reduction in lease payments affects only payments due on or before 30 June 2022; and

e there is no substantive change to other terms and conditions of the lease.

The Group has applied the practical expedient to all qualifying COVID-19-related rent concessions.
Rent concessions totalling HK$24,447,000 have been accounted for as negative variable lease
payments and recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income for the period ended 31 December 2021.
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HKAS 1 (Amendments)

HKAS 1 and HKFRS Practice

Statement 2 (Amendments)

HKAS 8 (Amendments)

HKAS 12 (Amendments)

HKAS 16 (Amendments)

HKAS 28 and HKFRS 10
(Amendments)

HKAS 37 (Amendments)

HKFRS 3 (Amendments)

HKFRS 17
Accounting Guideline 5
(Revised)

Annual Improvements Projects

Hong Kong Interpretation 5
(2020)

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2.1 BASIS OF PREPARATION (continued)
(d) New standards and interpretations not yet adopted

Amendments to HKAS 1 - Classification of Liabilities
as Current or Non-current

Amendments to HKAS 1 and HKFRS Practice
Statement 2 — Disclosure of Accounting Policies

Amendments to HKAS 8 — Definition of Accounting
Estimates

Amendments to HKAS 12 — Deferred Tax related
to Assets and Liabilities arising from a Single
Transaction

Amendments to HKAS 16 — Property, Plant and
Equipment — Proceeds before Intended Use

Amendments to HKAS 28 and HKFRS 10 — Sale or
Contribution of Assets between an Investor and
its Associate or Joint Venture

Amendments to HKAS 37 — Onerous Contracts —
Cost Fulfilling a Contract

Amendments to HKFRS 3 - Reference to the
Conceptual Framework

Insurance Contracts

Revised Accounting Guideline 5 — Merger
Accounting for Common Control Combinations

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2018-2020

Presentation of Financial Statements — Classification
by the Borrower of a Term Loan that Contains a
Repayment on Demand Clause

Effective for
accounting
period beginning
on or after

1 January 2023

1 January 2023

1 January 2023

1 January 2023

1 January 2022

To be determined

1 January 2022

1 January 2022

1 January 2023
1 January 2022

1 January 2022

1 January 2023

Certain new accounting standards, amendments to accounting standards and interpretations have
been published that are not mandatory for 31 December 2021 reporting periods and have not been
early adopted by the Group. These standards, amendments or interpretations are not expected to have
a material impact on the entity in the current or future reporting periods and on foreseeable future

transactions.
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2.2 SUBSIDIARIES
Subsidiaries are all entities (including structured entities) over which the Group has control. The Group
controls an entity where the Group is exposed to, or has rights to, variable returns from its involvement
with the entity and has the ability to affect those returns through its power to direct the activities of the
entity. Subsidiaries are fully consolidated from the date on which control is transferred to the Group. They
are deconsolidated from the date that control ceases.

The acquisition method of accounting is used to account for business combinations by the Group.

Inter-company transactions, balances and unrealised gains on transactions between group companies are
eliminated. Unrealised losses are also eliminated unless the transaction provides evidence of an impairment
of the transferred asset. Accounting policies of subsidiaries have been changed where necessary to ensure
consistency with the policies adopted by the Group.

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STA
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CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e

31 December 2021 —T=—F+=-A=+—8H

2.3 BUSINESS COMBINATIONS
The acquisition method of accounting is used to account for all business combinations, regardless of
whether equity instruments or other assets are acquired. The consideration transferred for the acquisition
of a subsidiary comprises the:
e fair values of the assets transferred,;
e liabilities incurred to the former owners of the acquired business;
e equity interests issued by the Group;
e fair value of any asset or liability resulting from a contingent consideration arrangement; and
e fair value of any pre-existing equity interest in the subsidiary.
Identifiable assets acquired and liabilities and contingent liabilities assumed in a business combination are,
with limited exceptions, measured initially at their fair values at the acquisition date. The group recognises
any non-controlling interest in the acquired entity on an acquisition-by-acquisition basis either at fair value
or at the non-controlling interest’s proportionate share of the acquired entity’s net identifiable assets.
Acquisition-related costs are expensed as incurred.
The excess of the:
e consideration transferred;

e amount of any non-controlling interest in the acquired entity; and

e acquisition-date fair value of any previous equity interest in the acquired entity

B % & B

over the fair value of the net identifiable assets acquired is recorded as goodwill. If those amounts are
less than the fair value of the net identifiable assets of the business acquired, the difference is recognised
directly in profit or loss as a bargain purchase.
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2.3 BUSINESS COMBINATIONS (continued)

Where settlement of any part of cash consideration is deferred, the amounts payable in the future
are discounted to their present value as at the date of exchange. The discount rate used is the entity’s
incremental borrowing rate, being the rate at which a similar borrowing could be obtained from an
independent financier under comparable terms and conditions. Contingent consideration is classified
either as equity or a financial liability. Amounts classified as a financial liability are subsequently remeasured
to fair value with changes in fair value recognised in profit or loss.

If the business combination is achieved in stages, the acquisition date carrying value of the acquirer’s
previously held equity interest in the acquiree is remeasured to fair value at the acquisition date. Any gains
or losses arising from such remeasurement are recognised in profit or loss.

2.4 SEPARATE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Investments in subsidiaries are accounted for at cost less impairment. Cost includes direct attributable
costs of investment. The results of subsidiaries are accounted for by the Company on the basis of dividend
received and receivable.

Impairment testing of the investments in subsidiaries is required upon receiving a dividend from these
investments if the dividend exceeds the total comprehensive income of the subsidiary in the period the
dividend is declared or if the carrying amount of the investment in the separate financial statements
exceeds the carrying amount in the consolidated financial statements of the investee’s net assets including
goodwill.

2.5 SEGMENT REPORTING

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the internal reporting provided to the chief
operating decision maker. The chief operating decision maker, who is responsible for allocating resources
and assessing performance of the operating segments, has been identified as the management that makes
strategic decisions.
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2.6 FOREIGN CURRENCY TRANSLATION

(a)

(b)

Functional and presentation currency

ltems included in the financial statements of each of the Group's entities are measured using the
currency of the primary economic environment in which the entity operates (‘the functional currency’).
The consolidated financial statements are presented in Hong Kong dollar (HK$), which is the
Company’s functional and presentation currency.

Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the functional currency using the exchange rates
at the dates of the transactions. Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting from the settlement of
such transactions and from the translation of monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies at period end exchange rates are generally recognised in profit or loss. They are deferred
in equity if they relate to qualifying cash flow hedges and qualifying net investment hedges or are
attributable to part of the net investment in a foreign operation.

All other foreign exchange gains and losses are presented in the consolidated statement of profit or
loss and other comprehensive income on a net basis within “Selling, distribution and other operating
expenses”.

Non-monetary items that are measured at fair value in a foreign currency are translated using the
exchange rates at the date when the fair value was determined. Translation differences on assets and
liabilities carried at fair value are reported as part of the fair value gain or loss. For example, translation
differences on non-monetary assets and liabilities such as equities held at fair value through profit or
loss are recognised in profit or loss as part of the fair value gain or loss.
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2.6 FOREIGN CURRENCY TRANSLATION (continued)
() Group companies

The results and financial position of foreign operations (none of which has the currency of a
hyperinflationary economy) that have a functional currency different from the presentation currency
are translated into the presentation currency as follows:

e assets and liabilities for each statement of financial position presented are translated at the closing
rate at the date of that consolidated statement of financial position;

e income and expenses for each statement of profit or loss and statement of comprehensive income
are translated at average exchange rates (unless this is not a reasonable approximation of the
cumulative effect of the rates prevailing on the transaction dates, in which case income and
expenses are translated at the dates of the transactions); and

e all resulting exchange differences are recognised in other comprehensive income.

On consolidation, exchange differences arising from the translation of any net investment in foreign
entities, and of borrowings and other financial instruments designated as hedges of such investments,
are recognised in other comprehensive income. When a foreign operation is sold or any borrowings
forming part of the net investment are repaid, the associated exchange differences are reclassified to
profit or loss, as part of the gain or loss on sale.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on the acquisition of a foreign operation are treated as
assets and liabilities of the foreign operation and translated at the closing rate.
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2.6 FOREIGN CURRENCY TRANSLATION (continued)
(d) Disposal of foreign operation and partial disposal
On the disposal of a foreign operation (that is, a disposal of the Group's entire interest in a foreign
operation, or a disposal involving loss of control over a subsidiary that includes a foreign operation,
a disposal involving loss of joint control over a joint venture that includes a foreign operation, or a
disposal involving loss of significant influence over an associate that includes a foreign operation), all
of the currency translation differences accumulated in equity in respect of that operation attributable
to the owners of the Company are reclassified to profit or loss.

In the case of a partial disposal that does not result in the Group losing control over a subsidiary that
includes a foreign operation, the proportionate share of accumulated currency translation differences
are re-attributed to non-controlling interests and are not recognised in profit or loss. For all other
partial disposals (that is, reductions in the Group’s ownership interest in associates or joint ventures
that do not result in the Group losing significant influence or joint control), the proportionate share of
the accumulated exchange difference is reclassified to profit or loss.

2.7 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
Property, plant and equipment are stated at historical cost less accumulated depreciation and any
impairment losses. Historical cost includes expenditure that is directly attributable to the acquisition of the
items.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount or recognised as a separate asset, as
appropriate, only when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to
the Group and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. The carrying amount of any component
accounted for as a separate asset is derecognised when replaced. All other repairs and maintenance are
charged to profit or loss during the reporting period in which they are incurred.
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2.7 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (continued)

Depreciation is calculated using the straight-line method to allocate their cost or revalued amounts, net of
their residual values, over their estimated useful lives as follows:

Leasehold improvements

Furniture, fixtures and office
equipment

Motor vehicles

15% to 33% or over the lease terms, whichever is shorter
15% to 33% or over the lease terms, whichever is shorter

15% to 33%

The assets’ residual values and useful lives are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at the end of each
reporting period.

An asset’s carrying amount is written down immediately to its recoverable amount if the asset’s carrying
amount is greater than its estimated recoverable amount (note 2.10).

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by comparing proceeds with carrying amount. These are
included in profit or loss. When revalued assets are sold, it is group policy to transfer any amounts included
in other reserves in respect of those assets to retained earnings.

2.8 INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

Investment properties are held for long-term rental yields and are not occupied by the Group. The Group
has adopted the cost model under HKAS 40 to account for its investment properties and such properties
are stated at cost less depreciation and any impairment losses.

Depreciation is calculated on the straight-line basis to write off the cost of the investment properties to its
residual value over its estimated useful life. The annual depreciation rate used for this purpose is 3%.

Any gains or losses on the retirement or disposal of an investment properties are recognised in profit or
loss in the year of the retirement or disposal.
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2.9 TRADEMARK
The Group classified the acquired “bossini” trademark in Indonesia as an intangible with an indefinite life
in accordance with HKAS 38 Intangible Assets. This is supported by the fact that the “bossini” trademark
has been a well-known and long-established fashion brand in 1987, its legal rights are capable of being
renewed indefinitely at insignificant cost and therefore are perpetual in duration, and based on the future
performance of the Group.

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial recognition at cost. The cost of intangible
assets acquired in a business combination is the fair value as at the date of acquisition. The useful lives
of intangible assets are assessed to be either finite or indefinite. Intangible assets with finite lives are
subsequently amortised over the useful economic life and assessed for impairment whenever there is an
indication that the intangible asset may be impaired. The amortisation period and the amortisation method
for an intangible asset with a finite useful life are reviewed at least at each financial period end.

Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives are tested for impairment annually either individually or at the
cash-generating unit level. Such intangible assets are not amortised. The useful life of an intangible asset
with an indefinite life is reviewed annually to determine whether indefinite life assessment continues to be
supportable. If not, the change in the useful life assessment from indefinite to finite is accounted for on a
prospective basis.

2.10IMPAIRMENT OF NON-FINANCIAL ASSETS

Intangible assets that have an indefinite useful life are not subject to amortisation and are tested annually
for impairment, or more frequently if events or changes in circumstances indicate that they might be
impaired. Other assets are tested for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate
that the carrying amount may not be recoverable. An impairment loss is recognised for the amount by
which the asset’s carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is the higher
of an asset'’s fair value less costs of disposal and value in use. For the purposes of assessing impairment,
assets are grouped at the lowest levels for which there are separately identifiable cash inflows which are
largely independent of the cash inflows from other assets or groups of assets (cash-generating units). Non-
financial assets that suffered an impairment are reviewed for possible reversal of the impairment at the end
of each reporting period.
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2.11 ASSETS CLASSIFIED AS HELD FOR SALE AND DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS

Assets are classified as held for sale if their carrying amount will be recovered principally through a
sale transaction rather than through continuing use and a sale is considered highly probable. They are
measured at the lower of their carrying amount and fair value less costs to sell, except for assets such as
deferred tax assets, assets arising from employee benefits, financial assets and investment property that are
carried at fair value and contractual rights under insurance contracts, which are specifically exempt from
this requirement.

An impairment loss is recognised for any initial or subsequent write-down of the asset to fair value less
costs to sell. A gain is recognised for any subsequent increases in fair value less costs to sell of an asset,
but not in excess of any cumulative impairment loss previously recognised. A gain or loss not previously
recognised by the date of the sale of the asset is recognised at the date of derecognition.

Assets are not depreciated or amortised while they are classified as held for sale. Interest and other
expenses attributable to the liabilities of a disposal group classified as held for sale continue to be
recognised.

Assets classified as held for sale are presented separately from the other assets in the consolidated
statement of financial position.

A discontinued operation is a component of the entity that has been disposed of or is classified as held
for sale and that represents a separate major line of business or geographical area of operations, is part
of a single co-ordinated plan to dispose of such a line of business or area of operations, or is a subsidiary
acquired exclusively with a view to resale. The results of discontinued operations are presented separately
in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income.
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2.12INVESTMENTS AND OTHER FINANCIAL ASSETS

0}

(ii)

Classification
The Group classifies its financial assets in the following measurement categories:

e those to be measured subsequently at fair value (either through other comprehensive income
("OCI") or through profit or loss), and

e those to be measured at amortised cost.

The classification depends on the entity’s business model for managing the financial assets and the
contractual terms of the cash flows.

For assets measured at fair value, gains and losses will either be recorded in profit or loss or OCI. For
investments in equity instruments that are not held for trading, this will depend on whether the Group
has made an irrevocable election at the time of initial recognition to account for the equity investment
at fair value through other comprehensive income (“FVOCI"”).

Recognition and derecognition

Regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are recognised on trade-date, the date on which
the Group commits to purchase or sell the asset. Financial assets are derecognised when the rights to
receive cash flows from the financial assets have expired or have been transferred and the Group has
transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership.

(iii) Measurement

B % & B

Financial information
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At initial recognition, the Group measures a financial asset at its fair value plus, in the case of a
financial asset not at fair value through profit or loss (“FVPL"), transaction costs that are directly
attributable to the acquisition of the financial asset. Transaction costs of financial assets carried at FVPL
are expensed in profit or loss.

Financial assets with embedded derivatives are considered in their entirety when determining whether
their cash flows are solely payment of principal and interest.
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2.12INVESTMENTS AND OTHER FINANCIAL ASSETS (continued) LRNRERAEMMERMEE ()
(iii) Measurement (continued) (iii) 52 (#&)
Debt instruments EFTA
Subsequent measurement of debt instruments depends on the Group’s business model for managing B TANEGTERTAEEEREENEKEAREEN
the asset and the cash flow characteristics of the asset. There are three measurement categories into ReRnBFEINE - AEEKEBERTASEA=E=1E5:

which the Group classifies its debt instruments:

e Amortised cost:

Assets that are held for collection of contractual cash flows where those cash flows represent
solely payments of principal and interest are measured at amortised cost. Interest income from
these financial assets is included in other income using the effective interest rate method. Any
gain or loss arising on derecognition is recognised directly in profit or loss and presented in
“Selling, distribution and other operating expenses” together with foreign exchange gains and
losses. Impairment losses are presented as separate line item in the consolidated statement of
profit or loss and other comprehensive income.

e FVOCI:

Assets that are held for collection of contractual cash flows and for selling the financial assets,
where the assets’ cash flows represent solely payments of principal and interest, are measured
at FVOCI. Movements in the carrying amount are taken through OCI, except for the recognition
of impairment gains or losses, interest income and foreign exchange gains and losses which are
recognised in profit or loss. When the financial asset is derecognised, the cumulative gain or
loss previously recognised in OCl is reclassified from equity to profit or loss and recognised in
“Selling, distribution and other operating expenses”. Interest income from these financial assets
is included in other income using the effective interest rate method. Foreign exchange gains and
losses are presented in “Selling, distribution and other operating expenses” and impairment
expenses are presented as separate line item in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income.

e FVPL:
Assets that do not meet the criteria for amortised cost or FVOCI are measured at FVPL. A gain or
loss on a debt investment that is subsequently measured at FVPL is recognised in profit or loss and
presented net within “Selling, distribution and other operating expenses” in the period in which
it arises.
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The Group subsequently measures all equity investments at fair value. Where the Group’s
management has elected to present fair value gains and losses on equity investments in OCI,
there is no subsequent reclassification of fair value gains and losses to profit or loss following the
derecognition of the investment. Dividends from such investments continue to be recognised in profit
or loss as “Other income” when the Group’s right to receive payments is established.

Changes in the fair value of financial assets at FVPL are recognised in “Selling, distribution and other

The Group assesses on a forward-looking basis the expected credit losses associated with its debt
instruments carried at amortised cost and FVOCI. The impairment methodology applied depends on
whether there has been a significant increase in credit risk.

For debtors, the Group applies the simplified approach permitted by HKFRS 9, which requires expected
lifetime losses to be recognised from initial recognition of the receivables, see note 21 for further
details.
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(iii) Measurement (continued) (iii) 5t & (&)
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2.13OFFSETTING FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount reported in the consolidated statement of
financial position where the Group currently has a legally enforceable right to offset the recognised
amounts, and there is an intention to settle on a net basis or realise the asset and settle the liability
simultaneously. The Group has also arrangements that do not meet the criteria for offsetting but still allow
for the related amounts to be set off in certain circumstances, such as bankruptcy or the termination of a
contract.

2.14DERIVATIVES AND HEDGING ACTIVITIES

Derivatives are initially recognised at fair value on the date a derivative contract is entered into and are
subsequently remeasured to their fair value at the end of each reporting period. The accounting for
subsequent changes in fair value depends on whether the derivative is designated as a hedging instrument,
and if so, the nature of the item being hedged. The Group designates certain derivatives as hedges of the
fair value of recognised assets or liabilities or a firm commitment (fair value hedges).

At the inception of the hedging, The Group documents the economic, relationship between hedging
instruments and hedged items, including whether changes in the cash flows of the hedging instruments
are expected to offset changes in the cash flows of hedges items. The Group documents its risk
management objective and strategy for undertaking its hedge transactions.

The fair values of derivative financial instruments designated in hedge relationships are disclosed in note
19. The full fair value of a hedging derivative is classified as a non-current asset or liability when the
remaining maturity of the hedged item is more than 12 months; it is classified as a current asset or liability
when the remaining maturity of the hedged item is less than 12 months. Trading derivatives are classified
as a current asset or liability.

Derivatives that do not qualify for hedge accounting

Certain derivative instruments do not qualify for hedge accounting. Changes in the fair value of any
derivative instrument that does not qualify for hedge accounting are recognised immediately in profit or
loss and are included in “Other income”.
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2.15INVENTORIES
Inventories are garments held by the Group as at the reporting date. Inventories are stated at the lower
of cost and net realisable value. Cost is determined on the first-in, first-out basis and includes all costs of
purchase and other costs incurred in bringing the inventories to their present location and condition. Net
realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business less the estimated costs of
completion and the estimated costs necessary to make the sale.

2.16 DEBTORS
Debtors are amounts due from customers for goods sold or services performed in the ordinary course of

business. They are generally due for settlement up to 60 days and therefore all classified as current.

Debtors are recognised initially at the amount of consideration that is unconditional unless they contain
significant financing components, when they are recognised at fair value. The Group holds the debtors
with the objective of collecting the contractual cash flows and therefore measures them subsequently at
amortised cost using the effective interest method. See note 21 for further information about the Group'’s
accounting for debtors and note 3.1 for a description of the Group’s impairment policies.

2.17 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
For the purpose of presentation in the consolidated statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents
includes cash on hand, deposits held at call with financial institutions, other short-term, highly liquid
investments with original maturities of three months or less that are readily convertible to known amounts
of cash and which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value, and bank overdrafts. Bank
overdrafts are shown within borrowings in current liabilities in the consolidated statement of financial
position.

2.18 SHARE CAPITAL
Ordinary shares are classified as equity.

Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue of new shares or share options are shown in equity as a
deduction, net of tax, from the proceeds.
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2.19TRADE CREDITORS, OTHER PAYABLES AND ACCRUALS

These amounts represent liabilities for goods and services provided to the Group prior to the end of
financial period which are unpaid. The amounts are unsecured and are usually paid within 30 days of
recognition. Trade creditors, other payables and accruals are presented as current liabilities unless payment
is not due within 12 months after the reporting period. They are recognised initially at their fair value and
subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method.

2.20 CONTRACT LIABILITIES

A contract liability is recognised when an entity’s obligation to transfer goods or services to a customer for
which the entity has received consideration (or the amount is due) from the customer. Contract liabilities
are recognised as revenue when the Group performs under the contract (i.e., transfers control of the
related goods or services to the customer).

2.21BORROWINGS

Borrowings are initially recognised at fair value, net of transaction costs incurred. Borrowings are
subsequently measured at amortised cost. Any difference between the proceeds (net of transaction costs)
and the redemption amount is recognised in profit or loss over the period of the borrowings using the
effective interest method. Fees paid on the establishment of loan facilities are recognised as transaction
costs of the loan to the extent that it is probable that some or all of the facility will be drawn down. In this
case, the fee is deferred until the draw-down occurs. To the extent there is no evidence that it is probable
that some or all of the facility will be drawn down, the fee is capitalised as a prepayment for liquidity
services and amortised over the period of the facility to which it relates.

Borrowings are removed from the consolidated statement of financial position when the obligation
specified in the contract is discharged, cancelled or expired. The difference between the carrying amount
of a financial liability that has been extinguished or transferred to another party and the consideration paid,
including any non-cash assets transferred or liabilities assumed, is recognised in profit or loss as finance
costs.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the Group has an unconditional right to defer
settlement of the liability for at least 12 months after the reporting period.
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2.22BORROWING COSTS
General and specific borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or
production of a qualifying asset are capitalised during the period of time that is required to complete and
prepare the asset for its intended use or sale. Qualifying assets are assets that necessarily take a substantial
period of time to get ready for their intended use or sale.

Investment income earned on the temporary investment of specific borrowings pending their expenditure
on qualifying assets is deducted from the borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation.

Other borrowing costs are expensed in the period in which they are incurred.

2.23CURRENT AND DEFERRED INCOME TAX
The income tax expense or credit for the period is the tax payable on the current period’s taxable income
based on the applicable income tax rate for each jurisdiction adjusted by changes in deferred tax assets
and liabilities attributable to temporary differences and to unused tax losses.

(a) Current income tax

The current income tax charge is calculated on the basis of the tax laws enacted or substantively
enacted at the end of the reporting period in the countries where the company and its subsidiaries and
associates operate and generate taxable income. Management periodically evaluates positions taken
in tax returns with respect to situations in which applicable tax regulation is subject to interpretation
and considers whether it is probable that a taxation authority will accept an uncertain tax treatment.
The Group measures its tax balances either based on the most likely amount or the expected value,
depending on which method provides a better prediction of the resolution of the uncertainty.
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2.23 CURRENT AND DEFERRED INCOME TAX (continued)
(b) Deferred income tax

Deferred income tax is provided in full, using the liability method, on temporary differences arising
between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts in the consolidated financial
statements. However, deferred tax liabilities are not recognised if they arise from the initial recognition
of goodwill. Deferred income tax is also not accounted for if it arises from initial recognition of an asset
or liability in a transaction other than a business combination that at the time of the transaction affects
neither accounting nor taxable profit or loss and does not give rise to equal taxable and deductible
temporary differences. Deferred income tax is determined using tax rates (and laws) that have been
enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period and are expected to apply when
the related deferred income tax asset is realised or the deferred income tax liability is settled.

Deferred tax assets are recognised only if it is probable that future taxable amounts will be available
to utilise those temporary differences and losses.

Deferred tax liabilities and assets are not recognised for temporary differences between the carrying
amount and tax bases of investments in foreign operations where the company is able to control
the timing of the reversal of the temporary differences and it is probable that the differences will not
reverse in the foreseeable future.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset where there is a legally enforceable right to offset current
tax assets and liabilities and where the deferred tax balances relate to the same taxation authority.
Current tax assets and tax liabilities are offset where the entity has a legally enforceable right to offset
and intends either to settle on a net basis, or to realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

Current and deferred tax is recognised in profit or loss, except to the extent that it relates to items
recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity. In this case, the tax is also recognised
in other comprehensive income or directly in equity, respectively.
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2.24EMPLOYEE BENEFITS

Short-term obligations

Liabilities for wages and salaries, including non-monetary benefits and accumulating sick leave that are
expected to be settled wholly within 12 months after the end of the period in which the employees render
the related service are recognised in respect of employees’ services up to the end of the reporting period
and are measured at the amounts expected to be paid when the liabilities are settled. The liabilities are
presented as current employee benefit obligations in the consolidated statement of financial position.

Paid leave carried forward

The Group provides paid annual leave to its employees under their employment contracts on a calendar
year basis. Under certain circumstances, such leave which remains untaken as at the end of the reporting
period is permitted to be carried forward and utilised by the respective employees in the following year. An
accrual is made at the end of the reporting period for the expected future cost of such paid leave earned
during the period by the employees and carried forward.

Pension schemes

The Group operates two pension schemes in Hong Kong, namely the Mandatory Provident Fund
retirement benefit scheme (the “MPF Scheme”) under the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance
and a defined contribution retirement benefit scheme as defined in the Occupational Retirement Schemes
Ordinance (the "ORSO Scheme”), for all of its employees in Hong Kong.

Under the MPF Scheme, contributions of 5% of the employees’ relevant income with a maximum monthly
contribution of HK$1,500 per employee are made by each of the employer and the employees. The
employer contributions are charged to profit or loss as they become payable in accordance with the rules
of the MPF Scheme. The Group’s employer contributions vest fully with the employees when contributed
into the MPF Scheme.

Under the ORSO Scheme, contributions of 5% of the employees’ basic salaries are made by the employer
and are charged to profit or loss as they become payable in accordance with the rules of the ORSO Scheme.
The rates of contributions made by the employees are either 0% or 5% of the salary of each employee
at the discretion of the employee. When an employee leaves the ORSO Scheme prior to his/her interest in
the Group's employer contributions vesting fully, the ongoing contributions payable by the Group may be
reduced by the relevant amount of forfeited contributions.
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2.24EMPLOYEE BENEFITS (continued)

Pension schemes (continued)
The assets of the MPF and ORSO Schemes are held separately from those of the Group in independently
administered funds.

The employees of the Company’s subsidiaries which operate in mainland China are required to participate
in a central pension scheme operated by the local municipal government. These subsidiaries are required
to contribute a certain percentage of their payroll costs to the central pension scheme. The contributions
are charged to profit or loss as they become payable in accordance with the rules of the central pension
scheme.

The Company’s subsidiaries in Singapore participate in a Central Provident Fund Scheme, which is a
contribution plan established by the Central Provident Fund Board in Singapore.

The Group operates two pension schemes in Taiwan under the Labour Standards Law (the “Old Scheme")
and under the Labour Pension Act which became effective on 1 July 2005 (the “New Scheme”). Under
the Old Scheme, the Taiwan Branch of one of the Company’s subsidiaries makes regular contributions to
the Old Scheme to meet its employees’ retirement and termination benefits. Currently, the contributions
have been approved to be made at 2% of the employees’ total salaries. The fund is administered by a
committee and is deposited in the committee’s name with a government approved financial institution,
Bank of Taiwan, which acts as the trustee. Under the New Scheme, the Taiwan Branch contributes each
month 6% of the salaries of the employees who choose to participate in the New Scheme, and deposits
these amounts into individual pension accounts at the Bureau of Labour Insurance. The schemes were
terminated on 10 September 2020.
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2.25SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS

The Group operates a number of equity-settled, share-based compensation plans, under which the entity
receives services from employees as consideration for equity instruments (options) of the Group. The fair
value of the employee services received in exchange for the grant of the share options is recognised as an
expense. The total amount to be expensed is determined by reference to the fair value of the share options
granted:

e including any market performance conditions (for example, an entity’s share price), if any;

e excluding the impact of any service and non-market performance vesting conditions (for example,
profitability, sales growth targets and remaining an employee of the entity over a specified time
period); and

e including the impact of any non-vesting conditions (for example, the requirement for employees to
save or hold shares for a specific period of time).

Non-market performance and service conditions are included in assumptions about the number of
share options that are expected to vest. The total expense is recognised over the vesting period, which
is the period over which all of the specified vesting conditions are to be satisfied. In addition, in some
circumstances employees may provide services in advance of the grant date and therefore the grant
date fair value is estimated for the purposes of recognising the expense during the period between
service commencement period and grant date. At the end of each reporting period, the Group revises its
estimates of the number of options that are expected to vest based on the non-market performance and
service conditions. It recognises the impact of the revision to original estimates, if any, in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income, with a corresponding adjustment to equity.

When the share options are exercised, the Company issues new shares. The proceeds received net of any
directly attributable transaction costs are credited to share capital (nominal value) and share premium.
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2.26 PROVISIONS

Provisions for legal claims and make good obligations are recognised when the Group has a present legal
or constructive obligation as a result of past events, it is probable that an outflow of resources will be
required to settle the obligation and the amount can be reliably estimated. Provisions are not recognised
for future operating losses.

Where there are a number of similar obligations, the likelihood that an outflow will be required in
settlement is determined by considering the class of obligations as a whole. A provision is recognised even
if the likelihood of an outflow with respect to any one item included in the same class of obligations may
be small.

Provisions are measured at the present value of management’s best estimate of the expenditure required
to settle the present obligation at the end of the reporting period. The discount rate used to determine
the present value is a pre-tax rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and
the risks specific to the liability. The increase in the provision due to the passage of time is recognised as
interest expense.

2.27REVENUE RECOGNITION

(i) Retailing and distribution of garments
Revenue from the retailing and distribution of garments is recognised at the point in time when control
of the asset is transferred to the customer, generally on delivery of the garment products.

Some contracts for the sale of garment products provide customers with rights of return. The rights
of return give rise to variable consideration.

(ii) Rights of return

For contracts which provide a customer with a right to return the goods within a specified period,
the expected value method is used to estimate the goods that will not be returned because this
method best predicts the amount of variable consideration to which the Group will be entitled. The
requirements in HKFRS 15 on constraining estimates of variable consideration are applied in order
to determine the amount of variable consideration that can be included in the transaction price. For
goods that are expected to be returned, instead of revenue, a refund liability is recognised. A right-
of-return asset (and the corresponding adjustment to cost of sales) is also recognised for the right to
recover products from a customer.
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2.27REVENUE RECOGNITION (continued) 227 W s #ERT (&)
= (iii) Retailing of garments - customer loyalty programme (i) K REBE-FFEHEBHE
-gﬁ The Group operates a loyalty programme where retail customers accumulate bossini points for REBXRAE-HEHERE  TEEPBEYRAIURBERM
2a purchases made which entitle them to discount on future purchases. Revenue from the award bossini RIESNBERBYRBZEN - KAERMERED LRR
ﬁﬁ points is recognised when the points are redeemed or when they are expired. ERRF R o
=
@ Contract liabilities are recognised until the points are redeemed or expired. BRBERNED LR EIHRER -
(iv) Royalty income (iv) EFEBWA
- Royalty income is recognised on a time proportion basis in accordance with the substance of the HENBRATIRBEB R EEE AR B LA EERR -
S relevant agreements.
QE I
i 228INTEREST INCOME 228 Fl 8 WA
S S Interest income is recognised on an accrual basis using the effective interest method by applying the rate MEWADEREBRMNETE  UBEANEEEmI A ZEFH
é By that exactly discounts the estimated future cash receipts over the expected life of the financial instrument B HE (WER) NEBRTRMAF RRAINRReZEeNEEL
or a shorter period, when appropriate, to the net carrying amount of the financial asset. FREDFERER
2.29 COMPENSATION INCOME 229 E WA
élllll Compensation income is recognised when the right to receive payment has been established, it is probable B UERFIA RN B ML - B A EARRE A B A s R AT R AR B
L that the economic benefit associated with compensation will flow to the Group and the amount of the - BES RN A 2R - BIRREERA -
Eﬁ compensation can be measured reliably.
S
'gm' 2.30EARNINGS PER SHARE 2308 EF
§NIII (a) Basic earnings per share (a) BREXEF
Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing: BREXRBRTIIKRIATISETE
s e the profit attributable to owners of the Company, excluding any costs of servicing equity other o ARTHEBAEMEGERN (T EIEL BRI 10 # =k
'% than ordinary shares; and ERAR) - K&
EX
"'Emé e by the weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding during the financial period, o HMBEMABITEINTER ZINETHBESTL W5t
§§ adjusted for bonus elements in ordinary shares issued during the period and excluding treasury BRI B TR (N EREEFRG ) ZA MBI D 1EL A -
=4 shares.
=
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2.30 EARNINGS PER SHARE (continued)
(b) Diluted earnings per share
Diluted earnings per share adjusts the figures used in the determination of basic earnings per share to
take into account:

e the after-income tax effect of interest and other financing costs associated with dilutive potential
ordinary shares; and

e the weighted average number of additional ordinary shares that would have been outstanding
assuming the conversion of all dilutive potential ordinary shares.

2.31LEASES
Leases are recognised as a right-of-use asset and a corresponding liability at the date at which the leased
asset is available for use by the Group.
Lease terms are negotiated on an individual basis and contain a wide range of different terms and
conditions. The lease agreements do not impose any covenants other than the security interests in the

leased assets that are held by the lessor. Leased assets may not be used as security for borrowing purposes.

Assets and liabilities arising from a lease are initially measured on a present value basis. Lease liabilities
include the net present value of the following lease payments:

e fixed payments (including in-substance fixed payments), less any lease incentives receivable;

e variable lease payments that are based on an index or a rate, initially measured using the index or rate
as at the commencement date;

e amounts expected to be payable by the Group under residual value guarantees;

e the exercise price of a purchase option if the Group is reasonably certain to exercise that option; and

e payments of penalties for terminating the lease, if the lease term reflects the Group exercising that
option.
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2.31LEASES (continued)

Lease payments to be made under reasonably certain extension options are also included in the
measurement of the liability.

The lease payments are discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease. If that rate cannot be readily
determined, which is generally the case for leases in the Group, the lessee’s incremental borrowing rate is
used, being the rate that the individual lessee would have to pay to borrow the funds necessary to obtain
an asset of similar value to the right-of-use asset in a similar economic environment with similar terms,
security and conditions.

To determine the incremental borrowing rate, the Group:

e where possible, uses recent third-party financing received by the individual lessee as a starting point,
adjusted to reflect changes in financing conditions since third party financing was received,

e uses a build-up approach that starts with a risk-free interest rate adjusted for credit risk for leases held
by the Group, which does not have recent third-party financing; and

e makes adjustments specific to the lease, eg term, country, currency and security.

If a readily observable amortising loan rate is available to the individual lessee (through recent financing
or market data) which has a similar payment profile to the lease, then the group entities use that rate as a
starting point to determine the incremental borrowing rate.

The Group is exposed to potential future increases in variable lease payments based on an index or rate,
which are not included in the lease liability until they take effect. When adjustments to lease payments
based on an index or rate take effect, the lease liability is reassessed and adjusted against the right-of-use
asset.
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2.31LEASES (continued)

Lease payments are allocated between principal and finance cost. The finance cost is charged to profit or
loss over the lease period so as to produce a constant periodic rate of interest on the remaining balance of
the liability for each period.

Right-of-use assets are measured at cost comprising the following:
e the amount of the initial measurement of lease liability;

e any lease payments made at or before the commencement date less any lease incentives received;
y y y

e any initial direct costs; and
e  restoration costs.

Right-of-use assets are generally depreciated over the shorter of the asset’s useful life and the lease term
on a straight-line basis. If the Group is reasonably certain to exercise a purchase option, the right-of-use
asset is depreciated over the underlying asset’s useful life. While the Group revalues its land and buildings
that are presented within property, plant and equipment, it has chosen not to do so for the right-of-use
buildings held by the Group.

Payments associated with short-term leases of equipment and vehicles and all leases of low-value assets
are recognised on a straight-line basis as an expense in profit or loss. Short-term leases are leases with a
lease term of 12 months or less without a purchase option.

Lease income from operating leases where the Group is a lessor is recognised within “Other income” on a
straight-line basis over the lease term (note 6). Initial direct costs incurred in obtaining an operating lease
are added to the carrying amount of the underlying asset and recognised as expense over the lease term
on the same basis as lease income. The respective leased assets are included in the consolidated statement
of financial position based on their nature.
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2.32DIVIDEND DISTRIBUTIONS

Provision is made for the amount of any dividend declared, being appropriately authorised and no longer
at the discretion of the entity, on or before the end of the reporting period but not distributed at the end
of the reporting period.

2.33GOVERNMENT GRANTS

B % & B

Financial information

114

Grants from the government are recognised at their fair value where there is a reasonable assurance that
the grant will be received and the Group will comply with all attached conditions. Government grants
relating to costs are deferred and recognised in the profit or loss over the period necessary to match them
with the costs that they are intended to compensate.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

FINANCIAL RISK FACTORS

The Group’s principal financial instruments, other than its financial assets/liabilities at fair value through
profit or loss, comprise cash and bank balances, time deposits, bills payable and interest-bearing bank
borrowings. The main purpose of these financial instruments is to raise finance for the Group’s operations.
The Group has various other financial assets and liabilities such as debtors, deposits and trade creditors,
which arise directly from its operations.

The Group also enters into derivative transactions, including principally forward currency contracts. The
purpose is to manage the foreign currency risk arising from the Group'’s operations.

The Group'’s activities expose it to a variety of financial risks: market risk (including foreign currency risk, fair
value and cash flow interest rate risk), credit risk and liquidity risk. The Group’s overall risk management
programme focuses on the unpredictability of financial markets and seeks to minimise potential adverse
effects on the Group'’s financial performance.
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3.1 FINANCIAL RISK FACTORS (continued)
(a) Market risk

(i)

(ii)

Foreign currency risk

The Group has transactional currency exposures. Such exposures arise from the sales and
purchases in foreign operations in currencies other than the United States dollar and Hong Kong
dollar. Approximately 41% (for the year ended 30 June 2020: 42%) of the Group's sales were
denominated in currencies other than the United States dollar and Hong Kong dollar. It is the
Group's policy to enter into forward currency contracts to mitigate foreign currency risk arising
from material transactions denominated in currencies other than the United States dollar and
Hong Kong dollar.

The Group did not have forward currency contact as at 31 December 2021. As at 30 June 2020,
the Group had forward currency contracts with an aggregate nominal amount of HK$44 million
to manage its foreign currency risk in Renminbi and Singapore dollar.

Since Hong Kong dollar is pegged to United States dollar, management considers that there is no
significant foreign currency risk between these two currencies to the Group.

As at 31 December 2021, if Hong Kong dollar had weakened/strengthened by 5% against
Renminbi and Singapore dollar with all other variables held constant, post-tax loss for the period
would be HK$51,376,000 higher/lower (for the year ended 30 June 2020: HK$3,645,000 lower/
higher) and HK$6,609,000 lower/higher (for the year ended 30 June 2020: HK$5,725,000 lower/
higher) respectively, mainly as a result of foreign exchange losses/gains on translation of Renminbi
denominated and Singapore dollar denominated cash and cash equivalents, debtors and other
receivables, trade creditors and other payables.

Fair value and cash flow interest rate risk
The Group's exposure to the risk of changes in market interest rates relates primarily to the
Group's interest-bearing bank borrowings during the period/year with a floating interest rate.

As at 31 December 2021, if the interest rates on bank borrowings and bank balances had increased/
decreased by 100 basis points with all other variables held constant, pre-tax loss for the period
would be HK$2,388,000 higher/lower (for the year ended 30 June 2020: HK$998,000 higher/
lower), mainly results from the floating interest rates bank borrowings and bank balances.
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CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e

31 December 2021 —T=—F+=-A=+—8H

3.1 FINANCIAL RISK FACTORS (continued)
(b) Credit risk

3.1 MEEREE (&)
(b) EEREM
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The credit risk of the Group is primarily attributable to balances with banks, debtors, other receivables
and rental deposits. The carrying amounts of these balances represent the Group’s maximum exposure
to credit risk in relation to financial assets. The credit risk on deposits with banks is limited as the Group
mainly places the deposits in banks with high credit rating.

Retail sales are usually made in cash, through credit cards or through reputable and dispersed
department stores. The Group's credit sales are only made to wholesale and franchised customers,
with an appropriate credit history and on credit terms of 60 days. In addition, receivable balances are
monitored on an ongoing basis and the Group’s exposure to bad debts is not significant.

Debtors

The Group applies the simplified approach to provide for expected credit losses prescribed by HKFRS
9, which permits the use of lifetime expected loss provision for all debtors. To measure the expected
credit losses, trade customers have been grouped based on share credit risk characteristics (i.e. by
geographical region and customer type). The expected loss rates are based on the historical credit loss
rate that are based on the historical loss experience of these customers. The historical loss rates are
adjusted to reflect current and forward looking information on macroeconomic factors affecting the
ability of the customers to settle the receivables.

As at 31 December 2021, the expected credit losses of these collectively assessed debtors were
HK$253,000 based on expected loss rates of 1.28% applied on different geographical region of
customers.
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3.1 FINANCIAL RISK FACTORS (continued)
(b) Credit risk (continued)

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STA
nv_\é‘,ﬁﬁﬁ%

31 December 2021 —ZE-—F+-F=

3.1 B EEEE (&)
(b) FEREER ()

Debtors (continued) JEY AR (4B)
The closing loss allowance for debtors as at 31 December 2021 reconcile to the opening loss RIZZ—F+ZA=+—B2REERZ BREEREEE
allowance as follows: B BEEEZ HERWET
At 31 December At 30 June
2021 2020
R-B-—F R-_F-FF
HK$'000 +t=A=+-—8H ~NA=+H BT
Opening loss allowance - - BOEERE
Increase in loss allowance recognised in profit or loss HR,FRAREBRERZ EEREL N ()
during the period/year (note 8) 248 =
Exchange realignment 5 - HRE
Closing loss allowance 253 - HEEBRRE

Impairment losses on debtors are presented as net impairment losses with “Selling, distribution and
other operating expenses”. Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously written off are credited
against the same line item.

Other financial assets at amortised costs

The directors of the Group consider the probability of default upon initial recognition of assets and
whether there has been significant increase in credit risk on an ongoing basis during the period/
year. To assess whether there is a significant increase in credit risk, the Group compares risk of a
default occurring on the assets as at period end date with the risk of default as at the date of initial
recognition. Especially the following indicators are incorporated:
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CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e

31 December 2021 —T=—F+=-A=+—8H

3.1 FINANCIAL RISK FACTORS (continued)
(b) Credit risk (continued)

3.1 MEEREE (&)
(b) EERM (&)
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Other financial assets at amortised costs (continued)
e actual or expected significant adverse changes in business, financial or economic conditions that
are expected to cause a significant change to the debtors’ ability to meet its obligations;

e actual or expected significant changes in the operating results of debtors;
e significant increases in credit risk on other financial instruments of the same debtor;

e significant changes in the expected performance and behaviour of debtors, including changes in
the payment status of the debtor in the Group and changes in the operating results of the debtor.

Regardless of the analysis above, a significant increase in credit risk is presumed if a debtor is more
than 30 days past due in making a contractual payment/repayable demand.

A default on a financial asset when the counterparty fails to make contractual payments/repayable
demanded within 90 to 180 days of when they fail due.

The Group reviews regularly the recoverable amount of each individual receivable to ensure that
adequate impairment losses are made for irrecoverable amounts. Over the term of the financial
assets, the Group accounts for its credit risk by appropriately providing for expected credit losses on a
timely basis. In calculating the expected credit loss rates, the Group considers historical loss rates for
each category of debtors, and adjusts for forward looking macroeconomic data. As at 31 December
2021, the expected credit losses of these collectively assessed deposits and other receivables was
HK$1,351,000 based on expected loss rates approximately from 1.28% to 1.68% applied on
counterparties’ sectors.

ANNUAL REPORT 2020/21 4

BBHHAFBEZEM T HEE (&)
o XN MBILBEANNERKBHRELERTIME({TE
HEREBABITEENRNEEEREL

o EBAZKREFABRLIAHELEERE L

o RA—EBARMEMIANGEERBREZEN:

o BEBRAEMRANTRABLEBAEL BREEBARAKE
ENABGRANES REBALLERENES -

T LD - 35 Ra HONRRERKEENEE AR
HIHEE 30K - RIBREEE R B A IEIE AN

ERSHUFEEREIHOE180RAEL & NNKMRERE
E-HSREENRED -

AEETFHERHESEERNERRZROAT MBS - UERLE
FURESFEEL EARRERBE EREMEENENK - A%
EmBALRNEETIRERCEESERFTALEERR - R&
HEHEEHERN  AEEZESEEHFANBIBEEX
WAERENEBREEEN R TE-_—F+-_A=1+—8 "
ZEEETEOREREMBEKREEHEEHREASE
1,351,0007C " IERR R HEFITHE 2 BHBEELR1.28%
%£1.68%:FHE °



3.1 FINANCIAL RISK FACTORS (continued)
(b) Credit risk (continued)

Other financial assets at amortised costs (continued)

While cash and cash equivalents are also subject to the impairment requirements of HKFRS 9, the

impact of impairment loss was immaterial.

The closing loss allowance for other financial assets at amortised cost as at 31 December 2021

reconcile to the opening loss allowance as follows:

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STA
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31 December 2021 —ZE-—F+-F=

3.1 M E b E = (&)
(b) &R (&)
REHK ARG EZ R M2 M EE (F)
BERERRNESEFMEAA NEETEEYBERERENR 2
MERTE  RERBEZZEEM

RoE-—F+ A=+ AREHERAAEZEMSREE
ZHRBERBEEMBRRE ZHERNT

At 31 December At 30 June
2021 2020
R-B=—F RZEZTHF
HK$'000 t=A=+-—~H” SNA=TH BT
Opening loss allowance - = HAEERE
Increase in loss allowance recognised in profit or loss A F AR B R BB RN (I sEs)
during the period/year (note 8) 1,350 =
Exchange realignment 1 - HAE
Closing loss allowance 1,351 - BMREBRRE
(c) Liquidity risk (c) RBIELEMR

The Group monitors its risk to a shortage of funds using a recurring liquidity planning tool. This
tool considers the maturity of both its financial instruments and financial assets (e.g., debtors) and

projected cash flows from operations.

The Group's objective is to maintain a balance between continuity of funding and flexibility by keeping
adequate credit facilities from banks. The Group had credit facilities from banks of HK$205,890,000

and approximately HK$12,752,000 was utilised as at 31 December 2021.

AEBMNAREURDRE TALZEESRREAR - ZTAE
ESRTAREREE (WMERKERF) NAHERRBRAEEE
ERIREIR

AEBZABRESEEZHBELEBBRTRFIAMBEETZ
BEEMENSTEE RS —F+_A=1+—8 ' AEERN
152 IR1T15 58 8 %205,890,000 7T * &+ 47# 812,752,000
TEEEA -
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CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e

mber 2021 —ZE=-—F+=-A=+—H

3.1 FINANCIAL RISK FACTORS (continued) 3.1 R EE (&)
2 (c) Liquidity risk (continued) () REBESLER (&)
-“;’ﬁ The maturity profile of the Group'’s financial liabilities as at the end of the reporting period, based on RIBERR  AEFBERDTOERURNRZ 2R EEH
Ca the contractual undiscounted payments, is as follows: BRET :
g
g*’* At 31 December 2021 R-—B-—-#+-A=+-8
m On
demand or
less than 1to 2to Over
12 months 2 years 5 years 5 years Total
— . ZERY
'gﬁﬁ HK$'000 SPR+=@A  —EWE  WELF  HBLF it BT
Ez(gm Non-derivatives FITETA
g §jzl Financial liabilities included BEF AR - HAERFIAR
o ok in trade creditors, other EFERIBZ @M BE
S S payables and accruals 185,785 - - - 185,785
Bills payable 11,693 - - - 11,693 ANt
Due to fellow subsidiaries 5,377 = = - 5,377 JES R Z M E R R FUE
Lease liabilities 124,541 95,590 129,051 10,005 359,187 HERE
I
Total non-derivatives 327,396 95,590 129,051 10,005 562,042 ESTE T B

rt of the directors

EEHE

hl
(7]
oc
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3.1 FINANCIAL RISK FACTORS (continued)

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STA
n'/_\é/ﬁ\ztﬁ%

31 December 2021 —ZE=—F+ - A=~

3.1 M E b E = (&)

(c) Liquidity risk (continued) () REBELER (&) w
At 30 June 2020 R-ZE-ZFXA=1+H ;mgg
On ;e
demand or | =
less than 1to 2to Over = g_
12 months 2 years 5 years 5 years Total g
HEEke
HK$'000 LR+={EA —EWE WERF BT w@st BT T
Non-derivatives FHTETR
Financial liabilities included At ABRERSR - EthEARIER PR s
in trade creditors, other JEFTERIE R A& 55
payables and accruals 98,953 - - - 98,953 #% g
Bills payable 12,277 - - - 12,277 FERZiE Ho o
Due to related companies 71 - - - 71 FERTRAE A RIFRIA ﬂ§§
Lease liabilities 165,055 85,435 45,634 8,969 305,093 HEaE AR o
Interest-bearing bank FHEIRTTER
borrowings 59,799 - - - 59,799
&1
Total non-derivatives 336,155 85,435 45,634 8,969 476,193 FFTE T EHERE mg_
o
B
Derivatives fT£T A #a'g
Financial liabilities at fair REZEREATEIEREZS/EaE GRIPEEEL) i3
value through profit or loss """g
(Forward currency contracts)
— (inflow) (13,456) - - - (13,456) — OrRA)
— outflow 13,463 - - - 13,463 —
Total derivatives 7 - - - 7 PTET AL
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3.2 CAPITAL MANAGEMENT 3.2E4KER
= The primary objectives of the Group's capital management are to safeguard the Group’s ability to continue FEEEAEENEZR R  ARRAEEAEGHERRNES
-gﬁ as a going concern and to maintain healthy capital ratios in order to support its business and maximise BHFEENEALE  UXFEEREE  FRSEAHKREREER -
Ca shareholders’ value.
(%]
B
=t The Group manages its capital structure and makes adjustments to it in light of changes in economic REBBRBEBEBERNEE MIAREENER TR BRAERLE
S - ) . . o s O
@ conditions and the risk characteristics of the underlying assets. To maintain or adjust the capital structure, BIWELTE - REFABRERER  AEETRESRHBMARR
the Group may adjust the dividend payment to shareholders, return capital to shareholders or issue new B Z R - MR EARKETHR BE-T -_—F+_H
shares. No changes were made in the objectives, policies or processes for managing capital during the —t+—HULIHRAREE-—ZS_TFA=THILFE  WEIRE
- period ended 31 December 2021 and the year ended 30 June 2020. BERNBE  BRSEFT -
3.84¢
g . — 5 Ny > (== = oo > ~
5%1’;‘“ The Group monitors capital using a gearing ratio calculated on the basis of interest-bearing bank REBERAARRITERRERRAEZEERBELTEEERR
‘&,"g# borrowings over total equity. I e
S S
é By The gearing ratio is regularly reviewed by senior management. The gearing ratios at the end of the SREEETHENEEAGEE NBERRNEERBLEN
reporting periods are as follows: K
At 31 December At 30 June
g 2021 2020
Ll R-B=—% R-T-ZF
%:; HK$'000 +=A=+-8 A~A=+H BT T
(]
e Interest-bearing bank borrowings = 59,721 FFERITER
£
g Total equity 259,020 281,460 ez
Gearing ratio N/A TiE A 21% BEAGBREE

B % & B
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3.3 FAIR VALUE ESTIMATION
There were no financial assets nor liabilities carried at fair value as at 31 December 2021. The table below
analyses the Group's financial assets and liabilities carried at fair value as at 30 June 2020 by level of the
inputs to valuation techniques used to measure fair value. Such inputs are categorised into three levels
within a fair value hierarchy as follows:

e Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities (level 1).

e Inputs other than quoted prices included within level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability,
either directly (that is, as prices) or indirectly (that is, derived from prices) (level 2).

e Inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data (that is, unobservable
inputs) (level 3).

At 30 June 2020
Fair value measurement using

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STA
nv_\é‘,ﬁﬁﬁ%

31 December 2021 —ZE-—F+-F=

3.3 AF{EME
R-B-_—F+-_A=1t—BUEBRQAFEIEZEREEXETH
BfE - TREIRAEBRATFEMBBERMEABBESROTASE
BR—_Z_TFERNA=ZtTHRATVEIIRZERHEENRAE -AH
BABBRAT=ZEAFESERSE :

. ARAESAREERTE2RECREHE) (F15) -

o FIRMEBERENIINZBARE  FRBABEBEREEXER
AREES R (AER) KEE (BURAER) /H (F28) -

o UHNABEMSHRE/RBELEEXABERABEAAH
BERH AR (F34) -

R-Z-ZZEHFXA=1H

R ATEHE
Quoted prices Significant Significant
in active observable unobservable
markets inputs inputs Total
BAAERE SEATATHE
ERR TS HE B A\ BUE i AR st
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3)
HK$'000 (£—/) (£ (B5=FE) BETT
Assets EE
Derivatives used for hedging REEH 2 ITHET R
— Forward currency contracts - 593 - 593 — BRHEEED
Liabilities afE
Derivatives used for hedging REH 2 HTETA
— Forward currency contracts - 7 - 7 — REIE® AL
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3.4 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY 34T ESE
At 31 December At 30 June
2021 2020
R-B=—F RIT-ZF
HK$'000 +t=A=+—H ANA=+H BETT
Financial assets at fair value BAFEIIRZEHEE
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss = 593 RERREATEIRZ SREE
Financial assets at amortised cost REBHERASRSREE
Debtors 25,393 48,441 FEUBR SR
Deposits and other receivables 90,309 114,705 e A EERTE
Pledged bank deposits 1,959 56 BEBRITER
Cash and cash equivalents 266,655 176,339 ReMkReFEIER
Total 384,316 339,541 #EEt
Financial liabilities at fair value BAFEIRz2EEE
Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss - 7 RERREAFEIR, SRAE
Financial liabilities at amortised cost BBERAIEzCREE
Trade creditors, other payables and accruals 185,785 98,953 JERTARTR » Bt e 5RIE K JE AT ARIE
Bills payable 11,693 12,277 ANES
Due to related companies = 71 JERTRA:E A FIFRIE
Due to fellow subsidiaries 5,377 - L RIEEL I EVAGIER
Lease liabilities 247,627 287,084 HEBE
Interest-bearing bank borrowings - 59,721 FFEIRITER
Total 450,482 458,106 st



4 CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS
Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and are based on historical experience and
other factors, including expectations of future events that are believed to be reasonable under the
circumstances.

The Group makes estimates and assumptions concerning the future. The resulting estimates will, by
definition, seldom equal the related actual results. The estimates and assumptions that have a significant
risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next
financial year are discussed below.

(a) Impairment of non-financial assets

The Group determines whether an asset is impaired at least on an annual basis. This requires an
estimation of the value in use and fair value less cost of disposal of the asset. Estimating the value
in use for the impairment assessment of property, plant and equipment and right-of-use assets
requires the Group to make an estimate of the expected future cash flows from the asset using key
assumptions such as the estimated future store performance, economic environment and the sales
growth rate and also to choose a suitable discount rate in order to calculate the present value of those
cash flows. The fair value less cost of disposal for the impairment assessment of investment properties
is estimated based on current prices in an active market and by reference to external valuation reports.
The carrying amounts of the Group's property, plant and equipment, right-of-assets and investment
properties as at 31 December 2021 were HK$27,206,000 (as at 30 June 2020: 25,520,000),
HK$112,261,000 (as at 30 June 2020: HK$164,732,000) and HK$4,687,000 (as at 30 June 2020:
HK$16,776,000), respectively for which the impairment provision made during the period/year for the
Group's property, plant and equipment and right-of-use assets amounting to HK$21,548,000 (for the
year ended 30 June 2020: HK$12,968,000) and HK$94,472,000 (for the year ended 30 June 2020:
HK$102,306,000).

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STA
mE M

31 December 2021 —ZE = —F+ = A=+

4 BAREEHEE R E
ERMEF RABARFEN G IREELEREECAR (BER
ERBEATHRREMHERBA/AE AL FFHE -

AEEEHABARBANMGT RREZ - BRER - BtER—R
BIEHENARERER Gt RERKERH T —EMERFER
MEENMBBEREEFLENARMBKNERRRIHMAT

(a) FEERMEEZRME
AEBELEFETEERTORE BrEESSHERERY
BEZFRBERAFERLSRAEL G - FHEYE - BE
REBREAEEEZRAEZGHERABEERNESEBLEREE
EZEAARRESREAEZBRBMGEARRIEHRE - LF
IRRRHEEREEL G NEEEAREBXRFTEZSR
CREZHE - RFHEREMEZREMRKAZ A FERLE
WZKME?J%;,ﬂémiﬁZIEﬁf‘;ff%&%%ﬁl\ﬁm@ae&%fﬁi@i o
ZE—F+ZA=1+—H ' IEEWE  BEKXE  ERE
BENREEYE ZRAED B A5%27,206,000T (A==
THENF=1H : #B%25,520,0007T) * #B#112,261,0007T (7
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4 CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS (continued)

(b)

(9]

(d)

Provision for inventories

The Group reviews the ageing analysis of inventories of the Group at the end of each reporting period,
and makes provision for inventory items whose costs may not be fully recoverable. The assessment
of the provision amount involves management judgements and estimates by considering inventory
ageing, historical sales patterns and expected subsequent sales based on internal budgets and certain
market factors. Where the actual outcome or expectation in future is different from the original
estimate, such differences will have an impact on the carrying value of the inventories and provision
charge/write-back in the period in which such estimate has been changed. In addition, physical counts
on all inventories are carried out on a periodical basis in order to determine whether provision needs
to be made in respect of any obsolete inventories identified. The Group reassesses the estimation
at the end of each reporting period and is satisfied that sufficient provision for obsolete and slow-
moving inventories has been made in the consolidated financial statements. The carrying amount
of the Group’s inventories as at 31 December 2021 was HK$186,592,000 (as at 30 June 2020:
HK$209,679,000).

Deferred tax assets

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all unused tax losses to the extent that it is probable that taxable
profit will be available against which the losses can be utilised. Significant management judgement is
required to determine the amount of deferred tax assets that can be recognised, based upon the likely
timing and level of future taxable profits together with future tax planning strategies. The amount
of unrecognised tax losses as at 31 December 2021 was HK$968,144,000 (as at 30 June 2020:
HK$715,694,000). Further details on tax losses are set out in note 28.

Share-based payment

The Group is required to expense its employees’ share-based compensation awards in accordance
with HKFRS 2 Share-based payment. The Group measures share-based compensation cost based on
the fair value on the grant date of each award. This cost is recognised over the period during which
an employee is required to provide service in exchange for the award or the requisite service period,
usually the vesting period, and is adjusted for actual forfeitures that occur before vesting. In order to
assess the fair value of share-based compensation, the Group is required to use certain assumptions,
including the probability of reaching the market performance, if any, and financial results targets, the
forfeitures and the service period of each employee. The use of different assumptions and estimates
could produce materially different estimated fair values for the share-based compensation awards and
related expenses.
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4 CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS (continued)
(e) Lease term and discount rate

In determining the lease term, management considers all facts and circumstances that create an
economic incentive to exercise an extension option, or not exercise a termination option. Extension
options (or periods after termination options) are only included in the lease term if the lease is
reasonably certain to be extended (or not terminated).

The following factors are normally the most relevant:

e If any leasehold improvements are expected to have a significant remaining value, the Group is
typically reasonably certain to extend (or not terminate).

e  Otherwise, the Group considers other factors including historical lease durations and the costs
and business disruption required to replace the leased asset.

The assessment is reviewed if a significant event or a significant change in circumstances occurs which
affects this assessment and that is within the control of the lessee.

The Group cannot readily determine the interest rate implicit in a lease, and therefore, it uses
an incremental borrowing rate (“IBR") to measure lease liabilities. The IBR is the rate of interest
that the Group would have to pay to borrow over a similar term, and with a similar security, the
funds necessary to obtain an asset of a similar value to the right-of-use asset in a similar economic
environment. The IBR therefore reflects what the Group “would have to pay”, which requires
estimation when no observable rates are available (such as for subsidiaries that do not enter into
financing transactions) or when it needs to be adjusted to reflect the terms and conditions of the lease
(for example, when leases are not in the subsidiary’s functional currency). The Group estimates the IBR
using observable inputs (such as market interest rates) when available and is required to make certain
entity-specific estimates (such as the subsidiary’s stand-alone credit rating).
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5 OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION

For management purposes, the Group is organised into business units that offer products to customers
located in different geographical areas and has three reportable operating segments as follows:

(@) Hong Kong and Macau
(b) Mainland China
(c) Singapore

The Group has discontinued the business in Taiwan segment during the year ended 30 June 2020.
Accordingly, certain segment information related to the Taiwan segment is classified as “loss for the
period/year from a discontinued operation” in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income (note 12).

Management monitors the results of the Group’s operating segments separately for the purpose of making
decisions about resource allocation and performance assessment. Segment performance is evaluated
based on reportable segment profit/loss, which is a measure of adjusted loss before tax from continuing
operations. The adjusted loss before tax from continuing operations is measured consistently with the
Group'’s loss before tax from continuing operations except that interest income and non-lease-related
finance costs are excluded from such measurement.

Segment assets exclude deferred tax assets and tax recoverable as these assets are managed on a group
basis.

Segment liabilities exclude deferred tax liabilities, tax payable and interest-bearing bank borrowings as
these liabilities are managed on a group basis.

Intersegment sales and transfers are transacted with reference to the selling prices used for sales made to
third parties at the then prevailing market prices.

Geographical segments

The following tables present revenue, profit/loss and certain asset, liability and expenditure information of
the Group's geographical segments for the period ended 31 December 2021 and the year ended 30 June
2020.
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OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STA
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31 December 2021 —ZE-—F+-F=

5 RETFER(F)

Geographical segments (continued) 35 5 38 (4) o
Hong Kong and Macau Mainland China Singapore Consolidated " 5
BB R KR $ Ba %0
Period ended Year ended Period ended Year ended Period ended Year ended Period ended Year ended =] -
31 December 30 June 31 December 30 June 31 December 30 June 31 December 30 June mg
2021 2020 2021 2020 2021 2020 2021 2020 o
8z HZE Bz BHE "z BHE 8z HE s
—E-—F ZETF —E-—F ZETF —E-—F ZETF —EB-—F ZETF
HK$'000 +=A=+-—8H AA=tH +=ZA=+-—H AA=tB +=RA=+-—H RNA=tB +=A=+-—~ ~A=t+H
BEFT LEHARS L5 E 1-HARS FE 1-HAR L E 1EHARS FEFE
Se%ment revenue:
2R - o R
Sales to external customers from continuing @3
operations o9
REQERBZHETINHBET 680,919 715,617 362,863 296,297 120,293 79,717 1,164,075 1,091,631 F2s
Other income from continuing operations I 5° @
FHER SR 2 KR 46,673 27,723 3,515 1,615 3,363 132 53,551 29,470 e ER]
Al g
Total o2
5 727,592 743,340 366,378 297,912 123,656 79,849 1,217,626 1,121,101
Segment results
DREXEE (168,881) (199,450) (179,884) (101,621) 10,513 (35,964) (338,252) (337,035) mé"
s}
Interest income Wé‘
A SHA 2,966 2,563 L=
o
Loss from operating activities ns
BEXLER (335,286) (334472) [
Ein\anc\e costs (other than interest on lease liabilities) g
BEKA (HEREN SR (1,881) (841)
Loss before tax from continuing operations
TR EEBZBRAIER (337,167) (335,313) sl
Income tax expense >
PSR 2 (2,892) (12,183) [l §
Loss for the period/year from continuing operations ii
SEQEEB N, FREE (340,059) (347,496) e
A_/
QU
The revenue information above is based on the locations in which the sales originated. PR EER DRIBHEEEREMED o Ef
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5 OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 5 RESEERE)
2 Geographical segments (continued) s 5 5 (8F)
.g & Hong Kong and Macau Mainland China Singapore Consolidated
o & BBREM IR BE N RE
gg At 31 December At 30 June At 31 December At 30 June At 31 December At 30 June At 31 December At 30 June
% i 2021 2020 2021 2020 2021 2020 2021 2020
= HK$'000 R=B=—F R-ZZE-TF R-B=—F )i R-B=—F R-B-ZF R=TB=—F R-ZZE-TF
BT +=A=+-—H AA=tHR +=ZA=+-—H AA=tR +=ZA=+-H ANA=Z+H +=ZA=+-—H NA=1A
Segment assets
PEEE 377,038 437,783 278,917 252,738 87,597 63,067 743,552 753,588
S o
SE Unallocated assets
goa ROEAE 311 4,870
o S# Assets related to a discontinued operation
SO EerEmEmEE - 15,619
)

Total assets

BwEE 743,863 774,077
S
%ﬂ[{ Segment liabilities
_dcu”ﬁ PEEE 252,248 270,632 182,322 98,912 46,384 46,558 480,954 416,102
& 4o
o
+ il N
Sl Unallocated liabilities
& ROEBE 3,889 68,233
Liabilities related to a discontinued operation
ERIEEBEEEE - 8,282
Total liabilities
FEN=R 484,843 492,617
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31 December 2021 —ZE-—F+-F=

5 OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 5 ReEsEEHR(HE)
Geographical segments (continued) 35 5 38 (&) o)
Hong Kong and Macau Mainland China Singapore Consolidated e §
BBREM R K pE F N3 wa $®o
Period ended Year ended Period ended Year ended Period ended Year ended Period ended Year ended & %
31 December 30 June 31 December 30 June 31 December 30 June 31 December 30 June m;.
2021 2020 2021 2020 2021 2020 2021 2020 =
—E-—F ZETF —E-—F ZETF —EB_—F ZETF —B-—F ZETF
HK$'000 +=—HA=+-—-8 AA=t+H +ZA=+-H RNA=+E +=A=+-—~H AA=+H +=A=+-—H NA=+H
BT EHARS IEFE HEARS IFFE IHEAR IEFE 1EHARS IEFE =
Other segment information: P39
HhpEER =
From continuing operations: *3 o
SEEEET B o
Impairment of right-of-use assets =S
FREEERE 42,105 59,757 52,367 24,241 _ 18,308 94,472 102,306 még

(Gain)/loss on disposal/write-off of property,
plant and equipment, net

HE MR - BE kR

2% (W) /B8 (229 2 584 908 9 5 369 915
(Write-back of provision)/provision for inventories >
(FERBRRD) TFEEE (4,828) (407) (7,506) 10,202 786 799 (11,548) 10,594 s
Impairment of debtors LN
JE W AR R 2 RUE 20 - 158 - - - 248 - L=
Impairment of trademark o
RIE 2 R {E 1,164 - - - - - 1,164 - BiEs
Impairment of deposits and other receivables e
re MEADEWIRIA 2 RE 878 - 321 - 151 - 1,350 — a
Loss on disposal of a financial asset
HESREEZEE - 2,473 - - - - - 2,473
Capital expenditure* =
AL o2

— from continuing operations S5

- BB EER 5,445 12,456 38,154 6,044 205 2,648 43,804 21,148 S

— from a discontinued operation b S

- BRRIEER - 129 ¥3

§.

43,804 21,277
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CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 5 KEHBER(E)
Geographical segments (continued) s 5 5 (8F)
Hong Kong and Macau Mainland China Singapore Consolidated
EBREM PE AR N3 wE
Period ended Year ended Period ended Year ended Period ended Year ended Period ended Year ended
31 December 30 June 31 December 30 June 31 December 30 June 31 December 30 June
2021 2020 2021 2020 2021 2020 2021 2020
—B-—F —ETF —E-—F —ETF —E-—F —ETF —E-—F ZETF
HK$'000 +=A=+—-8 AA=tH +=ZA=+-—H ~A=+H +ZA=+-H ~A=+H +=ZHB=+-—8 ~A=+A
BT T LHEARS IEFE IHEARS IHFE 1HHEARS IEFE LHHIRS IEFE
Depreciation of property, plant and
equipment and investment properties
M - WEMEREUARIRENEITE
— from continuing operations
— B EEE 17,624 21,454 6,716 4,478 1,779 2,109 26,119 28,041
— from a discontinued operation
—BRIEER - 1,314
26,119 29,355
Depreciation of right-of-use assets
FREEEZITE
— from continuing operations
—REEEET 117,372 142,470 22,410 13,814 18,090 31,254 157,872 187,538
— from a discontinued operation
—BRIEER 86 3,416
157,958 190,954
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*  Capital expenditure consists of additions of property, plant and equipment.

*

=
=

BEARZBEAREYE  HERERE -

OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 5 RKEHIEER(E)
Geographical segments (continued) Hbig o 38 () @
Hong Kong and Macau Mainland China Singapore Consolidated e g
BEBREM B KB Esipiiks 4 ®E wg
Period ended Year ended Period ended Year ended Period ended Year ended Period ended Year ended 1 a
31 December 30 June 31 December 30 June 31 December 30 June 31 December 30 June m%
2021 2020 2021 2020 2021 2020 2021 2020 s
—E-—F ke ol 2 5 —E-—F —ECTEF —B-—fF =TT —B-—fF == =i
HK$'000 +=A=+—-8 AA=tH +=ZA=+—-H RNA=+H +=A=+-—H ANA=+R +=ZA=+-—H NA=+H
BT L5 IFFE LR IEFE LR 1EFE LEHAR IEFE -0
Impairment of property, plant and equipment F>$_-g
M - B RREZRE #gg
— from continuing operations =
—RBELEES 7,845 9,095 13,703 1,675 - 2,198 21,548 12,968 "5)52
— from a discontinued operation ’—I!}%S-
—BRIEER = 1 Moo
21,548 12,969
&
Non-current assets** 3]
EREEE b
— from continuing operations W'S_?
—RERERK 64,735 159,268 45,020 26,956 34,399 21,968 144,154 208,192 | g
ofF 5
g

* k

The non-current assets information above is based on the locations of assets and excludes deferred tax assets and
the non-current portion of deposits.

Information about major customers
No sales to a single customer or a group of customers under common control accounted for 10% or more
of the Group’s revenue during the period ended 31 December 2021 and the year ended 30 June 2020.

*k
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6 REVENUE AND OTHER INCOME

An analysis of the Group's revenue and other income from continuing operations is as follows:

6 WEkHEAMKA
AEBEFELEEB 2 Wam REMBADTIT

Revenue from contracts with customers EEEHWE
Period ended Year ended
31 December 2021 30 June 2020
BE HE
—E-—F —ETF
+=A=+-—H ~A=1+A
HK$'000 1EHAR WHFE BT T
Retailing and distribution of garments transferred REFEEEER 2K KEE R E
at a point in time 1,164,075 1,091,631

The following table shows the amounts of revenue recognised in the current reporting period that
were included in the contract liabilities at the beginning of the reporting period and recognised from

performance obligations satisfied in previous periods:

TREVFABREFVNANAELEBERRERBOHEEMER
B AR S B O R R s R

Period ended Year ended
31 December 2021 30 June 2020
BZE H=E
—B=—F e
+=A=+—8 NA=+AH
HK$'000 LEEARS IEFE BETT
Distribution of garments 2,973 3,512 P A5 38
Retailing of garments - customer loyalty programme 611 250 RKZE — &P A R &
3,584 3,762

Performance obligations
Retailing and distribution of garments

The performance obligation is satisfied when the control of the product is transferred to the customers
upon delivery of goods. Other than cash and credit card sales, the Group normally grants credit period of

up to 60 days to its trade customers.
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REVENUE AND OTHER INCOME (continued)

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STA
nv_\é‘,ﬁﬁﬁ%

31 December 2021 ZZE = —F+= F =+~

6 WaEkHEMEA (&)

Other income Hilr A
Period ended Year ended
31 December 2021 30 June 2020
Bz HE
—EC--F —ZEF
+=A=+-A AA=+H
HK$'000 1-EAR IEFE BEFT
Interest income 2,966 2,563 FlE U A
Royalty income 17,348 9,315 =2FBKA
Gross rental income (note 36) 15,037 8,993 el ATERE (HiE36)
Government grants (note) 14,543 3,077 BATTEEh (BisE)
Compensation income due to a fire accident - 5,000 B X EmAEE 2 WA
Others 6,623 3,085 Hith
56,517 32,033
Note: MisE -

The amounts for the period ended 31 December 2021 mainly represented the subsidy granted by The Government
of the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region under the Anti-Epidemic Fund. This is a wage subsidy for eligible
employers to retain their employees, subject to certain conditions. There was no unfulfilled conditions and other

contingencies attached to the receipts of those grants.

BE_Z_—F+t_A=t—-RALHHAZEBTEZRBFRRFITRERA
REMZIEESEL 2 HE - KIREEREIBREREZHFMA -
ARETHRMFTRR o YR Z S 4 B M R E A 2 1 R S E R A el
=
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CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FINANCE COSTS Al & B A
Period ended Year ended
31 December 2021 30 June 2020
BZE HE
—BE-—F —ETF
+=A=+-H ANA=TH
HK$'000 1HEARS IEFE BETT
Interest on lease liabilities (note 17(b)) 12,887 15,341 HeEad M (BE170b)
Interest on loan from immediate holding company BEEERARER 2 E (i R E36())
(note and note 36(a)) 1,679 -
Interest on bank loans 202 841 IRITERZFE
14,768 16,182
Note: B -

The amount for the period ended 31 December 2021 was incurred from the loan from immediate holding company of

HK$100,000,000 which was fully repaid during the period.
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8 LOSS BEFORE TAX FROM CONTINUING OPERATIONS

The Group's loss before tax from continuing operations is arrived at after charging/(crediting):

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STA
nv_\é‘,ﬁﬁﬁ%

31 December 2021 —ZE-—F+-F=

8 REREXRBRIAER
ARBERHEEEEBH ZBHABRTS R (GEA) THIHEE :

Period ended Year ended
31 December 2021 30 June 2020
Bz HE
—E-—F —T-TF
+=A=+-—~H ~NA=TH
HK$'000 1LHARS ILFE BETT
Cost of sales: SHERA :
Cost of inventories sold 579,364 546,920 EHFEEZRA
(Write-back of provision)/provision for inventories (11,548) 10,594 (FERERED) TFEEE
567,816 557,514
Staff costs (including directors’ remuneration - note 9): BIXA(REESME M) :
Salaries, wages, allowances and benefits 310,633 259,450 Fe - ILE  EBRETN
Equity-settled share option expense 8,604 643 EnEEERER
Pension scheme contributions (note a) 25,018 18,233 RIK® B (Mi5Ea)
Less: Government grants - (3,150) W BT B
344,255 275,176
Depreciation of right-of-use assets 157,872 187,538 FREEEZINE
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment and Mz BERSEARKRENE ZITE
investment properties 26,119 28,041
Lease payments not included in the measurement TRERHEERETEZ
of lease liabilities: MER
Buildings 59,334 66,648 BF
Contingent rents of retail stores 77,432 69,974 TEEH2KARS
Plant and machinery 100 63 R N i B
Less: Rent concessions related to COVID-19 pandemic (24,447) (14,160) B BFAERRESRIEEBZESER
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CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e

31 December 2021 —T=—F+=-A=+—8H

8 LOSS BEFORE TAX FROM CONTINUING OPERATIONS (continued)

8

FEKSEEB 2RBATER (&)

Period ended Year ended
31 December 2021 30 June 2020
Bz HZE
—EC--F —EEF
+=A=+-—~H NA=+H
HK$°000 1HEAR EFE BT T
Auditor’s remuneration 2,835 2,556 ZE RN &
Loss on disposal/write-off of property, & MEE - BE &
plant and equipment, net 369 915 w2 FERE
Gains on early termination of leases (4,538) (38) REHEIEHE 2 W=
Loss on disposal of a financial asset = 2,473 HESREEEE
Impairment of right-of-use assets (note b) 94,472 102,306 FHREEE ZRE (MiEb)
Impairment of property, plant and equipment (note b) 21,548 12,968 Wz - BB RFRERE (Fiib)
Impairment of trademark (note b) 1,164 - IR 2 B (P 3Eb)
Impairment of debtors (note b) 248 - FEUSBR 5k 2 1B (BT 3Eb)
Impairment of deposits and other receivables (note b) 1,350 - e R A RIS 2 R E (M 5Eb)
Write-off of debtors 335 - JE M BR TR 2 1 B
Write-off of deposits and other receivables 132 6,419 o N H b e UL BRIE 2 Hfi 84
Foreign exchange differences, net 2,442 259 HNEE R AR - R E
Fair value losses/(gains), net on financial assets/liabilities REHRERZRAFENER Y
at fair value through profit or loss SREE/BBEZAFEFER, (W)
— transactions not qualifying as hedges (note c) 586 (792) —TREEREHEENRZS (st
Storage service charges 9,983 - BEERBE
Compensation income due to a fire accident (note d) = (5,000) EAEmfE 2 WA (FFsEd)

Notes:

reduce its contributions to the ORSO Scheme in future years.

statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income.
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(@) As at 31 December 2021, no (as at 30 June 2020: HK$53,000) forfeited contributions available to the Group to

(b) Impairment of right-of-use assets, property, plant and equipment, trademark, debtors and deposits and other
receivables is included in “Selling, distribution and other operating expenses” on the face of the consolidated

GEE

(@ RZTEZ—F+ZA=+—08 FAEEIE(R=_T=TF~A=1
H : ##53,0007T) AT A VBB 2 F B 22 R AR AT B3R 2 R U 5K -

(b) EEMEEAE Y* BELRE BF BURFARZS K EAMER
FEZRECERESABELAMEHKERZHE  DHEREM

BEMX -



8 LOSS BEFORE TAX FROM CONTINUING OPERATIONS (continued)

Notes: (continued)

()

(d)

The fair value losses/(gains), net on financial assets/liabilities - transactions not qualifying as hedges are included
in “Selling, distribution and other operating expenses” on the face of the consolidated statement of profit or loss
and other comprehensive income.

For the year ended 30 June 2020, the compensation income due to a fire accident of HK$5,000,000 was included
in “Other income” on the face of the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income.

For the period ended 31 December 2021, the management revised the presentation to combine “Selling and
distribution expenses” and “Other operating expenses, net” on the face of the consolidated statement of profit
and loss and other comprehensive income. Comparative figures have been revised to conform with the current
period presentation.

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STA
n'/_\é/ﬁ\ztﬁ%

31 December 2021 —ZE=—F+ - A=~

8 RFELEXBRBAESE (H)
i ()

(0 SREEBEZAFEFER (W) - TREEAETEHNRS
EREEGEBaEMEERER 2 [HE DEREMEERS] -

(d) HEZZT-TFA=THILFE - BANEMmRE 2B ABES5,000,000
TEBEERABESREMEEKRESER Z [HAakA] -

() BE-T-_—F+-A=1+—HILLHH EEEEIZIAN ' BEE

BakEt2EKaR HEERDHERAX ] RIEMEERX @ FE]
BOf c LBREBFEEBETUTEAHAM 2255 -
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CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e

mber 2021 —ZE=-—F+=-A=+—H

9 DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION 9 EEMS
= Directors’ remuneration for the period/year disclosed pursuant to section 383(1) of the Hong Kong BEBEEB RGO FEIBNER AT (RBESMmER) RHIZE2
-“;’ﬁ Companies Ordinance and Part 2 of the Companies (Disclosure of Information about Benefits of Directors) BEBE2HA/ FEEEMEMOT
Ca Regulation are as follows:
(%]
B
S (a) Directors’ emoluments (a) EEM=
cg Period ended Year ended
31 December 2021 30 June 2020
BZE HE
—BEC-F —ZTEHF
® o +=A=+-—~H ~A=+H
S HK$°000 L5 LEE BT
nw= —
Lo Executive directors: HITESE
g §j:l Fees 720 - we
o ok Salaries, bonus, allowances and benefits in kind 9,457 7,899 He o JEA - FEBINEYING
S2d Equity-settled share option expense 2,418 142 AR ERERT
Pension scheme contributions 65 36 RIREETEIHR
12,660 8,077
%m Non-executive directors: HITESE :
Eﬂﬂ Fees 720 - flaka
=
:C:ﬁ Independent non-executive directors: B IFRITES
Y N
gm Fees 1,367 753 we
St
& 14,747 8,830

i
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9 DIRECTORS' REMUNERATION (continued)

Directors’ remuneration for the period/year disclosed pursuant to section 383(1) of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance and Part 2 of the Companies (Disclosure of Information about Benefits of Directors)

Regulation are as follows: (continued)

(a) Directors’ emoluments (continued)
(i)  Executive directors

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STA
nv_\é‘,ﬁﬁﬁ%

31 December 2021 —ZE-—F+-F=

9 EEME (&)
RBEFAARGPIEIBMGER AR (REEENEER) RHIHE2
B BMA/ FEEEMSOT : (B)

() EE=M= (8
() BITEF

Salaries,
bonus, Equity-
allowances settled Pension
and benefits  share option scheme Total
Fees in kind expense contributions remuneration
e A
)=4:1953 EREE BirE
HK$'000 we BYksE BIRAER X MR e BT T
Period ended 31 December 2021 BE-ZE-—F+-A=+—HLHH
Mr. CHEUNG Chi (note(i)) 360 1,726 1,290 24 3,400 R 5 S A (B EEG))
Mr. ZHAO Jianguo (note(})) 360 - 483 - 843 32 B o A (BT RE)
Mr. CHAN Cheuk Him Paul - 3,296 645 27 3,968 PRE R &
Ms. TSIN Man Kuen Bess (note(ii)) - 222 - = 222 #2218 2+ (i aEG)
Mr. MAK Tak Cheong Edmund 1= 8 5 A (B aE(in))
(note(iii)) - 4,213 - 14 4,227
720 9,457 2,418 65 12,660
Year ended 30 June 2020 BE-Z_ZFXA=1HILEE
Mr. CHAN Cheuk Him Paul - 2,007 39 18 2,064 PR Fk ot A
Ms. TSIN Man Kuen Bess (note(ii)) - 1,737 39 = 1,776 #2152+ (B 5EGi)
Mr. MAK Tak Cheong Edmund 4= 8 A (P REGii))
(note(iii)) - 4,155 64 18 4,237
- 7,899 142 36 8,077
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CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e

mber 2021 —ZE=-—F+=-A=+—H

9 DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION (continued) 9 EEME (&)
= Directors’ remuneration for the period/year disclosed pursuant to section 383(1) of the Hong Kong BEBEEB RGO FEIBNER AT (RBESMmER) RHIZE2
-gﬁ Companies Ordinance and Part 2 of the Companies (Disclosure of Information about Benefits of Directors) BEB BN FEEEMEWT - (&)
Ca Regulation are as follows: (continued)
(%]
B
§ Hk (a) Directors’ emoluments (continued) (a) ESM < (&)
@ (i) Non-executive directors (i) FHITEF
The fees paid to non-executive directors during the period/year were as follows: REN,/ FREXN FHERTEEZHRENT -
Period ended Year ended
SO 31 December 2021 30 June 2020
.= s
O E i 8= EES
v —B=—f —EoTE
== _
e +=A=+-A8 AA=+A
S S HK$'000 LEHIR IHFE BT
S8« Mr. Victor HERRERO (note(iv)) 360 - Victor HERRERO: 2 (i EE(iv)
Mr. LAW Ching Kit Bosco (note(iv)) 360 - B IEZ A (B aEGv)
720 -
g
i
gﬂlﬂ (i) Independent non-executive directors (i) BB ITESE
o The fees paid to independent non-executive directors during the period/year were as follows: REA/ FREIXNTFEUIERTES 2RSS T
L=
5 .
+ fifh Period ended Year ended
S 31 December 2021 30 June 2020
52 BE 8=
—BEC-—F —E-TF
+=A=+-8 ~NA=+H
A HK$/000 == IS BT
'% Mr. LEE Kwok Ming (note(v)) 431 - B 5 A& (T 3E(v))
EX Prof. SIN Yat Ming 450 231 5% B B HR
£ A Mr. CHEONG Shin Keong 450 232 B &58 5 &
= Ms. LEUNG Mei Han (note(vi)) 36 290 R 2 £ (B E(vi)
.G E&
[
ie 1,367 753
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9 DIRECTORS' REMUNERATION (continued)
Directors’ remuneration for the period/year disclosed pursuant to section 383(1) of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance and Part 2 of the Companies (Disclosure of Information about Benefits of Directors)
Regulation are as follows: (continued)

(a) Directors’ emoluments (continued)
Notes:

(i)  Mr. CHEUNG Chi and Mr. ZHAO Jianguo were appointed as the Company’s executive directors on 24 July
2020.

(i) Ms. TSIN Man Kuen Bess resigned from the Company’s executive director on 14 August 2020.

(iiiy Mr. MAK Tak Cheong Edmund retired from the Company’s executive director on 17 November 2020.

(iv) Mr. Victor HERRERO and Mr. LAW Ching Kit Bosco were appointed as the Company’s non-executive directors
on 24 July 2020.

(v) Mr. LEE Kwok Ming was appointed as the Company’s independent non-executive director on 24 July 2020.

(vi) Ms. LEUNG Mei Han resigned from the Company’s independent non-executive director on 14 August 2020.

(b) Directors’ retirement benefits
None of the directors received or will receive any retirement benefits during the period ended
31 December 2021 (for the year ended 30 June 2020: Nil).

(c) Directors’ termination benefits
None of the directors received or will receive any termination benefits during the period ended
31 December 2021 (for the year ended 30 June 2020: Nil).

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STA

n'/_\ é /E\j- i%

31 December 2021 —ZE-—F+-F=

9 EEME (&)
REBEFBRBGRPIEIBER AR (KEESMEEM) RHIFH2
BEBE2BMA/ FEEEMEMT : (B)

(a) EEM= (&)
Fif5E -

(b)

(9]

@

(i)

REEAERHEBREER T -_TFLA-TNAEZERELR
AZRITES -

BEB/LTER 2 -_2F)\A +HABRERRBRTESR -

(iy BEELEERZESF+—A+tHREARARTESR
f%o

(iv) Victor HERREROEERBERFEER T _TFLA-TNHESR
EARARZIENITES -

(v) ZEAEAENR_Z_TELA-_TNAERTAARRZ B
HITEE-

vi) REBLZLTER-_Z_ZF/N\A+NBEBEARRBIIFNTE
RIS -

BEEZRAEH

BE-T-—F+ZA=+— R SRR EEAESRIES
WEUERRAKBN (BE—Z_ZF R A=THILFE : £) °

EECRIEERER

BHE

TR —F+Z A=+ —H (- BB E S RS UER

RILEARN (BE—Z-_ZFA=THLFE: &) -
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CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e

mber 2021 —ZE=-—F+=-A=+—H

9 DIRECTORS' REMUNERATION (continued)
Directors’ remuneration for the period/year disclosed pursuant to section 383(1) of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance and Part 2 of the Companies (Disclosure of Information about Benefits of Directors)
Regulation are as follows: (continued)

(d) Consideration provided to third parties for making available directors’ services

(e)

()

During the period ended 31 December 2021, the Company did not pay consideration to any third
parties for making available directors’ services (for the year ended 30 June 2020: Nil).

Information about loans, quasi-loans and other dealings in favour of directors, controlled
bodies corporate by and connected entities with such directors

During the period ended 31 December 2021, there were no loans, quasi-loans and other dealings in
favour of directors, controlled bodies corporate by and connected entities with such directors (for the
year ended 30 June 2020: Nil).

Directors’ material interests in transactions, arrangements or contracts

No significant transactions, arrangements and contracts in relation to the Company’s business to
which the Company was a party and in which a director of the Company had a material interest,
whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the reporting period or at any time during the
period (for the year ended 30 June 2020: Nil) other than those disclosed in note 36.

ANNUAL REPORT 2020/21 4

EEME (&)
REBEFBRBROIEIBNEL AR (KEESMEEM) RHIFH2
MEEBMA/ FEEEMENT - (B)

(d) REHEBRBEAE=FREZNKE

(e)

(f)

HE_ZT-—F+-A=+—HIHH  ARFIALEBERH
EERBMAEME=ITXNZIREBE_Z_TF A=1
HLIEFE : &) -

FHUES AEZEZEPHAEERAZHAZER
HE"Z-—F+_A=+—RIIHPH HEFEZUES
ERMZEEREMEERATEAZEN EERLEMBRZ S
(BE—Z-ZFXA=THLFE: &) -

EERRS  REUREGHNZERESR

BRP4EESCPTINER SN - ARRBET LB AR R EBERE - MA
RAREP I RARREFTERIMEAEEARD ANE
SHMRSIHATAREFEZEARS ZHEAEH(EHE
ZoEFRA=ZTAHLFE &) -



10 FIVE HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES

The five highest paid employees during the period included 3 (for the year ended 30 June 2020: 3)
directors, details of whose remuneration are set out in note 9 above. Details of the remuneration of the
remaining 2 (for the year ended 30 June 2020: 2) highest paid employees who are not directors of the

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STA

31 December 2021 —ZE-—F+-F=

10 T ERSHES
PRARLRSHFEEEFE=%(BE_2=
=R EE HMEHBEEHINR EXME - HSME (BE-Z
—EEXNASTALEE  MRB)AAFASSHFEESEE L HE

n'/_\ é /E\j- i%

PEAXA=+HAILER:

Company are as follows: ZEEMT
Period ended Year ended
31 December 2021 30 June 2020
BZE #HE
—EBC-—fF —TEHF
+=ZA=+—H NA=1H
HK$'000 1HHARS IEFE BT
Salaries, bonus, allowances and benefits in kind 4,537 3,703 e EA  EBREY RS
Equity-settled share option expense 595 96 EmEEERERT
Pension scheme contributions 58 29 RIRE IR
5,190 3,828

The emoluments fell within the following bands:

Number of employees

e FTrIgEE :

EEHE

Period ended Year ended

31 December 2021 30 June 2020

BZ HE

—E-—F —TE-TF

t=A=+—-~ ~A=+H

1-FARE EFE

Emolument bands: e & E -

HK$1,500,001 to HK$2,000,000 - 2 75 #1,500,001 70 2= 74 #2,000,0007C
HK$2,000,001 to HK$2,500,000 1 = 742,000,001 7T /8 #2,500,0007T
HK$2,500,001 to HK$3,000,000 1 - 75 #2,500,001 7T 2 # # 3,000,000

2 2
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CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e
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11 INCOME TAX EXPENSE 1 FBHMAX

= Hong Kong profits tax has been provided at the rate of 16.5% (for the year ended 30 June 2020: 16.5%) EBMNENRERBARN 2 BT ERTUGEFIAT F165% (BE-ZF =
-gﬁ on the estimated assessable profit for the period. The mainland China Corporate Income Tax provision TERA=ZTHIEFE : 165%) BB HEE o g B AR ZEBIED
Ca in respect of the operation in mainland China is calculated based on the statutory tax rate of 25% on Z P EIRFERZE PSR BE DRBAEBRITER - REMEDIZE
ﬁﬁ the estimated profits for the period based on existing legislation, interpretations and practices in respect REEERFA% 2 EERMEHE (BE-_T-_TF A=1TAH1t
5% thereof (for the year ended 30 June 2020: 25%). Taxation on overseas profits has been calculated on the FE:25%) o BINGEFIBIIE T IR RN F R 2 d 5 ERFE FIAR
@ estimated assessable profit for the period/year at the rates of taxation prevailing in the countries in which BAREBERLEMERR 2 RITHESH -

the Group operates.

- Period ended Year ended
.g o 31 December 2021 30 June 2020
E E Bz
g —g=—% —=o=x
©Z24d +=A=+-8 NA=+8
ggﬂg HK$'000 LLEARS HEE BT T
S S Current income tax BNEAFRF1E L
— Hong Kong profits tax 1,291 1,844 — BANEH
— Overseas taxation 664 473 — BN
g
T 1,955 2,317
g:; Under/(over) provision in prior years BEEERETR GBIERE)
S - Hong Kong profits tax 381 (46) — BREMEH
£
Sl 2,336 2,271
oc
Deferred income tax (note 28) 556 9,912 RIEPAIST (BI7128)
2,892 12,183
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STA
llV_\éﬂjﬁ%

31 December 2021 —ZE-—F+-F=

11 INCOME TAX EXPENSE (continued) 11 FriSHiB % ()
The tax on the Group's profit before income tax differs from the theoretical amount that would arise using AN 5 B B B 15350 A e 1 B0 750 TE BRAR BB FR PR R & B B 0 U B N ¢ w
the weighted average tax rate applicable to profits of the consolidated entities as follows: ABERFGEZERSBEIR 220 ¢ =
Period ended Year ended B =
31 December 2021 30 June 2020 @\
BZE HE g
—E-—fF —ETHF
+=A=+-8 ~NA=+E
HK$'000 1-HARS IEFE BETT
Loss before income tax from continuing operations (337,167) (335,313) BT 7 R TSR AT g
Loss before income tax from a discontinued operation (378) (20,239) DR IEETS 2 B TSR R EE h—>§ _(Q:
£3
(337,545) (355,552) P23
)5 ®
=S
Tax calculated at domestic tax rates applicable REARS BRR 25 2 B R & 2 FHIE* me o
to profits in the respective countries* (65,960) (63,817) -
Tax effects of: M E
— Income not subject to tax (14,431) (14,335) — A2 WA
— Expenses not deductible for tax purposes 14,843 21,860 — TAMERIBINR 2 s Y
— Tax losses and temporary differences for which no — RERELERIBE E 2 RIBBER IIlt'§
deferred tax asset was recognised 68,043 69,405 = ﬂg,
— Utilisation of tax losses previously not recognised (483) (2,194) — BALAIARERRIBEE &.;5:
- Others 664 1,310 — HAt o
Under/(over) provision in prior years 381 (46) BEFERETR, (BEEE) mma
Tax concession (note) (165) - RS ER () a
Income tax expense 2,892 12,183 FriSHif X
QST'
Income tax expense from continuing operations 2,892 12,183 FIECEETS 2 FTSTFAY e é
w
Income tax expense from a discontinued operation - - EARIEFEB 2 TEHRS Eg
%
QU
*  The weighted average applicable tax rate was 19.6% (for the year ended 30 June 2020: 17.9%). * EAZMEFERERI6% (HEZZ-_TFXA=tHILFE: §'
17.9%) °

BOSSINI INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED Z¥isEEFRERABR DA 1 47
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CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e
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INCOME TAX EXPENSE (continued)
Note:

Pursuant to the enactment of two-tiered profits tax rates by the Inland Revenue Department of Hong Kong (“IRD") from
the year of assessment 2020/21 onwards, the Group's first HK$2 million of assessable profits under Hong Kong profits
tax is subject to tax rate of 8.25%. The Group's remaining assessable profits above HK$2 million will continue to be
subject to a tax rate of 16.5%.

DISCONTINUED OPERATION

On 2 March 2020, the Group announced a plan to wind down the Group's retail operation in Taiwan (the
“Taiwan segment”) considering that it was not optimistic about the near term prospect of the Taiwan
segment and the cessation of Taiwan segment operation could enable the Group to better utilise its
resources in its other segments. As at 31 December 2021, all retail shops in Taiwan had ceased operation.
The Taiwan segment was thus classified as discontinued operation and no longer included in the note for
operating segment information. Further details of the above were set out in the Company’s announcement
dated 2 March 2020.

ANNUAL REPORT 2020/21 4

11

12

Fri&®ir < (&)
FeE

BEEBRER ((RBER) B2~ —RBFERHE 2 MAHIFIE
BE REEEEE2AETERTOEN 2 BT H8.25% - REMBBEK2
B & 702 FIERIE AR F S AL AR 1216.5% 2 8 AR

BRILER

RZZEZZTHF=A-H AEBLAHERALAEER G ENTEEYR
(TaENHE]) z:t8l ZEIAEREHAESENAIRER IS
REEH  URKRIEERESBEDASEREMOEEERAE
BReM-—FE-_—S+—-A=+—0 FALENZEEFCRILE
%A AESEESEADKRILER UIABREREESEE
B R - Bl LM SEZ E—SHBEIARARRBEHAZTZ
SE=ZA-H22 M-



12 DISCONTINUED OPERATION (continued)

The results of the discontinued operation for the period/year are presented as below:

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STA
nv_\é‘,ﬁﬁﬁ%

31 December 2021 ZZE = —F+= F =+~

12 BRI (B
ERIEEBRBA FRZEEZ/MOT

Period ended Year ended
31 December 2021 30 June 2020
Bz HE
—E-—F T CTF
+=A=+—8 ANA=+A
HK$'000 HEARS IEFE BT
Revenue - 136,836 g %5
Cost of sales - (66,282) HEK A
Gross profit - 70,554 E R
Other income 17 855 EH g A
Selling, distribution and other operating expenses - (68,366) HE  DHEREMEERS
Administrative expenses (395) (23,059) THRHEX
Loss from operating activities from a discontinued operation (378) (20,016) BRI v BB ER
Finance costs - (223) & B AR
Loss before tax from a discontinued operation (378) (20,239) BRI 2 B AT E 1B
Income tax expense - - FrisBiAX
Loss for the period/year from a discontinued operation (378) (20,239) BRILEB BN FAREE
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CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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12 DISCONTINUED OPERATION (continued)

The net cash flows incurred by the discontinued operation are as follows:

12 BERLEXE (B
ERIERBAELZFRERERIWT

Period ended Year ended
31 December 2021 30 June 2020
BE HE
s T CTF
+=A=+-8H ~A=Z+H
HK$'000 LHEARS IEFE BT T
Operating activities - 3,710 EIB R
Investing activities - 4,880 KEES
Financing activities - (3,929) B EEE
Net cash inflow = 4,661 FIHEBMA
(restated)
(FE351)
Loss per share: BREE
Basic, from a discontinued operation (HKO0.02 cent 5&1lll)) (HK1.20 cents/&1l) HAR REBERIEES
Diluted, from a discontinued operation (HK0.02 cent #4L) (HK1.20 centsi& i) e KERRIEER

The calculation of basic and diluted loss per share from the discontinued operation are based on:

KADKIERBZSRERREEERDRETISHFTH

Period ended Year ended
31 December 2021 30 June 2020
BZE #H=E
—B-—F ZETF
+=A=+—-8 NA=+A
HK$'000 LEHAR IEFE BETT
Loss attributable to ordinary equity holders of the RArREmERTTE AEBG
Company from a discontinued operation (378) (20,239) REBRILERZEBE
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12 DISCONTINUED OPERATION (continued)

The calculation of basic and diluted loss per share from the discontinued operation are based on: (continued)

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STA
llV_\éﬂjﬁ%

31 December 2021 —ZE-—F+-F=

12 BRI (B
REEREFH 2 BRERNREIERIRETIISEAE - (B)

Period ended Year ended

31 December 2021 30 June 2020
Bz HE

B T CTF
+=A=+—8 NA=+A
IHEIR IEFE

(restated)

(geE5)

Weighted average number of ordinary shares in issue ARTESREARBEBZHANFR
during the period/year used in the basic loss BETERRINE A (ME14)
per share calculation (note 14) 2,061,332,475 1,684,526,378

Weighted average number of ordinary shares in issue ARSTESREEEBZHANFR
during the period/year used in the diluted loss BEITEmRINETHE(HEE14)
per share calculation (note 14) 2,061,332,475 1,684,526,378

13 DIVIDEND

No final dividend was proposed for the period ended 31 December 2021 and for the year ended 30 June

2020.

14 LOSS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE TO ORDINARY EQUITY HOLDERS OF THE COMPANY
The calculation of basic loss per share is based on the loss for the period/year attributable to ordinary
equity holders of the Company from continuing operations of HK$340,059,000 (for the year ended 30
June 2020: HK$347,496,000) and the loss from a discontinued operation of HK$378,000 (loss from a
discontinued operation for the year ended 30 June 2020: HK$20,239,000), and the weighted average
number of ordinary shares of 2,061,332,475 (for the year ended 30 June 2020 (restated): 1,684,526,378)

in issue during the period.

13 RE
HE-_Z - —F+_A=+—HALHHEREE T _FF A=
AIEFE I ERRARPRS

14 KPR EBRAFEAEBLERER
BRARBEDBREFELEEB 2 AR EBERFE ARG
A, A EIEE 340,059,000 (BRE—Z-—FFA=+HILHF
& : #B¥347,496,0007T) K& B 421 F 75 2 BB B H378,0007T (B 2
TECTFERNACTHIEFEEBRIEER 2EE - 5%20,239,000
JT) MENE BT E B N F19802,061,332,475/ (BE=ZE =%
FARA=ZTHILEFEEED]) : 1,684,526,3788) 51 & °
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14 LOSS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE TO ORDINARY EQUITY HOLDERS OF THE COMPANY 14 A AT ERERSE AEESRER (&)

2 (continued)
-% I Weighted average number of the ordinary shares TR IR YR
Ca 2021 2020
i S —EoFF
% K (restated)
@ (&)
Issued shares at 1 July 1,641,333,394 1,641,333,394 RNt A—BBEEITR®D
Effect of share options exercised 1,135,677 - 1TERERE s E
T g Effect of rights issue including bonus elements (note 29(c)) 418,863,404 43,192,984 HRBFBANH D 28 (H5E29(0)
20
SEwm \
3:_§(g||[ Weighted average number of shares R+=—A=+—8 ~A=+82
g §j;_| at 31 December/30 June 2,061,332,475 1,684,526,378 R%15 AN S 15 81
o o
S 2« The diluted loss per share for the period ended 31 December 2021 and for the year ended 30 June 2020 MRBRE ey EAREE BE-_S-_—F+=-A=1+—H
equals to the basic loss per share as the impact of dilution of the share options is anti-dilutive. RS Z - E-ZFXA=ZTALFEZSREEBIEEGAR
EAREEAER -
§ll||l The basic and diluted loss per share for the year ended 30 June 2020 were restated by adjusting the BHE_Z - ZFRA=ZTHEFEZBREARESSEEEY)
= weighted average number of ordinary shares in issues for the bonus element due to the rights issue WRENR—F - —FHA T+ AR IR ZAFNBOREBEITE
2 completed on 12 April 2021, AT EE LA -
kS
=

e S i

B % & B

Financial information
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15 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STA
n'/_\é/ﬁ\ztﬁ%

31 December 2021 —ZE=—F+ - A=~

15 ME - BERRKE

Furniture, w
fixtures " 5
: S
Leasehold and office Motor o
improvements equipment vehicles Total = =
B HER - @
HK$'000 HEMEEE WARRME it A BT g'
At 1 July 2019 R=-ZB—-NEtHB—H
Cost 295,022 222,189 2,401 519,612 DN
Accumulated depreciation and R ERRE
impairment (269,213) (202,197) (2,348) (473,758) =
Po o
Net book amount 25,809 19,992 53 45,854 BREDFE e 3
Q
B5E
Year ended 30 June 2020 BE-—ZT-ZFAA=ZTHLEE WSS
Opening net book amount 25,809 19,992 53 45,854 BRI FE mes
Additions 12,999 8,278 - 21,277 INE -
Disposals/write-off (1,232) (749) - (1,981) Eak= /€=l
Impairment (9,288) (3,681) - (12,969) B
Depreciation (17,180) (10,408) - (27,588) e =
Exchange realignment 985 (58) - 927 HApEE 135
e
Closing net book amount 12,093 13,374 53 25,520 HRARBR T B m_s-*h
#T
=}
At 30 June 2020 R-B-B&EXA=+H w3
Cost 256,629 214,575 2,397 473,601 BANME a4
Accumulated depreciation and R ERRIE
impairment (244,536) (201,201) (2,344) (448,081)
Net book amount 12,093 13,374 53 25,520 BREEE

o & 8

=
>
[
=)
.
=)
=
=+
[e]
=
=i
Q
=
o
=)
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PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (continued) 15 Y% BER&E (E)
2 Furniture,
2 fixtures
5 L Leasehold and office Motor
; o improvements equipment vehicles Total
o B BER
g % HK$'000 ARNEEE  WOZRE i s BT
= Period ended 31 December 2021 BE-Z-_—F+-A=+—HIHMH
Opening net book amount 12,093 13,374 53 25,520 BIYIRREDFE
Additions 35,091 8,713 - 43,804 NE
- Disposals (1,766) - - (1,766) HE
2o Impairment (16,839) (4,709) - (21,548) IE
QE I Depreciation (15,073) (8,394) - (23,467) e
g2 Exchange realignment 3,256 1,406 1 4,663 HgAE
Ccd
2 2
£3 4 Closing net book amount 16,762 10,390 54 27,206 MR REFE
U —
At 31 December 2021 R=-ZB=-—-5+=ZA=+—H
Cost 241,058 216,165 1,042 458,265 B NE
» Accumulated depreciation and R ERRIE
§m||l impairment (224,296) (205,775) (988) (431,059)
S
éﬁ Net book amount 16,762 10,390 54 27,206 IREVEE
S
+ il

Re%o

B % & B

Financial information
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15 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (continued)
The directors of the Group regard each retail store as an individual cash-generating unit for “bossini”
and “bossini.X" which mainly consist of property, plant and equipment and right-of-use assets. As at 31
December 2021, the carrying amounts of the Group’s property, plant and equipment and right-of-use

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STA
llV_\éﬂjﬁ%

31 December 2021 —ZE-—F+-F=

15 Y% - BERRE (E)
AEBEEEEEZTEEHH A bossini | & [bossini.X] 2 B R & &E
HEBA FEREVE BERSEUARERAREE RZT=—
F+ZA=+—8 AKEYE BEERXEARFEREEE K

assets are analysed as follows: EETHET

“bossini” “bossini.X" Total
HK$'000 [bossini | [bossini.X ] st BT T
Property, plant and equipment 15,874 11,332 27,206 Wz - BE B
Right-of-use assets (note 17a(i)) 90,842 21,419 112,261 EAREEE (ME17a0))
Total 106,716 32,751 139,467 et

During the period ended 31 December 2021, on top of original “bossini” product line operated in Hong
Kong, Macau, mainland China and Singapore, the Group launched a new product line namely “bossini.X"
and opened certain number of retail stores in mainland China. “bossini.X" stores are at the beginning
stage with historical operation data available for a relatively short period of time.

In view of the continuous unfavourable operating environment experienced by the retail industry due to
the outbreak of COVID-19 and the uncertainty with respect to the timing of the recovery and possible
deterioration of the economic condition and retail sentiment in Hong Kong, Macau and mainland China
markets, the directors consider that certain property, plant and equipment and right-of-use assets of
“bossini” and “bossini.X" cash-generating units were subject to impairments.

HE_Z-_—F+-A=1+—H1LHE  BRES B fEKX
BE Ko AN 48 2 2 R A [bossini ] ZFI5N - AEBMEHFHEY] - B 5
[bossini.X] + WHN AR B KREF RS TEE/EH © [bossini.X] 5455
RESHE - JAZEL S EHE 2 FRAYRE -

ERRERFARSRRSMERTEXFERE NN 2 E/ERETE -
AREE R R B ARREMISRLER RS E R A2 8P
THEE B ATEE = - EER B [bossini | & [bossini. X | IR & &= 4 B AL
ZETYE BERREARFEAREEMELIRRBE -
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15 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (continued)

The directors estimate the recoverable amounts of the cash-generating unit as follows:

Impairment assessment - “bossini” cash-generating units

During the period ended 31 December 2021, management identified that certain stores with impairment
indicators. The respective recoverable amounts of HK$15,874,000 and HK$90,842,000 for property,
plant and equipment and right-of-use assets, respectively of the “bossini” cash-generating units have
been determined based on a value in use calculation which was prepared by the management using
cash flow projections based on financial budgets and forecasts covering the remaining useful lives of the
property, plant and equipment and right-of-use assets based on the conditions as at 31 December 2021.
Key assumptions used for the value in use calculation as at 31 December 2021 and 30 June 2020 were as
follows:

Key assumptions used for the value in use calculation for “bossini” cash-generating units:

15 W% BERRE (&)

EEMFReEAEM 2T ROSENT

JH 1B 512 - [bossini | 28 & B4 &7
HE_Z-—F+_A=+—HIHE EEEHNET/EHLE
REBNR © [bossini | IR EAE BN ZE - BE KR A K F A #E
EEZSAWE S R AE15,874,0000T & 78 #690,842,000
T FEAREEERECHASRERARER S =_—F+=A1
Z+-HRNBERZEREETE BeREWIEREREDE K
EREBUARGEREEERTAERAFHMEEERTBRFE -
R-BE-——F+-_A=+—AR-_E-_TEXA=THIEFHE
BEFRAZESHREMOT

& [bossini | RS ELBU 2 EABEMRBZ TEMRRAT :

At 31 December At 30 June
2021 2020
R-B=Z—F RZEZTHF
+=ZA=+-H NA=+A
Sales growth rate 0% 0% IHEE R
Gross margin rate 44% - 70% 42% - 69% b
Discount rate 13% - 14% 9% - 12% BL3E =&

The directors determined the above sales growth rate and gross margin rate based on historical operation
data, the expectation of future market development and taken into consideration on the continuous
impact from the COVID-19 to the Group.

Based on the results of the assessment, impairment provisions of HK$67,600,000 (for the year ended 30
June 2020: HK$115,274,000) for property, plant and equipment and right-of-use assets were recognised
in loss for continuing operations during the period ended 31 December 2021 for “bossini” cash-
generating units.

As at 31 December 2021, if the forecast sales for the year ending 31 December 2022 applied to the cash
flow projection for “bossini” cash-generating units had been higher/lower by 10%, an impairment charge
of approximate HK$13,834,000 lower or HK$20,134,000 higher, respectively would be resulted.
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EERBEFELEEBHE AHRRRTRAEREERBIFTLTRHES
HARB BBV EET LAHERRERENE -

BEILER BE - T-_—F+_-_A=+—HI-HE O
[bossini|IR& EABM 2 IFECEER 2 FEERME - BB L&
AN {F L B 2 BB B 15 75 567,600,000 (Bl E — T —ZF
NAZTHIEFRE: B8115,274,00000) °

R —F+_A=1+—H WEREE_E_—_F+=-_A=+—
BIEFEst[bossini ] REEABMN RS RERAFER ZEAHEE
B HA10% - RAEE S 5 BIR A #9748 #13,834,0007T 54,1 A1
75 #£20,134,0007T °



15 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (continued)

Impairment assessment - “bossini” cash-generating units (continued)

As at 31 December 2021, if the forecast sales for the year ending 31 December 2022 applied to the cash
flow projection for “bossini” cash-generating units had been higher/lower by 20%, an impairment charge
of approximate HK$21,375,000 lower or HK$41,055,000 higher, respectively would be resulted.

As at 31 December 2021, if the discount rate applied to the cash flow projection for “bossini” cash-
generating units had been higher/lower by 1%, an impairment charge of approximate HK$752,000 higher
or HK$772,000 lower, respectively would be resulted.

In early 2022, The Government of the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region has taken more vigorous
measures to restrict the spread of COVID-19 in Hong Kong, including further tightening of social distancing
rules and bans on incoming flights. In light of the rapidly increasing number of confirmed cases in February
and March 2022, additional precautionary and control measures were added. This recent development has
impacted businesses and economic activities in Hong Kong and the directors considered that it will impact
the performance and the determination of the recoverable amounts of the relevant cash-generating units
in the future. The directors will continue to monitor the impacts to the Group.

Impairment assessment - “bossini. X" cash-generating units

During the period ended 31 December 2021, management identified that certain stores with impairment
indicators. The respective recoverable amounts of HK$11,332,000 and HK$21,419,000 for property, plant
and equipment and right-of-use assets, respectively of the “bossini.X” cash-generating units have been
determined based on a value in use calculation which was prepared by the management using cash flow
projections based on financial budgets and forecasts covering the remaining useful lives of the property,
plant and equipment and right-of-use assets based on the conditions as at 31 December 2021. Key
assumptions used for the value in use calculation as at 31 December 2021 were as follows:

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STA

wa %

31 December 2021 —ZE = —F+ = A=+

15 W% BERRE (&)

SR 1B FF(E - [bossini | B8 2 B4 &7 (48)
RZEZ—F+A=1+—H WEREBE_T-_—_F+=-H=+—
BIEF =5 [bossini | IREEE BN 2 IRERETEAER 2B RIEE
I HA20% ¢ REE A D BIR A 497 21,375,0007T 31 38 Hn
7 #41,055,0007T °

RZEZ—F+=ZA=+—H ' M&EFbossini ]3RS EEE ZF
SRETEAERZEIRREN, 1% REERED BN
75 #5752,0007T 3R A A #5772,0007T °

REZZTZZFY) - FERRITTIRE BT EEEE BRE 2 15 i LA BR 137
ABRRSNEBEE  2FEE —PRETBERERA R EAE
It BR T -_—F - AK= A2RHIEE ARG M - IR0
FINOTERS RAEHIEIE - A2 RIEBREFER B2 HERLE
EE EERAEBYEHEERSELENRARZRERTKE
CHEIET EEBEBRERUAEECRE -

SR 1B FF(E - [bossini. X | B & B4 B (7
HE_Z-—F+_-_A=+—HI-5H BEE#HNETFTEHLR
AR o [bossini X IREELEBMN 2 ME - BE K& K& [E R
BEZSEWESEED R AE11,332,0007T & 7E#21,419,000
T EABEEEERECRENEEARBR _ZE-_—F+_A4
=+ —HRERAZFEREEE BeREBAIERREDE - K
EREHEURERAEEERTAIERAFHcMBEERBRFE -
RZEZ—F+-A=+—HEETABEMRA ZEERKZW
I
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15 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (continued)

Impairment assessment - “bossini.X” cash-generating units (continued)
Key assumptions used for the value in use calculation for “bossini.X" cash-generating units:

At 31 December
2021
R-ZBZ—F
+=A=+-8

15 % BER&RE (&)

S 1B FF(Z - [bossini X | BB & B4 E 7 (48)
& bossiniX | IReEAENU 2 FHEEMFERZEEZ/EOT

Sales growth rate (Note) (FffzE)
Gross margin rate 31% - 59%
Discount rate 14%

Note:

Sales growth rate for “bossini.X" cash-generating units was based on the budgeted sales approved by senior
management for the year ending 31 December 2022, 100% sales growth for the year ending 31 December 2023,
further 50% sales for the year ending 31 December 2024 and remain stable thereafter.

The directors determined the above sales growth rate and gross margin rate based on historical operation
data, the expectation of future market development and taken into consideration on the continuous
impact from the COVID-19 to the Group.

Based on the results of the assessment, impairment provisions of HK$48,420,000 for property, plant and
equipment and right-of-use assets were recognised in loss for continuing operations during the period
ended 31 December 2021 for “bossini.X" cash-generating units.

As at 31 December 2021, if the forecast sales for the year ending 31 December 2022 applied to the cash
flow projection for “bossini.X” cash-generating units had been higher/lower by 10%, an impairment
charge of approximate HK$5,480,000 lower or HK$7,985,000 higher, respectively would be resulted.

As at 31 December 2021, if the forecast sales for the year ending 31 December 2022 applied to the cash
flow projection for “bossini.X" cash-generating units had been higher/lower by 20%, an impairment
charge of approximate HK$9,669,000 lower or HK$19,369,000 higher, respectively would be resulted.

As at 31 December 2021, if the discount rate applied to the cash flow projection for “bossini.X" cash-
generating units had been higher/lower by 1%, an impairment charge of approximate HK$459,000 higher
or HK$474,000 lower, respectively would be resulted.
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R
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BisE

[bossini X e ELABMZHENREDNERNESREEEIARE T
T AT REFECEEHE BE_T-_=—F+-_A=+—H
IFFEZHEERI00% HEZT-_NF+-_A=+—HULFEZHEEH
— I R50% F MEABRBRIBEZHENH -

SEREFLEEHE  FHRARMAERLEBIFUTRES
HAEBZHEYEET LAHERRERENE -

BEFIHER B#E TS+ -_A=+—HBI-HE B
[bossiniX IR G ELEMN 2 IFECEERZIGERRADE  BER
R A S (F A E 2 BB R 5 #48,420,0007T °

RZZE——F+-A=+—H WEREE-_Z-_—_F+=-A=+—
HIEFE 5 [bossini X/ REEE BN 2R &2 T8 8E R 2 888
S0, 10% 0 RIEE B S5 R #)78%5,480,000T 8 1 AN
75 17,985,000 °

R —F+_A=1+—H WErEE_E_—_F+=-_A=1+—
BIEFE 5 [bossini X | RS EE BN 2R mETERE A 2 T8 RI5H
B, BA20% - REE RS B #7E%9,669,0007T 8k 1 N
#5119,369,0007T, °

RZZE-—F+-_A=+—H &5 bossiniX| REELENZ
RERBBAFERZIREZ I SHA1% - FHEE BB B
#4975 #£459,0007T 3k 3, 7B #474,0007T ©



NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STA
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31 December 2021 —ZE-—F+-F=

16 INVESTMENT PROPERTIES 16 REWE
At 31 December At 30 June
2021 2020
RIBZ—F RZZ_TF
HK$'000 +=A=+—H SNA=+H BT T
Carrying amount at beginning of period/year 16,776 18,543 REAY)FYIREE
Depreciation provided during the period/year (2,652) (1,767) BN FRITERE
Transfer to assets classified as held for sale (note 24) (9,437) - EEESHEAFBEHE 2B E (HiF24)
Carrying amount at end of period/year 4,687 16,776 RER FREEmE

The directors of the Company have determined that the investment properties are industrial, based on
the nature, characteristics and risk of the properties. The Group’s investment properties were valued as at
the end of the reporting period by Roma Appraisals Limited, independent professionally qualified valuer,
at HK$93,800,000 (as at 30 June 2020: HK$204,500,000). Each year, the Group’s management decide
to appoint which external valuer to be responsible for the external valuation of the Group’s properties.
Selection criteria include market knowledge, reputation, independence and whether professional
standards are maintained. The Group’s management have discussions with the valuer on the valuation
assumptions and valuation result once a year when the valuation is performed for annual financial
reporting. The investment properties are leased to third parties under operating leases.

Further particulars of the Group’s investment properties are included on page 202.

BEWMEZED BHEERRAR AARBEZCECRENELSTE
ME - REBZREVERBYEXSERGBEMESBERTEE
PR AR R 45 HA K 2 (B A& 78 593,800,000 (R =T =T 4F X A
=8 : #%204,500,0007T) - AEE 2 EEBERSFEREZEIN
FEHER - B EHASEYEEITIINDGE - B ZERIETIHA
HoBE BUMREREREFKE - AEBEZEBETFERF
BV SRS ETHERMGAERIRIGAELREGEMETHR
BREYEDRBCERERTE=R -

ERAKEREME ZE—HSFBHNE202E -
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16 INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued) 16 REW=E (&)
= Fair value hierarchy NEEREE
-gﬁ The following table illustrates the fair value measurement hierarchy of the Group’s investment properties: TRIAREEZREYWE 2 AP EFEEE
Sm
giﬂ At 31 December 2021 R=—B=—F+=A=+-AH
- #k
(%]
cg Fair value measurement using
HRAZATETE
Quoted
prices in Significant Significant
© Pyl active observable unobservable
3 B W, markets inputs inputs Total
054 EATRE  EXATITEE
E'g# SEBT IS RE BWABE WABE by
8_ 8_% (Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3)
5 §<ﬂ HK$'000 (5—18) (5=18) (5= BT
= Recurring fair value measurement for: LEENTERE -
Industrial properties - - 93,800 93,800 T
g At 30 June 2020 R=Z2=-TFXA=+H
g
%’Hﬂ Fair value measurement using
L KA ATE S
“Sm Quoted
5 prices in Significant Significant
§N||| active observable unobservable
markets inputs inputs Total
BEAAER BEANATBR
ERRTISRE WS LPN¢ el
_5 (Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3)
© HK$'000 (5—8) (=) (B5=8) BT T
EX
S« Recurring fair value measurement for: REERFEE -
S Industrial properties - - 204,500 204,500 TEME
NCpo
E During the period, there were no transfers of fair value measurements between Level 1 and Level 2 and A E-ERF_E BT EAFERE 2B RS ANE
X no transfers into or out of Level 3. HE=E 21BN -
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16 INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued)

Fair value hierarchy (continued)

As the investment properties are measured initially at cost less accumulated depreciation and provision for
any impairment in value, there is no movement of fair value measurements categorised within Level 3 of
the fair value hierarchy.

The fair value is estimated using a direct comparison approach. Under the direct comparison approach, fair
value is estimated by using the direct comparison method on the assumption of the sale of the property
interest with the benefit of vacant possession and by making reference to comparable sales transactions
as available in the market.

The valuation takes into account the characteristics of the investment properties, which include the
location, size, shape, view, floor level, year of completion and other factors collectively, to arrive at the unit
market price. The fair value measurement is based on the above properties highest and best use, which
does not differ from the actual use.

The key input is the unit market price. A significant increase/decrease in the market price will result in a
significant increase/decrease in the fair value of the investment properties.

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STA
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31 December 2021 —ZE-—F+-F=

16 REWE (K)

NS ELAT )
R A R AR BT E R B EAE 2 B EENSHE &
BATEABE=ERBENZATEI BLEED -

NHETDERERLEA G - RIBERLBOE - A FEDAER
HESE  BROFEGEAIRETHEL LS ERMTH 2 AILLBRIEE
X5 MmiEbE

ETHEREERREMEZFE  BREME - KX ik - BB
BE ERFOREMRE  USHEMLTHER AFEAER
EREMMERERAEEERNGSRRERESLE -
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17 LEASES
(a) Amounts recognised in the consolidated statement of financial position

17 H&
(a) REREMBRN RER ZNE

(i) Right-of-use assets () EAEELE
At 31 December At 30 June
2021 2020
R-B=—F RZEZTHF
HK$'000 +=A=+-—~H NA=TH BT
Buildings 112,261 164,730 EES
Office equipment - 2 WRERME
112,261 164,732
Additions to the right-of-use assets during the period were HK$215,880,000 (for the year ended Az ERREERNEB215880,000 (BHEZZT=F
30 June 2020: HK$100,411,000). FRA=THIEFE : H%100,411,0007T) °
Impairment assessment WA
As at 31 December 2021, management carried out a review of the recoverable amounts of its ROBE-—E+-A=+—0 TEEWEDE BEL
property, plant and equipment and right-of-use assets. Details of the impairment assessment on BEARGHAEEE 2 FIRBSREETER - AEERZ
the Group's property, plant and equipment and right-of-use assets as at 31 December 2021 are TZ—F+ZA=T—HZY%E BERREARSAE
disclosed in note 15. BE AN EFEERIM 158 -
(i) Lease liabilities () HEEE
At 31 December At 30 June
2021 2020
R-F=-—F N_TB-TF
HK$'000 +=A=+-—~H ~A=+H BT
Non-current 155,783 133,016 JERNEREL 7
Current 91,844 154,068 BIHEAER >
247,627 287,084

During the period ended 31 December 2021 and the year ended 30 June 2020, the Group

received COVID-19-related rent concessions from landlords for certain lease properties which
have been accounted for as negative variable lease payments and recognised in “Selling,
distribution and other operating expenses” (note 8) under the amendments to HKFRS 16 (note

2.1(0)).

ANNUAL REPORT 2020/21 4
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17 LEASES (continued)
(b) Amounts recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STA
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31 December 2021 —ZE-—F+-F=

17 & (&)
(b) REEEBERAMEZHEKNERBERA ZRE

Period ended Year ended
31 December 2021 30 June 2020
Bz HE
—E-—F T CTF
+=A=+-—H NA=+A
HK$'000 LEFARS IEFE BT
Interest on lease liabilities (note 7) 12,887 15,341 HEaE2HE (FizE7)
Depreciation of right-of-use assets (note 8) EREEE 2 ITE (H58)
— Buildings 157,870 187,538 —EF
— Office equipment 2 - —WMAERE
Expenses relating to short-term leases (note 8) 59,434 66,711 %2 BRFR SRR R 2 (P EE8)
Impairment of right-of-use assets (note 8) 94,472 102,306 FREEEZRE (KM:Es)
Gains on early termination of leases (note 8) (4,538) (38) REBKRIEHE 2 Wz (FiFEs)
Rent concessions related to COVID-19 pandemic SR AR R SR B AR e =R (FTFES)
(note 8) (24,447) (14,160)
Variable lease payments not included in the TREREEaETE 2 T2 HEENK (FFEs)
measurement of lease liabilities (note 8) 77,432 69,974

The total cash outflow for leases during the period ended 31 December 2021 was HK$234,761,000
(for the year ended 30 June 2020: HK$196,412,000) (note 33).

HE_ T —F+ A=+ B UM zHERSRHEEL
B#234,761,000 (BRE—E-_ZENA=THILFE : B
196,412,0007T) (Ff5E33) °
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CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e

mber 2021 —ZE=-—F+=-A=+—H

17 LEASES (continued)

(0

(d)

(e)

The Group's leasing activities and how these are accounted for

As a lessee

The Group leases various buildings and office equipment. Rental contracts are typically made for fixed
periods of 1 to 15 years, but may have extension and termination options as described in (d) below.

Lease terms are negotiated on an individual basis and contain a wide range of different terms and
conditions.

Extension and termination options

Extension and termination options are included in a number of property leases across the Group.
These terms are used to maximise operational flexibility in terms of managing contracts. The majority
of extension and termination options held are exercisable only by the Group and not by the respective
lessor.

Variable lease payments

The Group leased a number of the retail stores which contain variable lease payment terms that are
based on the Group’s turnover generated from the retail stores. There are also minimum annual
base rental arrangements for these leases. The amounts of the short-term and low-value leases
and variable lease payments recognised in profit or loss for the current period for these leases are
HK$59,434,000 and HK$77,432,000, respectively (for the year ended 30 June 2020: HK$66,711,000
and HK$69,974,000, respectively) (note 8).

ANNUAL REPORT 2020/21 4

17 EE (#)

(c)

(d)

(e)

AEEZHETBRASHER

TE/EATENA

AEEHEZEBTERAERE -HESH—RABI1EIS
FREEHR - AT AR L FHERERE (R TX0) °

HERFBLIHE - BESTETRMRRK G

ERNARILEERE

AEFBETHERERSLERIRIDRERE - ZFERNEA
BMERESNEENRIEELTERK - FIRFHARDTERER
RIDEEFREVHAKETE  MATHEARNHBEAITE -

E#EENR

AEEHEAZHATEER  HUSZRENTIERBERERN
TESHMELECEEEMET - %SHENEREFEEAH
S NAHMZERENBEER R EEAETE
N AT ST & 5B D Rl A E#59,434,0007T N #577,432,007T
(2T =FFA=THILEFE: 55 A#5%66,711,0007T
K8 169,974,0007T) (H3E8) -
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31 December 2021 ZZE = —F+= F =+~

18 TRADEMARK 18 BE
HK$'000 BEFT =
At 1 July 2019 and 2020 R-B-hER-EB-EBF+tA—A *s
Cost 1,164 R AE g];g
Accumulated impairment = ZFHRE e
o]
=
Net book amount 1,164 REFE
Period ended 31 December 2021 BE-_Z-_—F+-A=+—HLHE =
Opening net book amount 1,164 BRI AR R E P39
Impairment (note 8) (1,164) RE (Fi3Es) #g-‘_g‘
Q
BT
Closing net book amount - R EREFE e ER]
Eak ey
At 31 December 2021 R-B-—$+=-HA=+—H
Cost 1,164 B ANME
Accumulated impairment (1,164) 2ERE =
s
- 4t =
Net book amount - REFE ) =
T
Indefinite useful life EIREAEH LS
The Group dlassified the acquired “bossini” trademark in Indonesia as an intangible asset with an indefinite REBRBEB ST ENESF AL LE - 1HENE 2 [bossini | 1R llﬂilg

life in accordance with HKAS 38 Intangible Assets. This is supported by the fact that the “bossini” DR —IRRB R FRIMIVAE © 24550 9 ER [oossini | F1R B

—NANELFEEREMBERE LKA ZREmME - EEEENA

trademark has been a well-known and long-established fashion brand since 1987, its legal rights are AR 2 4 8k 2 kA 4 (R B4 - [t 2 45 ok A ZE A o AR JB K
capable of being renewed indefinitely at insignificant cost and therefore are perpetual in duration. Based EE YIS ﬁﬁ@ﬁ%?&ﬁ’f?\z,ﬂﬁﬁ@ﬂﬁ%ﬂiﬁﬁ%/@ Ny

on the financial performance of the Group, management expected that the carrying amount of the ANZEEURE °
trademark may not be recovered and fully impaired during the period.
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19 FINANCIAL ASSETS/LIABILITIES AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS

19

RESKREATEIRZEREE &E

At 31 December 2021 At 30 June 2020
R-ZFE--—F+=ZA=+t—H R-_ZB_FFXA=1H
Assets Liabilities Assets Liabilities
HK$'000 BE =R BE afE BT T
Forward currency contracts (note) = = 593 7 REIEESH (M)
Note: Bz -

For the year ended 30 June 2020, the carrying amounts of the forward currency contracts are the same as their fair
values. The above transactions involving financial assets/liabilities at fair value through profit or loss are conducted with
creditworthy financial institutions with credit ratings from A-1 to A-1+.

The Group entered into various forward currency contracts to manage its exchange rate exposures. These forward
currency contracts are not designated for hedge purposes and are measured at fair value through profit or loss.

Amounts recognised in profit or loss
During the period/year, the following losses/(gains) were recognised in profit or loss:

HEZTTFRA=FTHLFE 2HE¥aN s REEERSE 2 AFE
HE - B SRR RERRATEINRZ eREE BB 2R HEREET
RBAIEAI+Z EERIFSREELET -

AEETUZEEHERSONEREEXRR - AFERTERS NI IFE
EEE M AE  WRAFERBERRE-

RIBH R Z KR
REA/FR - RESERRBTIIEE (W)

Period ended Year ended
31 December 2021 30 June 2020
BZE #HZE
s —E T
+=A=+-—AH NA=+A
HK$'000 L-EAR IFFE BETT
Fair value losses/(gains), net on financial assets/liabilities REZEEAFEIEREZSREE
at fair value through profit or loss aEzATEFER(K)
— transactions not qualifying as hedges (note 8) 586 (792) - FEAEAEEPESHNR S (i)

Fair value measurements
For information about the methods and assumptions used in determining fair value see note 3.3.
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20 INVENTORIES 20 78
At 31 December At 30 June
2021 2020
R-B-—%F RZTZZTF
HK$'000 +=A=+—8 ANA=+A BETT
Raw materials 602 648 Bt
Finished goods 185,990 209,031 LUFK h
186,592 209,679
(a) Assigning costs to inventories ) BEREPBMERE

(b)

The costs of individual inventory are determined using first-in, first-out basis.

Amounts recognised in profit or loss
Cost of inventories sold recognised as an expense during the period ended 31 December 2021
amounted to HK$579,364,000 (for the year ended 30 June 2020: HK$546,920,000) (note 8).

Write-back of provision for inventories to net realisable value amounted to HK$11,548,000 for the
period ended 31 December 2021 (for the year ended 30 June 2020: provision for inventories of
HK$10,594,000). These were included in “Cost of sales” in the consolidated statement of profit or
loss and other comprehensive income during the period (note 8).

(b)

ERITFERARAEALLELEE -

RIBEBRAZRE

HE-_Z -+ A=+ A LHHEEREEAI2EHE
BN AER579,364,000T (BREZS_TFA=THIEF
€ : 7B #546,920,0007T) (FTEE8) ©

HE- T - —F+-_A=+—H 11K $EEREREEA]
IR FEREE11,548,000 (BIZE=E-TF SA=1THILF
B FEEEE10,594,0007T) - EEFIEE T ABALAEE
mREMEEmKEERZ [EERA] (HES) o
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31 December 2021 —T=—F+=-A=+—8H

21 DEBTORS
Other than cash and credit card sales, the Group normally grants credit periods of up to 60 days to its
trade customers. Each trade customer has a maximum credit limit, except for new trade customers,
where payment in advance is normally required. The Group seeks to maintain strict control over its
outstanding receivables. Overdue balances are reviewed regularly by senior management. In view of the
aforementioned and the fact that the Group’s trade customers relate to a large number of diversified
customers, there is no significant concentration of credit risk. The Group does not hold any collateral or
other credit enhancements over its trade debtor balances. Debtors are non-interest-bearing and stated at

net of loss allowance.

21 FBWERR

BREMERRHEEN  AKEE-—RBEATETEESITFPES
60KREEM - BMEZEP —RABNIRI  TEHEFPIRE
BREERE - AEERNHAREE 2 BERKESEREES -8
HRFHSRERBEEHELERN - RN EFRARAER 2B
HERFPHR/UBZ2ZRUEFPAR WASETESEETZE
EEg - NEEWREE S RUEFEHRTEEMEARmIED
ERRAER - BUSERFHRE - WMREBREFIIR -

At 31 December At 30 June
2021 2020
R=B=—%F MZTZTH
SHICY +=A=+-8 ~A=+8 BT
Debtors 25,646 48,441 FEUR R R
Less: Loss allowance (note 3.1(b)) (253) - SH B EE (MEE3.1(0)
25,393 48,441

An ageing analysis of debtors as at the end of the reporting period, based on the invoice date and net of

loss allowance, is as follows:

AT RIZEZAHNBBEREREURERNREHR RS
#r

At 31 December At 30 June

2021 2020

R-B=-—F P e

HK$'000 +=A=+-—H ~AZ=1+A BT T

Within 1 month 21,205 39,607 R—EARN
1 to 2 months 2,980 3,714 —ZMm{AA
2 to 3 months 147 565 WZE =& A
Over 3 months 1,061 4,555 BiE=1EA

25,393 48,441
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31 December 2021 —ZE-—F+-F=

21 DEBTORS (continued) 21 BYWRR (&)
The Group applies the HKFRS 9 simplified approach to measuring expected credit losses which uses a RNEERBAERBYHERERZRE AT 2R E  MAMERE w
lifetime expected loss allowance for all debtors. Wz = IRMERE BRI REREERE - e Z-
&2
Note 3.1(b) provides for details of the loss allowance. The creation and release of provision for impaired BRAEEREFBRNHES1(b) - ERERKERRZ & K E#D @g
receivables has been included in “Selling, distribution and other operating expenses” in the consolidated BECAAGEEaEEMEERERZHE  DHREMEE m%-
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income. Amounts charged to the loss allowance Fx] e BRHABEKEEINREERE  REERERNGR 2 RIE— 2
account are generally written off when there is no expectation of recovering additional cash. AR T DAMEH o
The carrying amounts of debtors approximated their fair values. The Group does not hold any collateral as FEURR R 2 BREME B F 2 N TEARE o ANE B &R A EREA =
security for its receivables. mERHEUWARIZ IR P2 _.g
o ke
22 PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 22 ANEE  REREEKEE 2;%_%
At 31 December At 30 June nm%g
2021 2020 még
RIBZ—F RZZ_TF o
HK$'000 +=A=+-—H NA=+H BETT
Prepayments 19,053 11,202 TER IR
Deposits 66,272 82,902 e Y
Other receivables 25,388 31,803 H {th pE W BR 18 m§
Less: Loss allowance (note 3.1(b)) (1,351) - W BEEE (EE3.1(b) ) =
#3
109,362 125,907 ofF 5
Less: Non-current deposits (33,811) (35,766) S FEENERIZ & "mg
Current portion 75,551 90,141 BIERER 15

o & 8
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22 PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (continued)
Deposits and other receivables mainly represent rental deposits and deposits with suppliers.

Deposits and other receivables are measured at amortised costs. During the period, apart from certain
deposits and other receivables that written off amounting to HK$132,000 (for the year ended 30 June
2020: HK$6,419,000), which were considered by the directors as irrecoverable due to the financial
difficulties experienced by these debtors, the Group assessed the loss allowance and the expected
credit loss rate under the application of HKFRS 9 as at 31 December 2021 and 30 June 2020. The detail
information about the credit risk and impairment analysis of deposits and other receivables can be found
in note 3.1(b).

The carrying amount of prepayments, deposits and other receivables approximate to their fair value.

22

BANARE - REREBERIRE (&)
e hEMRKFRATIZERS RS IHER2ZE

e REAMBWIRIBIIZEHEKNAGTE - BN - BRRZEEBAZ
AR E M E R AELRE 2B Tz RE AU AR IBM S
132,000 (B ZE-—ZE-_FFXA=1TAHILFE : #5%6,419,0007T)
G AEBR -_ZE-_—F+_A=+-—BR=-Z-_ZFFA=1+H
ERESMISERENFRTHERREREREESE - BH
Ze REMBUREZ EERRKMRED T2 FMER 28N T
3.1(b) °

BANFRIE e REMERREZ REERKE 2 X ERS

23 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AND PLEDGED BANK DEPOSITS 23 RERBRELSEEARFERBRITHEN
At 31 December At 30 June
2021 2020
RIBZ—F RZZTZTHF
HK$'000 +=A=+-AH ANA=Z+A BETT
Cash and bank balances 240,236 161,339 R KIRTTHESS
Non-pledged bank deposits with original maturity of NERREIHALINR=EA 2
less than three months when acquired 26,419 15,000 KRR TIE K
266,655 176,339
Pledged bank deposits with original maturity of NERREIHABB=@A 2
more than three months when acquired 1,959 56 BIEPRITIF R
Total and maximum exposure to credit risk 268,614 176,395 BETRBENEERR

ANNUAL REPORT 2020/21 4
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CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AND PLEDGED BANK DEPOSITS (continued)

At the end of the reporting period, the cash and cash equivalents of the Group denominated in Renminbi
amounted to HK$125,343,000 (as at 30 June 2020: HK$57,035,000). Renminbi is not freely convertible
into other currencies. However, under mainland China’s Foreign Exchange Control Regulations and
Administration of Settlement, Sale and Payment of Foreign Exchange Regulations, the Group is permitted
to exchange Renminbi for other currencies through banks authorised to conduct foreign exchange
business.

Cash at banks earns interest at floating rates based on daily bank deposit rates. Short term bank deposits
are made for varying periods of between 2 weeks and 3 months depending on the immediate cash
requirements of the Group, and earn interest at the respective short term bank deposit rates.

The pledged bank deposits of HK$1,959,000 (as at 30 June 2020: HK$56,000) were pledged to banks as
security for bank guarantees for overseas subsidiaries of the Group as at 31 December 2021.

The cash and bank balances, non-pledged bank deposits and pledged bank deposits are deposited with
creditworthy financial institutions with no recent history of default.

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STA

23

wa %

31 December 2021 —ZE = —F+ = A=+

RERRSLZEAEERBEFRTER (H)

RBEEHR  AREUARBEE2RERRSFERAR/EE
125,343,000 (R=Z=ZFF;XH=-+8 : B¥57,035,0007T) ° A
RETEB B BREMER - ERED BAEINEE HIERD R4
E-EERMEEERE  AREEEZBERELLEIERR
RITHARE LB DINE -

RITFERERIZBITERNREE 2F B EG R - MHRTER
HREANF22HE3@A - DRFIAEEZARREFEME © KR
MHRE 2 e R IT IR R A REL8 ©

RZZE-—F+-A=+—1H ' BEBRITFHEE1,959,0007T
(R—ZE-ZFXA=1+H8 : B%56,0007T) 2RI FRITIEARE
EEINKT B AR S IRITIER ZIEA -

RAe MRTHES  BERROTERREERRTERS FRNEH
I E KSR AR 2 SRS

24 ASSETS CLASSIFIED AS HELD FOR SALE 28 PEABEHEZEE
At 31 December At 30 June
2021 2020
RIBZ—F RZZZTF
HK$'000 +=B=+—8 ~A=1+AH BT
Assets classified as held for sale DEAFIEHEECEE
— Investment properties 9,437 - — REWE

On 30 December 2021, a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company (the “Vendor”) and purchaser entered
into the provisional agreements for the sale and purchase of the properties at the aggregate consideration
of HK$184,729,500. Pursuant to the terms of the provisional agreements, the Vendor and the purchaser
shall enter into the formal agreements on or before 13 January 2022. The disposal is completed on 15
March 2022 which details of the event after the reporting period are set out in note 37.

RZTE-_—F+-A=1+RH ARR2EMBRAR([EHF])EEH
IR ENEEZEYE  BREAB184,729,5007T ° BRI
B E2IGs BSHREFEN T - —F— A+ =A%
AR RE - ERLEERS-_—F=-A+HARK  REHES
B2 FEIBH RN 37 »
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25 TRADE CREDITORS, OTHER PAYABLES AND ACCRUALS 25 BMNRA > HEANRERERE
2 At 31 December At 30 June
2 & 2021 2020
e R-B=—% R=T-TF
ﬁﬁ HK$°000 t=A=+—~ RNA=tH BETT
4}
S Trade creditors 83,144 16,682 FESERFR
= Other payables 53,753 16,674 E b et F008
Accruals 75,896 88,005 fEETERTE
212,793 121,361
T o Less: Non-current portion (2,469) (2,675) R FERNERER (D
SEm
%%ﬁ Current portion 210,324 118,686 BIHEAER D
Sc
o O
o oK An ageing analysis of trade creditors as at the end of the reporting period, based on the invoice date, is as T RZREZ B EANRFNREAR BRI
= 2d follows:
At 31 December At 30 June
2021 2020
z R-B=—4F R-E-TF
gm HK$'000 +=A=+-8 ~A=+A BT
T Within 1 month 33,874 3,319 R—EARN
e 1 to 2 months 29,847 10,715 —=mEA
£ b 2 to 3 months 18,875 1,314 ME=1EA
%ﬂlll Over 3 months 548 1,334 HB={EA
oc
83,144 16,682
é The trade creditors are non-interest-bearing and are normally settled on terms of 30 to 60 days. AR RR B R —RN30KRECORAXA °
©
E?\' =+ =+ ) P R NN 4
Efﬂﬂﬁ( The carrying amounts of trade creditors, other payables and accruals approximate to their fair values. FERTARER - ELtb FE(TF0R R AT AR 2 SREE R S 2 A FEMES -
=
— &R +) > == _ — ~h b
Tgi The other payables are non-interest-bearing and have an average term of 1 month, except for other ﬁ\m%ﬁff\gﬁﬁ% ;fﬁﬁft\—g—_i"t—ﬁ:__’—ia _%ﬁf_\%
c™ payables of HK$2,469,000 (as at 30 June 2020: HK$2,675,000) as at 31 December 2021, which are not 1¢@ %EZE@@@ﬁAI§}§%2,469,OOOI (W—g—gif\ﬂ =t
£ payable within 1 year. B : /#8%2,675,0007T) 51 - Her 2 FHHRBIEA -

1 72 ANNUAL REPORT 2020/21 4



NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STA
n'/_\é/ﬁ\ztﬁ%

31 December 2021 —ZE=—F+ - A=~

26 CONTRACT LIABILITIES 26 EHEE
At 31 December At 30 June w
2021 2020 e 5
RoB=—% R-T-TF %0
HK$'000 +=A=+—8 NA=+A BETT a2
- ®
Distribution of garments - advances received from customers 3,233 2,973 KI5 — AW R P oE i %‘
Retailing of garments - customer loyalty programme 231 611 RKRZEE — B A 2R 2 s
Total contract liabilities 3,464 3,584 BELVEE
=0
Notes: BisE F">$ 9
88
(a) Contract liabilities include short-term advances received to deliver garment products and the customer loyalty @ AHNEEEEAXNKKERWIZEHERFIEREF B ZEET #gi
programme. EI mgg
o
(b) The Group selected to choose a practical expedient and omit disclosure of remaining performance obligations as b) AEEREAEREBAOZERA—EHNT  WREBHRAATER | L5 o
all related contracts have a duration of one year or less. E W EABBER T 2 BLAOEE -
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CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

INTEREST-BEARING BANK BORROWINGS 27 GHERITER
At 31 December 2021 At 30 June 2020
RZBZ-F+ZA=+-H RZZZZ4RA=TH
Effective Effective
interest interest
rate (%) Maturity HK$'000 rate (%) Maturity HK$'000
BBRF=(%) EHA BRI EEFIE(%) 38R BETT
Current B
Trust receipt loans - N/A N/A - 2.63%-5.00% Within 9,721 EEE R — 2R
unsecured TEA TER 1 year or on
demand
—FRREREX
Bank loans - unsecured N/A N/A - 154%-3.15% Within 50,000 RITER-BAR
TER TER 1 year or on
demand
—FERREREX
- 59,721
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31 December 2021 ZZE = —F+= F =+~

T

27 INTEREST-BEARING BANK BORROWINGS (continued) 27 FHEBITER (&)
At 31 December At 30 June g
2021 2020 2.
R-B=—% et ek Lo %0
HK$'000 +=A=+—-8 NA=+A BETT a2
®
Analysed into: DITET M%.
Bank loans repayable: ERIRITER : s
Within one year or on demand - 59,721 —FERNSITEK
Notes: MisE -
-0
- oo
All the bank and trust receipt loans bear interest at floating interest rates based on Hong Kong Interbank Offered Rate. FTBERITREAKREEZFRESBSRITREREL I XS - 5 -'8"
o
2=
The Company’s ultimate holding company has guaranteed the above bank loans up to HK$426,376,000 as at 30 June RZZBZTFAA=TH  ARRRKERARIE A ERITERRERS m»%%
2020. 75 #426,376,000TCHE 1R ° mw= s
The borrowings are in Hong Kong dollar. BRABMEEE - -
Banking facilities RITEE
As at 31 December 2021, the Group had total banking facilities of approximately HK$205,890,000 (as at RZZE-_—F+-_A=1+—8 AEENRTEELBENABE =
30 June 2020: HK$455,628,000), which were supported by corporate guarantees given by the Company. 205,890,0007C (M=ZZE=_ZF ;XA =+H : #¥455,628,0007T) * ::E_
These facilities were utilised to the extent of HK$12,752,000 (as at 30 June 2020: HK$87,230,000) as at AARARENRATERIEAYE RE-_—F+_A=+—H 1109"
31 December 2021. EBAZEEEAES12752,000 (R=B-FFAA=+A: 05
75 #87,230,0007T) ° DH%
(a1
o

o & 8
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28 DEFERRED INCOME TAX

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

28 EEFTBH

The analysis of deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities is as follows: REFIAEEMEEREREZ AT
At 31 December At 30 June
2021 2020
R=-B=_—%F RZEZTHF
HK$'000 +=A=+—H NA=+A BETT
Deferred tax assets: BRIETIEEE ¢
— To be recovered after more than 12 months 311 386 —- BRIBA 128 A &4
Deferred tax liabilities: R IBEE
— To be settled after more than 12 months (1,254) (773) - BARBE 1218 B 1B ER
Deferred tax liabilities, net (943) (387) ELERIBEE © (B
The gross movement on the deferred income tax is as follows: EIEFTER 2 BB
HK$'000 BHTT
At 1 July 2019 9,525 R=Z—-NFtA—H
Charged to profit or loss (note 11) (9,912) REZEHEG (MsE11)
At 30 June 2020 (387) R-ZB-BFA=1H
Charged to profit or loss (note 11) (556) miEz=ER (FsE11)
At 31 December 2021 (943) R-ZB--F+ZA=+—H
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31 December 2021 ZZE = —F+= F =+~

28 DEFERRED INCOME TAX (continued) 28 EIEFREH (&)
The movement in deferred tax assets and liabilities during the period, without taking into consideration the HNIELEFRBEEERAR (WE T AR TG AERER 2K @
offsetting of balances within the same tax jurisdiction, is as follows: iH) ZEBWT : e Z-
Deferred tax assets EERBEEE o=
Decelerated tax = %-
depreciation Others Total s
HK$'000 R RTE Al st BT T
At 1 July 2019 5,257 5,731 10,988 R=-ZE—-hEtA—H
Charged to profit or loss (5,175) (5,427) (10,602) REENR -
g9
°
At 30 June 2020 82 304 386 R=-ZB=ZHXA=+H #g <
Charged to profit or loss (58) (17) (75) waXng m»%%
"8
At 31 December 2021 24 287 311 R-—=-——&5+=-A=+—AH HQ o
Deferred tax liabilities REBEAE
Revaluation of o
property m%
HK$/000 DB BT e
o
At 1July 2019 1,463 R=—B-RFtA—H =S
Credited to profit or loss (690) PN ﬁg
s
At 30 June 2020 773 R-B-EHFAA=TH =
Charged to profit or loss 481 R
At 31 December 2021 1,254 R-B-_—%+=-H=+—H
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31 December 2021 —T=—F+=-A=+—8H

28 DEFERRED INCOME TAX (continued)

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had estimated tax losses of HK$590,206,000 (as at
30 June 2020: HK$439,178,000) arising in Hong Kong that were available indefinitely for offsetting
against future taxable profits of the companies in which the losses arose. The Group had estimated
tax losses arising in Macau of HK$36,739,000 (as at 30 June 2020: HK$28,787,000) and in mainland
China of HK$258,721,000 (as at 30 June 2020: HK$168,293,000) that can be used to offset against
future taxable profits of the companies in which the losses arose for a maximum of 3 years and 5 years,
respectively. The Group had estimated tax losses arising in Singapore of HK$77,078,000 (as at 30 June
2020: HK$74,210,000) and in Malaysia of HK$5,400,000 (as at 30 June 2020: HK$5,226,000) that are
available indefinitely for offsetting against future taxable profits of the companies in which the losses arose.
The Group also had deductible temporary differences of approximately HK$5,038,000 (as at 30 June
2020: HK$751,000) and HK$7,478,000 (as at 30 June 2020: HK$7,189,000) in Singapore and Malaysia,
respectively, at the end of the reporting period. Deferred tax assets have not been recognised in respect of
these losses as in the opinion of the directors, it is uncertain whether sufficient future taxable profits will
be generated against which the tax losses can be utilised.

Pursuant to the PRC Corporate Income Tax Law, a 10% withholding tax is levied on dividends declared to
foreign investors from the foreign investment enterprises established in mainland China. The requirement
is effective from 1 January 2008 and applies to earnings after 31 December 2007. A lower withholding
tax rate may be applied if there is a tax treaty between mainland China and the jurisdiction of the foreign
investors. For the Group, the applicable rate is 10%. The Group is therefore liable for withholding taxes
on dividends distributed by those subsidiaries established in mainland China in respect of earnings
generated from 1 January 2008. As at 31 December 2021, no deferred income tax has been recognised
for withholding tax that would be payable on the unremitted earnings that is subject to withholding
tax of a subsidiary of the Group established in mainland China. In the opinion of the directors, it is not
probable that the subsidiaries in mainland China will distribute such earnings in the foreseeable future.
No temporary differences (as at 30 June 2020: Nil) were associated with an investment in the subsidiary in
mainland China for which a deferred tax liability has not been recognised at 31 December 2021.
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28 JEFEFTS B (&)

RMEEKR - AEBREBEE Z(EFHHIEEE R 5590,206,000
T(RZEZTFA=18 :48%439,178,0007t) * o] f& R A A
EREEEBBOAR AR ZERTET « REBFRM RPREX
BEEA 2 (G RIBEE S Bl A8 #36,739,000T (R T F X
A =-H : #&%28,787,0007T) & ##258,721,0007T (W=E ==&
FRAZ=1H : #%168,293,0007T) * FTEAMEIBA BEERHEA

AR EA AT RIEEIED B AB%77,078,000 (RZZE T F
NAZ=1+H :78%74,210,0007T) K& E¥ES5,400,000C (RZZE=ZZF
NAZ=1H : B#5,226,0007T) ¢ AJERHAREIR B E £ BB QA
A&7 ERER G « RIWERR  NEBRIMNE RS RAERE
AT R B I 58 ) Bl 4078 65,038,000t (R—E-TF A=+
B4 : B#751,0007T) K& 8#7,478,000t (R - ZE-TFE A=+
H : ##7,189,0007T) - EERA r AN KRBT HEEGES
EHERTE N AR ER S ATIEEE  BEHEEEYERZS
EIEHETTRERR -

RIBHBEBEMSEUE - NP BEIARERIZHINERE B EMINEIR
BETRBEABMO%EMY - BEREN_—"FTEN\F—HA—H
BAEN  WEARZZTELF+_A=T—"HBENREHN - ME5+PH
REEINE R EE M BEE R L RERY - BRI S sEm |
M- AAEEMES  BHAHER10% ° Bl - REBEARHE
RERINZEMNBARR -TTN\EFE—A—BERIO BT
BREMEMEAN R-E-_—F+-_A=+—0 AEERLRR
TREAREZMBARERTMAELE BN BNENHTE @ LK
EREAEEMSHIR - EER A - PEIRFEME QRN AR KR
IRBERBARMNZATRMELTIKR - KRB —F+-_A=+—H &
SEYE(R-_Z-ZFA=TH 8 RPREXERBRFKRE
IR AERRERAABEZARERIEEEE -
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29 ISSUED CAPITAL 29 EBITHRA
Shares g7 g
At 31 December At 30 June " g
2021 2020 S 8
R-B=—F i 2 o
HK$'000 +=A=+-~” NA=+H BT @2
Authorised: TEERR g
3,000,000,000 (as at 30 June 2020: 2,000,000,000) 3,000,000,000f% (R =ZZF-FFA=1+H :
ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each (note a) 300,000 200,000 2,000,000,0008%) &Rz EE S ¥0.1070 2 E @ A% (M 5ka)
-0
Issued and fully paid: BEIT MR o Q
2,465,750,091 (as at 30 June 2020: 1,641,333,394) 2,465,750,091f% (R=—Z=_ZFF/,NA=1+H : 1,641,333,394 #g-‘_o:‘
ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each 246,575 164,134 %) SR mESEK0 10T 2 T B m%%
"8
During the period, the movements in issued capital were as follows: ANz B BEITRAZEZFHINMT me e
Number Share
of shares Issued premium
in issue capital account Total =
DRAIROYE CBEARE  ROSEER @t s
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 LI
BETT  BETT BETR L=
At 1 July 2019, 30 June 2020 and R-E—AF+tA—B —E-TFEXA=1AR fﬁé
1 July 2020 1,641,333,394 164,134 29,020 193,154 —E-TF+A—H III|II§
Exercise of share options (note b) 2,500,000 249 603 852 1TERERRAE (BisEDb) &
Shares issued under rights issue (note c) 821,916,697 82,192 213,698 295,890 RIEHRR 37T 2 I (FisEc)
Transaction costs incurred in respect of PR EE 2 R HHLA
rights issue - - (1,859) (1,859)
At 31 December 2021 2,465,750,091 246,575 241,462 488,037 R-_Z-_—F+-_A=+—H
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CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e

ecember 2021 —E-——F+-A=+—H

ISSUED CAPITAL (continued)
Shares (continued)
Notes:

(@ On 4 March 2021, the Company passed an ordinary resolution to approve the authorised share capital of
the Company be increased from HK$200,000,000 divided into 2,000,000,000 shares of HK$0.10 each to
HK$300,000,000 divided into 3,000,000,000 shares by the creation of an additional 1,000,000,000 shares.

(b) For the period ended 31 December 2021, the subscription rights attaching to 2,500,000 share options were
exercised at the subscription price of HK$0.275 per share (note 30), resulting in the issue of 2,500,000 shares of
HK$0.10 each for a total cash consideration, before expenses, of HK$688,000, and the related share option reserve
of HK$164,000 was transferred to the share premium account upon the exercise of these share options.

(c) After the completion of the rights issue on 12 April 2021, the Company raised gross proceeds of HK$295,890,000
before expenses by issuing 821,916,697 rights shares at a price of HK$0.360 per rights share on the basis of one
(1) rights share for every two (2) then existing shares to the qualifying shareholders. The weighted average number
of ordinary shares in issue for the purpose of calculation of basic and diluted loss per share has been adjusted for
the bonus element of the rights issue.

Share options
Details of the Company's share option scheme and the share options issued under the scheme are included
in note 30 to the consolidated financial statements.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Company operates a share option scheme (the “Scheme”) for the purpose of motivating and providing
incentives and rewards to eligible participants who contribute to the success of the Group’s operations,
and to enable the Group to recruit and retain high-calibre employees and attract human resources that are
valuable to the Group.

Eligible participants of the Scheme include executive directors, non-executive directors (including
independent non-executive directors), and other full-time or part-time employees of the Company, and
its subsidiaries. The Scheme became effective on 12 November 2013 and, unless otherwise cancelled or
amended, will remain in force for 10 years from that date.
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29

30

B #®ITIRA (&)
R4 ()
i

(@ RZEZ—F=ZAWH ARFAEEAB—BLBIAZE  UitE
i% 3B 1% 5% 58 5M,000,000,0000% B 15 2 AR R 2 A E R A BB
200,000,0007T % A2,000,000,0000% & B B 4% ¥50. 1070 2 B (D 1 N &=
75 #300,000,0007T % 43,000,000,000% A% 15

(b) HEZZT=-—F+=F=+—HIHM - 2,500,00017 BEAEFEH 2 REE
EIRREETRABE0.275 T (Fi5E30) - B 3472,500,0000% &
REESB010T 2 RG » 8IR S R(E AE688,0007T (RaFFIX) -
Rz EERERETER - AR EREFEE S 164,000tE BB ERHD
SEEIRMA o

(0 RZZFEZ—FHA+-ATKHERE AAGIREERRREGHEM
QIR E IR B R HEE —(WIRE R AR K 2 E2E - R G REIRR DB
0.360 T 2 {B#&%%77821,916,697MF A& A% 15 + LA & 75%#5295,890,0007T
ZFTS IR (CRFTAX) - A EEREAREEBER I DBITY
B NAE B SR 2 AR EB D e AR -

B R RE
ANARIERRAERT B AR IR AT BB TR A 2 S IR E Y R AR A BT TS TR
RHFE30 ©

BREE

ARRRZBEETE ([ZaH8]) B EMELRBEANEEXE
EHBERZAER2EE  BOAEERBERISEERES XN
MEAREEBEEEZANER -

ZAEZ A ER2BALBEARARARARMBE AR ZHATE
£ FMTER (BREBIUIFNTES) REMEBAERER - &
AERZT-=F+— AT BER BRIEZFTEIAE AL AT
HiEF] > RAIBZRRFARMARTEF -



30 SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)

The maximum number of shares which may be issued upon exercise of all share options to be granted
under the Scheme and any other future share option schemes of the Company (excluding share options
forfeited in accordance with the terms of the Scheme or any other future share option schemes of the
Company) shall not exceed 10% of the total number of shares in issue on 12 November 2013, the date of
the annual general meeting that the Company sought the approval of the shareholders of the Company for
the adoption of the Scheme. The number of shares issuable under the Scheme was 162,077,939, which
represented 10% of the Company’s shares in issue at 12 November 2013. The maximum number of shares
issuable under share options to each participant in the Scheme within any 12-month period is limited to
1% of the total number of shares of the Company in issue at any time. Any further grant of share options
in excess of this limit is subject to shareholders’ approval in a general meeting with such participant and
his associates abstaining from voting.

Share options granted to a director, chief executive or substantial shareholder of the Company, or to any of
their respective associates, are subject to approval in advance by the independent non-executive directors
(excluding any independent non-executive director who is a grantee of the share options). In addition,
any share options granted to a substantial shareholder or an independent non-executive director of the
Company, or to any of their respective associates, in excess of 0.1% of the shares of the Company in issue
at any time or with an aggregate value (based on the closing price of the Company’s shares at the date
of grant) in excess of HK$5 million, within any 12-month period, are subject to shareholders’ approval in
advance in a general meeting.

The offer of a grant of share options may be accepted within 28 days from the date of offer, upon payment
of a nominal consideration of HK$1 in total by the grantee. The exercise period of the share options
granted is determinable by the directors, and commences after a certain vesting period and ends on a date
which is not later than 10 years from the date of grant of the share options. Share options granted during
the term of the Scheme and remain unexercised immediately prior to the end of the 10-year period of the
Scheme shall continue to be exercisable in accordance with their terms of grant within the exercise period
for which such options are granted, notwithstanding the expiry of the Scheme.

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STA

wa %

31 December 2021 —ZE = —F+ = A=+

30 ERAESHE (&)

BB ZAT & AR R R 2 b ERER 2 TR 2 ME R
PRIERITFERT TEITZBONSEEEE (TEEREZT 8 A
A BV S 2R E A B AR AT BLGROR W 2 BB AR AE) - TBHBBARA
AR _ZE—=F+— A+ =8 (BIARQRSKKEER EFNZTE
ZHRERFAEHE) 2B BITRHOBEZ10%  BiFZT 8] %
TZRMEE /162,077,939 - EARBIR=ZE—=F+—A+=
HEBITRND Z10% o RER12E A AR A - R I5 SRR maXaT
BB 2HMALTBITZRNESEE - UARRREAREEEITR
MBEZ1%AER - E—TERHBBRZ LR 2BRE  BFEBRER
BREREHE  FEABR  EEHRSEA T REBE A LTERIR

=15
IR ©

AARRES RRTBRABRTIBERRARESTE 2BEALE
HZBERE  AELEEBIINTES (TERERE REREAR
AZBIFERITESR) HE - i REMI12E A BRAARREE
BRIBIIFATEEARESAZHEALRE Z EFBERE
fir BB AR N = E ] i fE B B ATA9 0.1 % 3 A8 (E (IR H B iR A &)
BB ERNE) BEEEAET  MIARKRRERASELH
JfE ©

Rz BRET N E A HRA28RAEARAIN A HER 1T
SFHARERKER EREBRECTESRHESSER] X8
T RE RS R ERER L B RSt FAER o Rkt
MR R BR AT 8+ S IR JEm Al M R T(E 2 B iR - &
BT ECHR - DARBERL IR ELBRETENRAE
BT AT -
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30 SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)

The exercise price of the share options is determinable by the directors, but may not be less than the
highest of (i) the Stock Exchange closing price of the Company’s shares on the date of grant of the share
options; (ii) the average Stock Exchange closing price of the Company’s shares for the 5 trading days
immediately preceding the date of grant; and (iii) the nominal value of the Company’s shares.

Share options do not confer rights on the holders to dividends or to vote at shareholders” meetings.

On 14 May 2020, Viva China Holdings Limited (“Viva China”) entered into an agreement which
conditionally agreed to acquire 1,093,091,098 shares of the Company. The acquisition was completed in
July 2020. Following completion, Viva China owns approximately 66.6% of the entire issued share capital
of the Company and is required to make a mandatory unconditional cash offer for all the issued shares
of Bossini (other than those already owned or agreed to be acquired by Viva China and parties acting
in concert with it) and an offer to cancel all outstanding share options of the Company (collectively, the
“Offers”). The Offers were closed and 71,580,000 share options of the Scheme were cancelled on 14
August 2020.
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30 BBARRESH & (&)

BREZITEBERESFER  TESERUATZESE  (RER
BRI AR B RO NE R Z W E : (iNERR LR HEI5E
R 5 BARRB BRI R 2 FHWTHE » KA R B EE -

R-ZZF-_ZFRA+THA - EAPEZERERRA ([FELFE])ET
M - B EM R BB AR F]1,093,091,098 % i fn - B BAUCEE
ERZZTFLATK - REME  EAPREEARARRZEE
BITRANH66.6% @ WA EMEZ 2B HTRN GELTE R
H—HITHATCHALRES TUEE RN 12 o8 51 E 5T
REEH > REEARAMERRTEZBREZ 2D (BB %E
2H]) - ZFEHKCH L RZETEIZ 71,580,000 D EEREDR
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30 SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)

The following share options were outstanding under the Scheme during the period/year:

Period ended 31 December 2021
BE-Z-—F
+T=ZB=+—HLHHE

Year ended 30 June 2020
HE—Z-ZTF

RA=+HBILEFE

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STA
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31 December 2021 —ZE-—F+-F=

30 MR AESHE ()
HIR, AR BT M ARITEZ AT

Weighted Number Weighted Number
average of share average of share
exercise price options exercise price options
INEFIITEE BREKE ETHITRE il g
HKS$ per share ‘000 HK$ per share ‘000
BREMYT F4 BB T3
At beginning of period/year 0.573 81,840 0.558 108,648 RERR, F )
Granted during the period/year 0.568 124,818 0.231 1,660 AR, ERFRE
Forfeited during the period/year 0.455 (23,685) 0.497 (28,468) HARE B UL
Cancelled during the period/year 0.598 (71,580) - - AR, F N
Exercised during the period/year 0.275 (2,500) - - BN, EATTE
At end of period/year 0.583 108,893 0.573 81,840 RERER F R

The share price at the date of exercise of share options exercised during the period ended 31 December

2021 was HK$0.390 per share.

HE_Z-_—F+-_A=+—H1LH™  BTEBRERTTER
Z BB AT E0.390TT °
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30 SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

30 R fESHE ()
FARRES AR 19 5K 17 G I AR 2 1T (2 (B AT R BA AN T

2 The exercise prices and exercise periods of the share options outstanding as at the end of the reporting
S @ period are as follows:
S@
i At 31 December 2021 W-—B-——#+=-A=+-8
S
wv
cg Number of share options Exercise Adjusted Exercise period
price* exercise price
BREHE THEE* RARTEE 1T
HK$ per share HK$ per share
— SRARE T FRARE T
'géﬂd (note a)
3;1‘7‘“ (Kt ta)
® 2y 25,610,000 0.460 0.456 1 January 2022 to 31 December 2026 —E-—F—A—RAE-T-AF+=-A=+—H
g_g.%m% 25,616,000 0.460 0.456 1 January 2023 to 31 December 2026 TR —f—HE-ZE-_RFEt+-A=+—H
8 oy 25,666,659 0.460 0.456 1 January 2024 to 31 December 2026 —ENE—HA—BE-_ZE-_RE+-_A=+—H
666,000 0.510 N/AT 35 A 1 January 2022 to 31 December 2026 —TE-F—A—HREZE-_F+-A=+—H
666,000 0.510 N/AT 3 A 1 January 2023 to 31 December 2026 CE-=#—-F-BE-_Z-_"Ft+-_HA=+—8
B 668,000 0.510 N/AZT 3 A 1 January 2024 to 31 December 2026 —E-NE-A-RBE-Z-_"Et+-_A=+—8
£ 3,332,000 0.620 N/AT i@ A 8 August 2022 to 7 August 2027 - _FNANBEZZE-+FNA+H
%ﬂﬂ 3,334,000 0.620 N/AZ 38 8 August 2023 to 7 August 2027 —E-_=FN\ANBE-_Z-_tFNA+LtH
gﬁ 3,334,000 0.620 N/AZ 38 8 August 2024 to 7 August 2027 ZE-OMFEFNANBEZE-EFNAtA
“am 6,660,000 1.060 N/AT3EA 16 November 2022 to 15 November 2027 —E-—F+—A+NAEZE-_+F+—A+FHH
§J!IIII 6,670,000 1.060 N/AT3E A 16 November 2023 to 15 November 2027 —E-=F+—A+AABE-E-_+F+—AF+HH
& 6,670,000 1.060 N/AT3EFA 16 November 2024 to 15 November 2027 —EoNFE+—A+AHE-_Z-_+F+—A+AAH
108,892,659
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30 SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)

The exercise prices and exercise periods of the share options outstanding as at the end of the reporting

period are as follows: (continued)

At 30 June 2020

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STA

BT E (&)

RBERARBHARITEBREZITEERTEROT : (8)

R-ZE-ZEFXA=1+H

Number of share options Exercise price* Exercise period
BRERE TEE> 7
HK$ per share
FRBET

2,182,000 0.503 (note b(i)) (Pt 3EDBG))

4,592,000 0.780 12 October 2011 to 11 October 2020 —E——H+A+=-RE-_ZE=
648,000 0.780 12 October 2012 to 11 October 2020 —E——Ft+At+-BE-_ZE-_ZTF+HA+—H

7,320,000 0.780 12 October 2013 to 11 October 2020 2=t A+-_HAE_ZE_ZTF+A+—H

10,400,000 0.780 12 October 2015 to 11 October 2020 —E-—RAFt+tATZRAE_ZE_TF+A+—H

82,000 0.922 (note b(ii)) (Bft FEb(i))
54,000 0.880 (note biii) (Ff¥ FEb(Gii))

16,624,000 0.570 (note c(i)) (B &)
124,000 0.570 (note c(ii)) (D))
398,000 0.740 (note c(iii)) (B 3 c(iii))

30,860,000 0.495 4 October 2019 to 3 October 2026 —E-NFTANBE-_Z-_~FT+H=H
620,000 0.460 28 November 2019 to 31 May 2027 —E-AE+—AZ+NRZE t&RA=+—8
816,000 0.455 4 October 2019 to 2 October 2027 —E-NFt+ANBE-_Z-_t+F+HA_-H
620,000 0.352 26 December 2020 to 2 July 2028 —E-TFE+ A+ RBE NF+tHA—H

2,500,000 0.275 19 June 2021 to 1 January 2029 B —F%XA+NB=E NE—H—H

2,500,000 0.275 9 July 2021 to 1 January 2029 —E-—H+ANBEE-_hE—A—H
880,000 0.231 10 December 2021 to 1 July 2029 —E-—%+-_At+AH= NE+tA—H
620,000 0.285 1 March 2022 to 28 February 2029 —E-—&#=R—HAEZ=-E-hE=-A=+N\H

81,840,000

*  The exercise price of the share options is subject to adjustment in the case of rights or bonus issues, or other similar

changes in the Company'’s share capital.

* BREZITEERBRMRKEITAR AR RRANZ EmBELIE

B)ifn T IATHEE o

BOSSINI INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED Z¥isEEFRERABR DA
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30 SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued) 30 BERRAESHE (&)

= Notes: M sE

.2

Eg (@) The exercise price was adjusted after completion of rights issue of the Company on 12 April 2021. @@ MTEER-FTZ—FWA+-ARAAHKRTREELAR -

(%]

éﬁ (b) Vesting of the share options is conditional, subject to the individual performance of respective grantees and the b) BRENEBIENEARANKRARAEERZE_ZT-—=FA=+

B E achievement of 3-year corporate goals for the 3-year performance period ended 30 June 2013. HIE=FHBEN=F£BEE T2 E&HRR -

[

The exercise periods of share options are as follows: BRI T T
(i)  From the next business day of publication of the announcement of the audited consolidated results of the () HHEAEEBEZE_Z—=—F A=-THLEFEZLEZGAE

= O Group for the year ended 30 June 2013 to 4 July 2020. BAMEZENEEBRRTE 22 _TF+AWA -
SO
V.=
ox
331‘:{ (i)  From the next business day of publication of the announcement of the audited consolidated results of the (i) BHEAEEHZE T =F AZTHLEFEZEEREEE
};'g# Group for the year ended 30 June 2013 to 2 January 2021. BRAMEBEEENEXARBTE E2F-—F—HA=R-
—
[o)®]
g-3<.._.| (iii)  From the next business day of publication of the announcement of the audited consolidated results of the (i) AHEAEEEEZE T —=—F XA=-THIEFEZLERRE?
o= Group for the year ended 30 June 2013 to 3 July 2021. BAMEZRENEERRRTE 22—+t A=H-

=4
=)

g
s
=
bS]
)
<
S
ks
T

e S i
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30 SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)

Notes: (continued)

(c) Vesting of the share options is conditional, subject to the individual performance of respective grantees and the
achievement of 3-year corporate goals for the 3-year performance period ended 30 June 2016.

The exercise periods of share options are as follows:
@iy  From 1 November 2016 to 1 December 2023.
(i)  From 1 November 2016 to 1 January 2024.

(iii)  From 1 November 2016 to 1 July 2025.

On 5 January 2021, the Company granted share options of 90,000,000 (adjusted to 90,818,101 after the
completion of rights issue on 12 April 2021), to its employees. The fair value of the share options granted
during the period was HK$10,151,000 (HK$0.11 each), of which the Group recognised a share option
expense of HK$7,069,000 in the current period.

On 14 May 2021, the Company granted share options of 4,000,000, to its employees. The fair value of the
share options granted during the period was HK$633,000 (HK$0.16 each), of which the Group recognised
a share option expense of HK$300,000 in the current period.

On 23 August 2021, the Company granted share options of 10,000,000, to its employees. The fair value
of the share options granted during the period was HK$2,073,000 (HK$0.21 each), of which the Group
recognised a share option expense of HK$446,000 in the current period.

On 16 November 2021, the Company granted share options of 20,000,000, to its employees. The fair
value of the share options granted during the period was HK$7,592,000 (HK$0.38 each), of which the
Group recognised a share option expense of HK$548,000 in the current period.

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STA

nV_\ é /E\j- i%

31 December 2021 —ZE-—F+-F=

30 BBARRESH & (&)

BaE (&)

© BERENEBIENARANKREAKZEBEEZ-_T-RFA=T
FLE=HRN=FKE B R ZHEHRR -

BRBTERMAT -

() BZE—A"Ft+—A-BRE-ZTZ_=F+-A—HB-
iy AZZE—A"Ft+—A—BRERE-_Z-_WF—HF—H-
(i) A-E—REF+-—A—HEBE-_T-AFLA—H-

RZZTZ—F—AA B AARAEES & T90,000,00017 i Bk

NZEZ—F0 A+ = BHRTTHREFAER90,818,1010 BB AHE) -
HANE R B 2 AT EAE10,151,0005T (FIE#0.117T)
BN B AR EA R B R S AR B S 5 6 7,069,0007T ©

—

R-ZE-_—FRA+WA AR MEES R H4,000,00017 i %
- BIAE B ERE 2 QT EAS¥633,0007T (&K% %0.16
JT) B AN B A AN B B T RR B AR A S 6300,0007T ©

RZE-_—FNA-+=H "  AAaRHEE 10,000,000 8
AEiE - BINE B HBERR I 2 A F{E A5 #2,073,0007T (B ERE0.21
J0) & RN B PR 7N B R B R R B AR 4 A S 8 5 446,0007T ©

RZZE=Z—F+—AF+/"8 ' A2 FMEEE S H20,000,00017 &

AHE - HANE IR HBERRHE 2 A B A 7E 17,592,000 (BB #0.38
JO) B AN B A AN B ] B R R B AR RE A S B #5548,0007T ©

BOSSINI INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED Z¥isEEFRERABR DA
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31 December 2021 —T=—F+=-A=+—8H

30 SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)
The fair value of equity-settled share options granted during the period was estimated as at the date of
grant, using a binomial model, taking into account the terms and conditions upon which the options were
granted. The following table lists the inputs to the model used:

30 BRESE (&)

HAME L 2 S EEBRE 2 A FERR L B AR XA
“HEAMEEEEN  BEEAR D ERE 2GR R GHRME
8o TREHARARA ZFAIRR

Period ended Year ended
31 December 2021 30 June 2020
BZE HE
—E-—F —ETHF
+=A=+-A ~A=+8
LEEARS IEFE
Weighted average dividend yield (%) 6.25 7.33 INHE 15 B B (%)
Weighted average expected volatility (%) 61.90 41.28 ANAEE S 15 T8 BR R Eh(%)
Weighted average historical volatility (%) 61.90 41.28 DN FE 2O B(%)
Weighted average risk-free interest rate (%) 0.63 1.68 DN T2 ¥ 4 B ) 22 (%)
Expected life of share options (year) 6 10 BT 8 ()
Weighted average share price (HK$ per share) 0.496 0.231 miEF I IRE (BB TT)

The expected life of the share options is based on the historical data over the past 10 years and is
not necessarily indicative of the exercise patterns that may occur. The expected volatility reflects the
assumption that the historical volatility is indicative of future trends, which may also not necessarily be the
actual outcome.

No other feature of the share options granted was incorporated into the measurement of fair value.

At the end of the reporting period, the Company had 108,892,659 share options outstanding under the
Scheme, which represented approximately 4.42% of the Company’s shares in issue as at that date. The
exercise in full of the remaining share options would, under the present capital structure of the Company,
result in the issue of 108,892,659 additional ordinary shares of the Company and additional share capital
of approximately HK$10,889,300.

ANNUAL REPORT 2020/21 4

BREZEFHIRBBETFZELBURERE - RUBERBRA
BEHIR 2 BRI TRAE R - TEEDR B T IRARE 2R B) 5 HE VR R 2R
2 BURMBEBRERAMMR -

REFE R ER I & MR B RAE 2 M

ok

RIREHR - AR BIEZAT ST H108,892,659175 14 AR 1716 7 BB A%
o AERZBARBE BTG 894.42% © AR FIR ARG
BAREITHE M ARITE 2 B - 8B A F1317108,892,659/8 58
HNEBARAR (5 - AR AN IE J1 49 %5 10,889,3007T ¢



30 SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)
Subsequent to the end of the reporting period, on 5 January 2022, 2,000,000 share options granted to a

31

director on 5 January 2021 were exercised with an exercise price of HK$0.456 per share and an exercise BT —HBEE22,000,000BERECETE - TEEAESRE

period from 1 January 2022 to 31 December 2026. #0.45670 (TR -_ZE-_—_F-A-—HBRE_Z_R"F+=
B=+—H1k-

On 9 February 2022, 8,072,720 and 2,000,000 share options granted to an employee on 5 January 2021 NRZEBE-__F-_AhB 2R =_—F—AHH (R==

(adjusted after rights issue on 12 April 2021) and 14 May 2021, respectively, were lapsed with exercise
prices of HK$0.456 per share and HK$0.510 per share, respectively, and exercise periods from 1 January

2022 to 31 December 2026.

SUBSIDIARIES

The following is a list of the principal subsidiaries at period end:

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STA

,?L%é\,ﬁ\ﬁ%

31 December 2021 —ZE = —F+ = A=+

30 BRESE (&)

“—FNA+—_BHEEEARE) KT ——
—ZEE 28,072,720173 BB A% #E K2 2,000,00017 BERRAEE 3 » 17
FED B ATIE0.456 T R EREHE0.510T @ TEHH —-F

RWEKRE N2 -_—F—AAH R —F—AAH

——HF—A—BEE_E-_F+-_A= + Bk e

31 B A H
AT AREPRTENRBARZZE :

FRATHART

Place of Particulars of Interest held Interest held

incorporation and Principal activities and issued/registered at 31 December at 30 June

Name kind of legal entity place of operation share capital 2021 2020

R-B=-—F R-B-BF

S 8T +=A=+-—8H AA=+A

758 MR EAERER FEXEBREEME RAFE FEST 5 FEST 5

Active Link Limited” (note a) Hong Kong, limited company Retailing and distribution of garments HK$5,000,000 100% 100%

SWEBBRAR (Mita) B8 - BRQA in Hong Kong ~ j&%5,000,0007T

REEXKETE RS H

LRI EERERBR A F)" (note b) Mainland China, limited Retailing and distribution of garments RMB 1,000,000 100% N/A

(FfF5ED) liability company in mainland China A R#1,000,0007T e
PEIREE - BREEAR R B AR EE &7 i

Bossini Clothing Limited* Hong Kong, limited company Retailing and distribution of garments HK$2 100% 100%

B8 - BRQA]

in Hong Kong
REBRRKEERDH

BT

BOSSINI INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED Z¥isEEFRERABR DA

)&
&
-
5

=
>
QL
=)
.
=)
=
=+
[e]
=
3
Q
=
o
=)

189



=
=
4=
©
IS
=
(e]
L
=
.©
(4
=
<
=
[N

190

AR M

31 December 2021 —T=—F+=-A=+—8H

31 SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

31 MR (&)

Place of Particulars of Interest held Interest held
incorporation and Principal activities and issued/registered at 31 December at 30 June
Name kind of legal entity place of operation share capital 2021 2020
R-BZ—F R-BZ2F
BRAT +=ZA=+—H ~A=+H
=L R B R E AN B RSB TEEBREEDE BRAFHE FrisfEs PRtz
Bossini Distribution Limited* Hong Kong, limited company Retailing and distribution of garments HK$1 100% 100%
ERED HER AR BB - BRAR] in Hong Kong B TT
REBRREE M7 H
Bossini Enterprises Limited* Hong Kong, limited company Retailing and distribution of garments HK$2 100% 100%
ERELEAERAR! EE  ARARA in Hong Kong B2
REERKRETE RS H
Bossini Garment Limited* Hong Kong, limited company Distribution of garments in Hong Kong HK$2 100% 100%
B ARAT] MEBKIK D ERE27T
Bossini Idea Limited* Hong Kong, limited company Dormant in Hong Kong HK$1 100% 100%
8 BRAT] MNEBEEER BT
Bossini Investment Limited* British Virgin Islands, Investment holding US$11,928 100% 100%
limited company in British Virgin Islands 11,9283 7T
REEBRHS  GRAA REBER RS RE TR
Bossini Onmay International Limited* Hong Kong, limited company Retailing and distribution of garments HK$2 100% 100%
EREE FXBIRAER AR B ARAT] in Hong Kong E¥E27T
REBKRREE M7 #H
Bossini Retail Limited* Hong Kong, limited company Retailing and distribution of garments HK$2 100% 100%
8 - BRQF] in Hong Kong B2
REBKUREE RS H

ANNUAL REPORT 2020/21 4



31 SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STA
llV_\éﬂjﬁ%

31 December 2021 —ZE-—F+-F=

31 ME LR (&)

Place of Particulars of Interest held Interest held w
incorporation and Principal activities and issued/registered at 31 December at 30 June " 5
Name kind of legal entity place of operation share capital 2021 2020 % 3
RoB=—% R-g=ms |0 %
B RAT +=A=+-8 AB=tH mg
=18 R EAERER FEERREEHI RAEE FRisRER FifsfEss g'
Bright Star Fashion Limited* Macau, limited company Retailing and distribution of garments MOP$25,000 100% 100%
REREBR A" BT - BRAA] in Macau 25,0008 F9 7T
PRFIRKREE K5 H
o o o e B3O
Burling Limited* British Virgin Islands, limited Licensing of trademarks Us$100 100% 100% 50
BMER A A" company in British Virgin Islands 100 7T #g g
EEHERRAHE ARAA REBER RS BRI "9§§
M=o
=M =
EMNTmERmEEEERA T Mainland China, limited Retailing and distribution of garments RMB 1,010,000 100% 100% Moo

EMNEFEEZBRAE

J & R Bossini Fashion Pte. Ltd.*

J & R Bossini Holdings Limited*
BREEEARAA)!

liability company

PEIAEE - AREERF]

Mainland China, limited
liability company

PEIRRE - BREEAA
Singapore, limited company

o - BRAT]

Hong Kong, limited company

&5 - BRQF]

in mainland China A E#¥1,010,0007T
PP RERKEE XD H

o)
@D
Retailing and distribution of garments RMB 148,000,000 100% 100% IIN'§
in mainland China AR ﬂ&
RABEAERKREE K5 H 148,000,0007C s
o
ofF =
Retailing and distribution of garments S$G$2,000,000 100% 100% ||||||§
in Singapore 2,000,000 AT -
RETINE AR T E M5 88
Investment holding in Hong Kong HK$2 100% 100%
REBIREER B2

o & 8

uoljew.oul [elDUBUI4
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31 SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

31 B A F

(%)

Place of Particulars of Interest held Interest held
incorporation and Principal activities and issued/registered at 31 December at 30 June
Name kind of legal entity place of operation share capital 2021 2020
RZZB=—F R-B-BF
S 8T M +=A=+—-H ~NA=+H
H5H AL B E AN B R TEREBRREELE BRAFHE Pz FrisREs
Kacono Trading Limited* British Virgin Islands, limited Investment holding HK$2,000 100% 100%
company in British Virgin Islands 7 #2,0007T
REEBHS - GRAA REBER RS RE TR
Key Value Trading Limited* British Virgin Islands, limited Investment holding Us$100 100% 100%
company in British Virgin Islands 1003 7T
RELRARES  ARQA RRBHEBREFSREER
Land Challenger Limited* Hong Kong, limited company Investment holding HK$2 100% 100%
BAEBR A E! BE  BRAT] in Hong Kong BT
REBREER
Lead Commence Limited* Hong Kong, limited company Retailing and distribution of garments HK$2 100% 100%
VREERBR AR B BRAF] in Hong Kong ST
REBKRKRETE R H
Rapid City Limited* Hong Kong, limited company Property holding and letting HK$2 100% 100%
RRWAR QA & BRAF in Hong Kong B2
REBYMERELEE
Sun View Properties Limited* Hong Kong, limited company Dormant in Hong Kong HK$2 100% 100%
BEREXARAA B ARAR] MNEBEER B2

*  Equity interest directly held by the Company.

#  Equity interest indirectly held by the Company.

ANNUAL REPORT 2020/21 4
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STA
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31 December 2021 —ZE-—F+-F=

31 SUBSIDIARIES (continued) 31 B F (&)
Notes: P 5T w
c
e o
(@) The branch of this subsidiary in Taiwan ceased its operations and was dissolved on 29 June 2020 by resolution of @ ZMBRAANRABEBZARRIER-ZZ_TEA-TNLBEEEFTGR wg
the Board of Directors on 29 June 2020. The branch was completed the liquidation on 22 September 2020. FEN_TZZEFAASTNBRIEEERMRN - ZDARER=T & 5
—EFAA=+ARARAS - =2
=
(b) dEREMERARETE R AT s a limited liability enterprise established in mainland China, which obtained its business (b) EREMERBERARASRBEANEXRIZEREEAR  LER S
registration certificate on 24 November 2020. —ECRFS A THEBISEEEERR -
32 RESERVES 32 f#1B
The amounts of the Group's reserves and the movements therein for the current period and prior years AEEARBTFEAEERERAPEE 2 HEENNT BT 2 o 8
are presented in the consolidated statement of changes in equity of the financial statements. The amounts FEERZPHREAN - R_TZE—FERMNSTTEHAELFE305% /1A =
of goodwill arising from the acquisition of subsidiaries prior to the adoption of Statement of Standard WENBARMEEMR -E_—F T A=T—HB1NFREE] #EQ
Accounting Practice 30 in 2001, remaining in the consolidated capital reserve and consolidated retained NEBREARBEFAZEESED B &H%3,292,0007T & ;ﬁgﬁ
profits amounted to HK$3,292,000 and HK$20,982,000, respectively, at 31 December 2021. #£20,982,0007T ° m;‘—;-é.
(%]
The share option reserve of the Group comprises the fair value of share options granted which are yet to AEBEZBERERECRERLEMRITEEREZ A TE  FI15
be exercised, as further explained in the accounting policy for share-based payment transactions in note BN AE M REM T2 258 UMD M RIBEZR 52 ST BR
2.25 to the consolidated financial statements. A e
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33 NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS 33 REREMERMWETE
= (a) Cash flows from liabilities arising from financing activities (a) EEHFELAEEZRERE
-“;’ & In the consolidated statements of cash flows, cash flows from liabilities arising from financing activities RiFEReRER  REFDMELEBECRESRENTET
Ca are analysed as follows:
(%]
o8 Loan from
S Interest- immediate
g Lease bearing bank holding
liabilities borrowings company Total
HiEER
HK$'000 HEAE FFRRITER RARERK Mt BT T
o S At 1 July 2019 390,178 30,000 - 420,178 R=-ZE—hFELH—H
3 :-E”m Cash inflows - 184,960 - 184,960 HERA
EE@M Cash outflows (196,412) (155,239) - (351,651) WE Rt
e Other non-cash movement 93,318 - - 93,318 Hih3ER £ &
8 S
S & At 30 June 2020 and R-B-EFXA=+HR=ZZE-_ZFtHA—H
1 July 2020 287,084 59,721 - 346,805
Cash inflows = = 100,000 100,000 BERA
g Cash outflows (234,761) (59,721) (100,000) (394,482) WERH
glllll Other non-cash movement 195,304 - - 195,304 E A FEIR & E)
qﬁam At 31 December 2021 247,627 - - 247,627 N-EBE-_—F+=-A=+—H
+ fif

hl
(7]
oc

B % & B
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STA
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31 December 2021 —ZE-—F+-F=

33 NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS (continued) 33 MERERERMT (H)

(b) Proceeds from disposal of property, plant and equipment

(b) HEWE - BERRBAERE

In the consolidated statements of cash flows, proceeds from disposal of property, plant and RiFEReRER - LEWHE  BERREMSHEITAT

equipment are analysed as follows:

Period ended Year ended
31 December 2021 30 June 2020
BZE H=E
—E-—-F T oTE
+=B=+-8 NA=+A
HK$'000 53R IEFE BT
Net book amount (note 15) 1,766 1,981 SREDVHE (FIFE15)
Loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment, net HEMZE - BER&EFEE (M)
(note 8) (369) (1,762)
Proceeds from disposal of property, plant and equipment 1,397 219 HEME - MEMERENSIE
34 CAPITAL COMMITMENTS 34 EXREE
The Group had the following capital commitments at the end of the reporting period: REBPRBERARZ ERAENT
At 31 December At 30 June
2021 2020
R=B=—%F R_T_TF
HK$'000 +ZA=+—8H NA=+H BETT
Contracted, but not provided for: EREESEESTE
Leasehold improvements 5,205 442 HEMEEE
Furniture, fixtures and office equipment - 311 EL - HERPAERE
5,205 753

BOSSINI INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED Z¥isEEFRERABR DA
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31 December 2021 —T=—F+=-A=+—8H

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Related parties are those parties that have the ability to control, jointly control or exert significant influence
over the other party in holding power over the investee; exposure, or rights, to variable returns from its
involvement with the investee; and the ability to use its power over the investee to affect the amount of
the investor’s returns. Parties are also considered to be related if they are subject to common control or
joint control. Related parties may be individuals or other entities.

The directors of the Company are of the view that the following companies were related parties that had
transactions or balances with the Group during the period ended 31 December 2021 and the year ended

30 June 2020:

Name of the related parties

BEALEE

Relationship with the Group
BEAKEBR

36

35 CONTINGENT LIABILITIES 35 HAEF
At 31 December At 30 June
2021 2020
R-B—_—%F RZTZZTF
HK$'000 +=A=+-H NA=+A BB T
Bank guarantees given in lieu of utility and REKE LR EILRS ZRITER
property rental deposits 1,047 5,697

BEALRS

BB ATEBRIES - BAESI AT SRR EHRITEE NN
ATFTEEAFENNAL  AAEXZEEE2BREHRNA
FomrARIENNOAL  RANMBEHRENROENTZER
BEERBEBOAL - XHEFEBIHESZEHNOA LR REE
AL BEALAIREAREMERS -

ARREERA/TIRRARRBE_T-_—F+ -_A=1+—HILH
BEBE_Z_ZFANAZTHLEFEAREBER S HAHNE
EAL:

Dragon Leap Developments Limited
REERERAT

Laws International Group Limited

AEXBEREEERAT

Viva China Sports Holding Limited
FEAFEBEERBER LA
FRBERR(LBBRAR
FENFHEEERILNERDF

REERNEXERAF
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Immediate holding company of the Company

ARREEERAT

A related company controlled by Mr. LAW Ching Kit Bosco

7 IEANSC A1 2 BB A R

A fellow subsidiary of the Company
A /NCIPASE =N

A fellow subsidiary of the Company
/NI =N

A fellow subsidiary of the Company
A /NCIPASE =N

A fellow subsidiary of the Company
A /NCIPASE =N



36 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued)
(a) Material transactions with related parties
Save as disclosed elsewhere in the consolidated financial statements, the following transactions were

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STA

31 December 2021 —ZE-—F+-F=

36 BEALRS (&)

() HABEALTZEARRS

BREEAMBREMBEEN  TIRZTHEBEATIZITOE

nV_\ é /E\j- i%

carried out with related parties at terms mutually agreed by both parties: F B E 2 RRGETT
Period ended Year ended
Notes 31 December 2021 30 June 2020
BZE HE
—EC-—F —EEF
+t=A=+-—8H ~NA=+H
HK$'000 5T LEHARS IEFE ok
Continuing connected transactions BERERS
Rental and other income from a fellow A1 [F) R M8 A AR 2 FH & R B A YA
subsidiary
— Viva China Sports Holding Limited (i) 3,968 - — ENFEEEIERER AR
Service fee to a fellow subsidiary mRERMBARX N ZREE
- ERPER(EHBRAR (ii) 2,886 - — FRBPERER( LB BRAT
Sponsor fee to a fellow subsidiary EIEES)=NCIE R s k-
- ENEMBERRILR)ERAT (iii) 4,627 = — ENEMEEREROLR)ERAT
Related party transactions BEALTRS
Purchases of garments from B R ENCIESE I e
related companies
— Laws International Group Limited (iv) 934 2,113 — ZXKBEREBAERAF
- REERNEERR AT (v) 756 - — REBEERNEZGRAR]
Interest on loan from immediate holding BEEERARERZME (FF7)
company (note 7)
— Dragon Leap Developments Limited (vi) 1,679 - — EREEFRAA
Notes: B 5E

(i) Rental and other income from subletting portion of the Group's office premises to a fellow subsidiary was
charged in accordance with the terms of a sub-tenancy agreement entered into between the Group and a
fellow subsidiary.

(i) The service fee in relation of managing online shops at various e-commerce platforms in the mainland China
was charged in accordance with the terms of an agreement entered into between the Group and a fellow
subsidiary.

(i) The sponsor fee in relation of sponsoring a sport team was charged in accordance with the terms of an
agreement entered into between the Group and a fellow subsidiary.

() AEESEHOBRAEVETRAEANBRR 2EEREMBATIREA

5 B 22 7 XY B8 A B P RTSL2 9 M i 2 R ARG

(ii) EEEEEP BAEZEEFEHF AR LHEREEDREAEEERR

B RBFIRISLZ B 2 GG E -

(i) FAZEBEEK EBEDHREANEEERRWER R L B

2 GEHEHE -
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36 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued) 36 BAEALRS (&)
2 (a) Material transactions with related parties (continued) (a) BEEALTZEARS (&)
.2 . i IEERE
= & Notes: (continued) MisE - (58)
! (iv) Purchases of garments from certain wholly-owned subsidiaries of Laws International Group Limited (“Laws (vy mETERRXBEBEERAR AT ([FKBEE]) 2EME D TRER
o8 International”) were determined by reference to the prevailing market prices. Laws International is wholly KRDZ2BERFMEEL - BERERDHBERELEE((BEED
% E owned by the trustee of a discretionary trust set up by a relative of Mr. LAW Ka Sing (“Mr. Law") and Mr. LAW RBERGEE(BEREED CBBIR L 2RERIZEA
=] Ching Kit Bosco (“Mr. Bosco Law”), the latter of whom is an eligible discretionary object. Ms. TSIN Man Kuen 2EHR BERAERIBGA -BEREXTAELEZRE
(£2] Bess, the spouse of Mr. Law, was an executive director and the chairman of the Company and Mr. Bosco Law RERBZHPITEERER  MBLERNEERRRR ZIEHNT
is a non-executive Director of the Company. =
(v) Purchases of garments from fellow subsidiary was charged in accordance with the terms of an agreement v) MERMBARRBRXDREAEHERRMBARMTLL
- entered into between the Group and a fellow subsidiary. E P S G-
© v
3§ﬁ (vi) Interest was incurred from the loan from immediate holding company which was fully repaid during the (v) MEREEERARZERMEL  WERBRZHER TR
ni= period. The interest was charged in accordance with the terms of a shareholder loan agreement entered into TR R E B E TR ARG L2 RRE R B 2 ERETE -
%%M between the Group and the immediate holding company.
— C,',u
[o)®] "
o ok (b) Period/year end balances (b) B4R FERE&ERR
S vy At At
Notes 31 December 2021 30 June 2020
R-B=—F R-B_FF
HK$'000 M t=A=+—~H ~NA=T+H BT
g Due to fellow subsidiaries EAREZRME A RRE
b — ERME R (LB BRAF (i) 469 - - FERMERHR(I8) AR AR
%; - FENEMEEERILR)ER AR (ii) 4,908 - - N EHEEERCLRERAA
[
L=
N
o 5,377 -
giﬂ%
Sl
& Due to related companies ERRENRRE
— Laws International Group Limited (iii) = 71 - BB EEBFRE AT
s Notes: B 5
E @) ﬁmo;mt dE[Jﬁ‘ to 3E§%&§%§ﬂ&(ti)ﬁﬁﬁ’&ﬁ was unsecured, interest-free and repayable within 5 business () ERERBBRE (L) ARARNRARMIEN - %8 RANE
S BYS eI U In7elds CEI, ZHHRRESETERNEE -
= (i) Amount due to FENLEMEES ZRALR)ABR AR was unsecured, interest-free and repayable according to () FEMIEREMEERE (L) ARATKXELELE £ 5 RIE
-3 the trade terms. BB S EHEE -
S = &
_E (i) Amount due to Laws International Group Limited was unsecured, interest-free and repayable within 45 days iy ENEXEREEERATNREAERN LR ANEEZAN
> . from the invoice date. B AS R P - :
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36 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued)

(9]

Key management compensation

Key management includes directors and senior management. The compensation paid or payable to
key management for employee services is shown below:

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STA

wa %

31 December 2021 —ZE = —F+ = A=+

36 BEALRS (&)

(c)

TEEE A SR
TEEBRAEERREEERSREEAR - BEERBENKE
NEEEBASZHMAOT

Period ended Year ended
31 December 2021 30 June 2020
Bz HE
—E-F —TEHF
+=A=+-A AA=+A
HK$'000 1HHARS EFE BETT
Fees 2,806 - we
Short term employee benefits 20,762 17,922 R EE B2
Equity-settled share option expense 6,409 406 R E BN
Pension scheme contributions 242 198 BRIREETEIMHR
30,219 18,526

37 EVENT AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

(a

Subsequent to the period ended 31 December 2021, the Group completed the disposal of the
properties (the “Disposal”), as detailed in note 24, on 15 March 2022. The net proceeds arising from
the Disposal was approximately HK$183 million (after deducting the expected expenses in relation to
the Disposal).

Based on the net proceeds of the Disposal amounting to approximately HK$183 million and the
carrying amount of the properties of HK$9.4 million as at 31 December 2021, a gain on disposal of
approximately HK$174 million will be recognised in the consolidated financial statements for the year
ending 31 December 2022.

With continuously increasing in the new infections of COVID-19 globally, and the outbreak of
Omicron in Hong Kong since early January 2022, this will inevitably have an impact on consumption
sentiment and the Group’s business. Taking into account the possible derail of recovery due to
unfavourable macro environment and the pandemic impact, the management of the Group will stay
cautious and react proactively to the evolving market conditions. The management will continue
assessing the impacts of the COVID-19 on the financial performance of the Group.

37 HEHRER

(@)

(b)

BE T —F+-A=+—BItHBEE AXEER T ——
FZATHATREENE ((LESHE]) - FBEENMHIE24
HEEBRELEZIBHIBFRENASE183E T HIKREE
EIEMEZBHMAE)

BREBEHEFHEZASRBFRNESIBELEYER -F
TH+ZA=+-RAZEAEEEKI4BEET HERENE
BITAB AR E S F+ A=+ —HILFEZKE
MR PR

BEE 2 HH AR MRS RO TEIEM - AkE T ==
F—ANBERBIEZEOmicron - EHELHBIBEERAEE
EBERTE - ZRITHNZBREN LRSS HIEE
X AREEEERRHBEEE  BEEHBREEZHNM
o EREREETLEFLERRSHASEMBRANTE -

)&
&
-
5

=
>
QL
=)
.
=)
=
=+
[e]
=
3
Q
=
o
=)
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38 STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE COMPANY 38 ARAF ZMBMRR K
= Information about the statement of financial position of the Company at the end of the reporting period RBEER  BEARRAMBRKARZERDOT ¢
(] is as follows:

Sm
! At 31 December At 30 June
o Note 2021 2020
S R-B=—F RZTZTF
é HK$'000 (3 +=A=t+-8 AB=+A AT
NON-CURRENT ASSETS FRBEE
Investments in subsidiaries 143,162 143,162 B RIRE
CURRENT ASSETS REEE
© S Due from subsidiaries 533,345 241,585 A NG E ]
3% Prepayments 696 8 TERTHIE
3%1‘5{ Cash and cash equivalents 1,234 797 B MRS EEEE
ke
g sH Total current assets 535,275 242,390 MBEERE
o oMk
S2d CURRENT LIABILITIES B EE \
Other payables and accruals 142 2,429 EL A JE A RRIE I FE ST RRIE
Tax payable 99 99 FEZTiIE
2 Total current liabilities 241 2,528 mENAERE
o
i .
Eﬂl NET CURRENT ASSETS 535,034 239,862 RBEEFE
el
= ﬁ NET ASSETS 678,196 383,024 EEFE
kS
t i EQUITY i@
S el Issued capital 246,575 164,134 BRITRA
= Reserves (a) 431,621 218,890 1
TOTAL EQUITY 678,196 383,024 EREE
[
'% The statement of financial position of the Company was approved by the Board of Directors on 18 March ARAZHMBRRRER T _F=A+/\AREFEHAE I
o 2022 and were signed on its behalf. AUATEERERESE -
2
=8
-
=% CHEUNG Chi &%& CHAN Cheuk Him Paul B =5
£ Director % Director &%
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38 STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE COMPANY (continued)
Note:

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STA
n'/_\é/ﬁ\ztﬁ%

31 December 2021 —ZE=—F+ - A=~

38 AR ZBBMRRE (F)
BYRE

w
c
wv
, : =l
A summary of the Company’s reserves is as follows: (@ AAREBIZHMEMT : %o
wv
s
Share Share &= 0
premium  Contributed option Retained )
account surplus reserve profits Total S
HK$'000 RAPEER BABH BRERE REBEF e BB
At 1 July 2019 29,020 157,616 28,904 22,307 237,847 RZZE-NFtA—H
Total comprehensive income for the year - - - 424 424 FREEWNGZEE =
_ . =
Equity-settled share option arrangements - - 643 - 643 Bt EREREL Fr)g o
Final 2019 dividend declared - - - (20,024) (20,024) BER-Z-NERBEE =
[
Ho o
At 30 June 2020 and 1 July 2020 29,020 157,616 29,547 2,707 218,890 R_E-_EFXA=ZTHR_Z_ZF+A—H = S
=5
Eak ey
Total comprehensive loss for the period - - - (8,151) (8,151) HMRNEEEERARE
Exercise of share options 603 - (164) - 439 TR
Equity-settled share option arrangements - - 8,604 - 8,604 BnEEERER
=
Cancellation of share options - - (30,687) 30,687 = iR S
Shares issued under rights issue 213,698 - - - 213,698 R EEA TR D ot S
Transaction costs incurred in respect PURREEZRHRA m%
of rights issue (1,859) - - - (1,859) #3
o
ofF 5
At 31 December 2021 241,462 157,616 7,300 25,243 431,621 R-ZE-_—&F+-fF=+—H Illﬂg-

o & 8

=
>
[
=)
.
=)
=
=+
[e]
=
=i
Q
=
o
=)
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ARS OF PROPERTIES
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INVESTMENT PROPERTIES
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Financial information
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-% e Attrif)utable
: ol interest
4] = Location Use Tenure of the Group
g% 35 AR 18 A
- Unit 1 on 9th Floor Industrial Medium 100%
Car Park No. L12 on 1st Floor term
Cheung Fung Industrial Building lease
= S No. 23-39 Pak Tin Par Street
3:*_21||||K Tsuen Wan, New Territories
o5 #5208 A H 123399 T Gk
S S RETEAE
o ok INIER1ELI2SAEN
o
)



COMPANY INFO
A

Executive directors HITES Principal share registrar and transfer office FTERODBFERE
Mr. CHEUNG Chi RE AL MUFG Fund Services (Bermuda) Limited MUFG Fund Services (Bermuda) Limited
Mr. ZHAO Jianguo L E 4th floor North 4th floor North
Mr. CHAN Cheuk Him Paul =k e Cedar House Cedar House
41 Cedar Avenue 41 Cedar Avenue
Non-executive directors FHITES Hamilton HM 12 Hamilton HM 12

Mr. Victor HERRERO (Chairman)
Mr. LAW Ching Kit Bosco

Victor HERREROE 4 (&)
BIENTE

Independent non-executive directors BUKBITES
Mr. LEE Kwok Ming THBFLE

Prof. SIN Yat Ming A=LEE €5

Mr. CHEONG Shin Keong B 08 58 A
Company secretary AAWE

Ms. WONG Suk May IRIEL L
Principal bankers FEERET

Standard Chartered Bank (Hong Kong) Limited
The Hongkong and Shanghai Banking
Corporation Limited

Auditor

BITIRIT (BR)BR AR
BB LBEERITERAA

A ]

PricewaterhouseCoopers

Principal solicitor

BARKEEEIEEA

FEEEM

Deacons

TR TT

Bermuda

Hong Kong branch share registrar

Bermuda

EERDBFERTTE

Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited
Shops 1712-6, 17th Floor

Hopewell Centre

183 Queen’s Road East, Wanchai

Hong Kong

Registered office

EBPRELEELERAF
BEEEFE2ERNERI183HR
a7

1712-6%

AR EL

Victoria Place, 5th Floor
31 Victoria Street
Hamilton HM 10

Victoria Place, 5th Floor
31 Victoria Street
Hamilton HM 10

Bermuda Bermuda
Principal office BWER

2/F, PopOffice BENEHEER
9 Tong Yin Street BB

Tseung Kwan O
Kowloon
Hong Kong

Website

PopOffice 212

#83k

www.bossini.com

www.bossini.com
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